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56 Financial Staterments

Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the preparation
of the financial statements

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at the end of the accounting period and of the profit or
loss for that period. In preparing the financial statements the Directors are required to select and apply consistently suitable
accounting policies and make reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. Applicable accounting standards also have to
be followed and a statement made to that effect in the financial statements, subject 1o any material departures being disclosed
and explained in the notes to the financial statements. The Directors are required to prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business. The Directors are responsible for
ensuring proper accounting records are kept which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also
responsible for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Directors’ Report

The Board in 2000

Details of the Board appear on pages 30 and 31. Following
his appointment as a Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of Syngenta AG, Michael Pragnell resigned as a Director of
the Company on 13 November 2000,

Re-election of Directors

All of the Directors retire under Article 85 of the Articles of
Association and alf, with the exception of Sir David Barnes
CBE, are presenting themseives for re-glection at the Annual
General Mesting on 26 April 2001, Al of the Directors
presenting themsedives for re-election are recommended for
re-glection. Sir David Barnes CBE will retire from the Board
with effect from the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Principal activities

The Gompany is the holding company for a group of
subsidiaries whose principal activities are described in the
Operational and Financial Reviews, which are incorporated in
this report by reference. Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates and their locations are given on page 105.

Dividends

The dividend for 2000 of $0.70 (47 .4 pence, SEK 6.59) per
Ordinary Share amounts to $1,238 million,

The Company also declared a dividend in specie on

13 November 2000 of $2,117 million which was satisfied by the
fransfer to shareholders of 43,800,186 shares in Syngenta AG.
This dividend in specie was tecorded in the Group accounts at
the book value of the net assets of the business which were
deconsolidated, $1,869 million.

Corporate governance

Throughout 2000, other than as set out in this report, the
Company has applied all of the principles of good governance
contained in Section 1 of the Combined Code published by
the Hampe! Committes on Corporate Governance and
approved by the London Stock Exchange.

Other than as set out in this report, the Company has also
complied throughout the accounting period with the Cods
provisions set out in Section 1 of the Combined Code.

Directors and organisation

The Board is responsible for the Company’s objectives, policies
and stewardship of the Cornpany’s resources. It concentrates
mainly on strategy, financial performance and critical business
issues and normally meets seven times a year. Executive
Directors have specific rernits and areas of responsibility which
are shown on page 30. The difiering roles of Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors are clearly delineated, both
having fiduclary duties towards shareholders. However,
Executive Diractors have direct responsibility for business
operations whereas the Non-Executive Directors have a
responsibility to bring independent, objective judgement 10
bear on Board decisions. There is an established and
transparent procedure for appointments of new directors to
the Board which is operated by the Nomination Committee.

All of the Directors retire at each Annual General Meeting and
may offer themselves for re-election by shareholders.

The Chief Executive, Tom McKillop, has delegated authority
fromn, and is responsible to, the Board for directing and
prometing the profitable operation and development of the
Carmpany consistent with the primary aim of enhancing
long-term sharehalder value. He is obliged to refer certain
major matters {defined in the formal delegation of the Board's
authaority) back to the Board.
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The Chigf Executive has established and chairs the Senior
Executive Team, While the Chief Executive retains fult
responsibility for the authority delegated to him by the Board,
the Senior Executive Tearn is the vehicle through which he
exercises that authaiity in respect of the Company’s businesses
(including Salick Health Care, Astra Tech and Marlow Foods).
The other members of the Senior Executive Team are Ake
Staviling, Jonathan Symonds, Claes Wilhelmsson {all Executive’
Directors); Bruno Angelici, Executive Vice-President, Intarnational
Sales and Marketing (succeeding Michael O'Brien who retired
from the Company at the end of January 2001); Cad-Gustaf
Johansson, Executive Vice-President, North America and
President and CEO, AstraZeneca [P; John Paiterson, Executive
Vice-President, Product Strategy and Licensing; Barrie Thorpe,
Executive Vice-President, Operations; and Gunnar Christiani,
Executive Vice-President, Human Resources. it nommally meets
once a month to review all business issues and decisions other
than those considered to be of a size or importance to require
the attention of, or which are reserved to, the full Board.

The Chief Executive is responsible to the Board for the
management and performance of the Gompany's businesses
within the framework of Company policies, reserved powers
and routine reporting requirements. The rales of the Board,
the Chairman, the Deputy Chairmen, the Chief Executive,

the Senior Executive Team and their key cormmittees are
documented, as are the Company's delegated authorities
and reserved powers, the means of operation of the

business and the roles of corporate functions.

Directors’ remuneration
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are contained in the
Report of the Board on Remuneration on pages 34 to 35.

Relations with shareholders

The Company has frequent discussions with institutionat
shareholders on a range of issues affecting its performance.
These include mestings following the announcement of the
annual results with the Company's largest institutional share-
holders on an individual basis. In addition, the Company
responds continually to individual ad hoc requests for
discussions from institutional shareholders.

All shareholders, including private investors, have an
opportunity to participate in discussions with the Boardt
on matters relating to the Company's operation and
performance at the Annual General Meeting.

Internal control and risk management

In its financial reporting to shareholders and other imerested
parties by means of annuat and quarterly performance reports,
the Board aims to present a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company's financial position and prospects.

Each area of business is subject to an annual budget and
target-setting process including forecasts for the next three years
together with a sensitivity and risk analysis, quarterly updates
of the forecast for the current year and regular reporting. Key
business priorities are cascaded through the organisation and
form part of the basis for the Company’s incentive schemes.

Perforrnance reviews are undertaken in each part of the

business at least once a year. The Company’s quarterly business
performance management system has moved away frorn the
use of predominantly financial performance measures armd is
now based on a broader range of measures that link directly to
the achisvement of key business priorities. All material capitaf
investments must be submitted for approval with suppostting
information. Treasury operations are centralised, cperate within

defined limits and are subject to regular reporting requirements
and audit reviews.
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The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s systemn
of internat controt which aims to safeguard shareholders’
investments and the Company’s assets, ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and that the financial
information used within the business and for publication is
reliable. The system is also designed to provide reasonable
assurance of effective operations and compliance with laws
and regulations, but any system of internal control can only
provide reascnable, not absolute, assurance against maletial
risstatement or loss.

The Company has in place a range of procedures to monitor
and control the risks associated with the achisvernent of its
objectives. It has formed a Risk Advisory Committee comprised
of representatives from each business funstion. The role of the
Committes is to assist senior management to identify and
assess the main risks faced by the Company's busingss in a
co-ordinated manner, to assess, identify and document the
Company’s risk profile and to ensure that the business

agenda is geared towards critical business issues. it reporis

to the Senior Executive Team:.

The members of the Audit Commitiee during 2000 were Karl
von der Heyden (Chairman of the Commitiee), Dame Bridget
Ogilvie and Marcus Wallenberg. They are all Non-Executive
Directors. The Committeg met five times during 2000 and

is scheduled to meet on four occasions in 2001,

The remit of the Committee is to review and report to the
Board on the annual and other published financial reporting
carried out by the Group, the accounting policies of the Group,
the scope and audit programmes of the Company’s internal
and external auditors and any material issues arising from
thede audits, and the effectiveness of the Group’s systems
of financial reporting and intemal financial controls and the
framework for risk management, with particular emphasis
on financial risks. The Commities is also responsible for the
appoirirnent of the Company’s chief internal auditor and
recommends to the Board the appointment of the external
auditor and the level of its audit and non-audit remuneration.

The Audlit Committee has received and considered reports on
the effectiveness of ine Company's system of internal fnancial
control. These include an annual assessment of internal
financial control from the internal audit function, reports from
the external auditor on matters identified in the course of its
statutory audit work and management assurance of the
maintenance of control. The latter is based on an annual
‘letter of assurance’ by which responsible managers confirm
the adequacy of their systems of internal financial and non-
financial control, their compliance with Company poficies, 1ocal
laws and regulations and report any control weaknesses
identified in the past year.

Foliowing publication in September 1999 by the Institute of
Ghartered Accountants in England and Wales of the Turnull
Report, ‘Internal Control: Guidance for Directors on the
Combined Code’, the Directors have reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group's system of non-financial controls, including
operational and compliance controls and risk management.

in particular, the Company’s high level internal control
arrangements have been reviewed and the global adeguacy

of this frarnework confirmed.

The Directars are confident that an effective embedded system
of internai control has been maintained throughout this process,
and that the Company complies with the Turnbull guidance.
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Following completion of the merger on B April 1999, a formal
review of a number of the Company’s corporate policies was
initiated. This review has been completed, and revised or new
policies have been issued. These include a new AstraZeneca
Code of Conduct. it remains the policy of the Company that all
of its subsidiaries and their employees observe high standards
of integrity and act with due skill, care, diligence and fairness
in the conduct of business. The Company’s management
recognises that such standards make a significant contribution
to the overall control environment and secks, by its words and
actions, to reinforce them throughout the business.

Non-compliance with the Combined Code

The items in the Combined Code with which the Company
did not comply in full throughout the period are the
appointment of a senior Non-Executive Director, and

also service contracts’ notice periods. The reasons for
non-compliance are stated below.

To date, members of the Board have not considered that the
appointment of a senior Non-Executive Director would enhance
the manner in which they discharge their duties,

The service contracts of Executive Directors provide for a

notice period of two years. In the case of a number of

Directors who were formerly employed by Astra, this has
involved a reduction in the notice period to which they were
previously entitled. It is not currently proposed that notice
periods should be reduced further for existing service contracts.
However, for new Executive Directors, although the initial notice
period may be for a longer period, it is the Board's intention
that it should be reduced to one year subsequently. The Board
recognises that market conditions may not make this easy 1o
achieve in the near term and the Board has retained the
flexibility to offer whatever is necessary to make appropriate
new appointments.

Going concern

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company and its subsidiaries have adequate resources to
cantinue it operational existence for tha foresesable future

and therefore continue to adopt the going concern basis N
preparing the accounts.

Auditor

A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on
26 April 2001 for the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc,
London as auditor of the Company.

Purchase of own shares
At the AGM, the Company will be seeking a renewal of its

current permission from shareholders to purchase its own
shares.

The Company’s stated distribution policy contains both a
regutar dividend cash flow and a share repurchase component
to give the Company more flexibility in managing its capital
structure over time. During 2000, in line with this policy, the
Cornpany purchased for canceliation 9,405,000 of its own
Ordlinary Shares with a nominal value of $0.25 each for an
aggregate sum of $353 million. This number of shares
represents 0.83% of the Company’s total issued share capital,

Allotments

Changes in the Company's Ordinary Share capital during the
year, including allotments of shares under the Company’s share
schemes, are given in Note 40 to the Financial Statements.
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Political contributions
Nao political contributions in respect of which the Campany
is required to make any statements in this report were
made in 20Q0.

Payment of suppliers

Although it is not Company policy formally to comply with

the Confederation of British Industry’s code of practice on

the prompt payment of suppliers, it is Company policy 10 agree
appropriate payment terms with all suppliers when agreeing
the terms of each transaction, to ensure that those suppliers
are made aware of the terms of payment and, subject to their
compliance, abide by the terms of payment. The total owed by
the Company’s subsidiaries to trade creditors at the balance
sheet date was equivalent to 77 days’ average purchases. No
equivalent disclosure is provided in respact of the Company

as it has no external creditors.

Employee involvermnent

The Company maintains an open management style and
involves its employees both in daily decisions which affect
thern and longer-term matters. it is fully committed to keeping
all of its employees informed about their work unit and the
wider business, as well as discussing the implications of major
husiness changes and other relevant matiers. In line with legal
requiraments and culturat standards, more formal nationat and
business level employee consultation arrangements exist in
some countrigs, including the UK. A forum for employee
consultation at European level, chaired by the Chief Executive,
was introduced in 1995, Details of employees’ share schemes
appear in Note 33 to the Financial Statements. The Company
has a variety of constructive relationships with trade unions
across its worldwide operations including formal recognition
and active dialogue where appropriate.

Equal opportunities ‘
The Company believes that every smployee should be treated
with the same respect and dignity. it values the rich diversity
and creative potential of people with diffeting backgrounds
and abilittes, and encourages a culture of equat opportunities
in which persenal success depends on parsonal merit and
performance. It is Company policy that there should be

no discrimination against any person for any reason that is
not relevant to the effective performance of their job. Al
judgements about people for the purposes of recruitment,
development and promotion will be made solely on the basis
of their ability and potential in relation to the needs of the job.
Every manager is responsibie for implementing this policy.

Employment of people with disabilities

It is Company policy that people with disabilities should have
the same consideration as others with respect 1o recruitrment,
retention and personal development. Depending on their skills
and abiities, they enjoy the same career prospecis as other
employees and ihe same scope for realising potential. The
Company also takes all reasonable steps to ensure that its
working environments can accommodate special needs.

AstraZeneca Annual Report and Form 20-F 2000

Report of the Board on Remuneration of Directors

Membership and remit of the Nomination Commitiee

The members of the Nomination Committee during 2000 ware
Percy Barnevik (Chairman of the Committee), Sir David Barnes
CBE, Hakan Mogren and one Non-Executive Director
nominated by Percy Barnevik.

The remit of the Committea is, primarily, to make proposals to

the Board for any new appointments as Directors of the
Company.

Membership and remit of the Retmuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration Commitiee during 2000
were Lars Ramqvist {Chairman of the Committee), Ema Mbdller
ang Sir Peter Bonfigld CBE, FRENRg. They are all Non-Executive
Directors of the Company, independent and have no personal
financial interest in matters to be decided, no potential conflicts
of interest arising from cross-directorships and no day-to-day
invoivernent in running the Company.

The remit of the Cornmities is, among other things, 1o
recommend to the Board the fundamental remuneration
policy for the Company and to ensure the prapear operation
of all schemes involving the Company's shares. More
particularly, it makes specific proposals in respect of the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and the Company's most senior executives,

The Company is committed to developing a dynamic
performance culture in which every employee champions the
growth of shareholder value; is clear about the Company’s
objectives; knows how their work impacts on them; and that
they will benefit from achieving high levels of performance.

With this vision in mind, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed remuneration policy. The Board has confirmed
that the overall policy and purpose is to:

— attract and retain peopls of the quality necessary to sustain
the Cormpany as one of the best pharmaceuticals comnpanies
in the world; and

~ motivate them to achieve the level of performance necessary
to creafe sustained growth in shareholder vaiue.

In order to achieve this, remuneration policy and practice is
designed to;

- closely align Individual and team reward with business
performance at each level:

— encourage employees 1o perform to their fullest capacity;

— encourage ernployess 1o align their interests with those of
shareholders;

~ support managers’ responsibifity to achieve business
performance through pecple, and for them to recognise
superior performance, in the short and longer-term;

- be as locally focused and flexible as realistic;

- be competitive and cost-effective in each of the relevant
employment markets; and

~ bea as internally consistent as realistic taking due account of
market need.

Components of the remuneration package
The cost and value of the components of the remuneration
package are considered as a whole and designed to:

— @nsure a proper batance of fixed and variable perormance
related components, linked to short and long-term oh jectives;
and

- reflect market competitiveness taking account of the t otal
value of all of the components.
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The: compone)r-ﬁs contained in the total remuneration package
are:

— annual salary — based on conditions in the relevant
geographic market, with the provision 10 recognise, in
addition, the value of individuals’ sustained personal
performance, resulting from their ability and experience;

- ad hoc rewards — special payments and other measures
available 10 reward individuals and teams following a
particular and outstanding business contribution;

— short-term bonus — a lump sum payment related to the
targeted achievement of identified business drivers and,
where appropriate, personal performance goals,
measured over a year within a specific scheme;

— share participation ~ various schemes to provide the
opportunity for employees 1o take a personat stake in
the Company’s wealth as shareholderts; and

— other benefits — benefits such as holidays, sickness benefit
and pensions which are cost-effective and compatible with
ihe relevant national welfare arrangements.

The way in which these elements are combined and applied

varies depznding, for example, on market need and practice
in various countries.

For Executive Directors, the individual components are:

— annual salary — the actual salary for each of the Executive
Directors is determined on behaif of the Board by the
Remuneration Committee; these salaries reflect the
experience and sustained performance of the individuals to
whom they apply. as judged annually by the Committes,
taking account also of market competitiveness;

- short-terrn bonus — in respect of 2000, Executive Directors
were entitied to an annual bonus related to the achievernent
of both the targsted performance of earnings per share and
the achievernent of individual measures relevant to each
Director’s particular area of responsibility; the bonus payable
is on a scale of 0-100% of salary: 50% of salary is payable for
the achievernent of target business performance, 80% of the
bonus refates to the achisvemnent of the eamings per share
target and 20% to the individual measures;

— longer-term bonus — Executive Direciors are also rewarded for
improvement in the share price performance of the Company
over a period of years by the grant of share options; the grant
of options under the AstraZenaca Share Option Plan is
supervised by the Rermuneration Committes which also
determines whether any performance targets will apply to the
grant anc/or exercise of options; the exercise of options
previously granted under the Zeneca 1994 Executive Share
Option Scheme is currently subject to the performance
condition that before any exercise, earnings per share must
grow by at least the increase in the UK retail prices index plus
3% per annum over a continuous three year period following
grant; and

— pension and other benefits — normally, UK Directors
participate in the AstraZeneca contributory pension
scheme and are mearmbers of the AstraZeneca pension
fund which provides a pension of up to two-thirds of
basic satary on retirerent at age 62 with at ieast 20
years' service; the scheme also provides for dependants’
peansions and lump sums on death in service.

In respect of UK Dirgctors whosa pensionable earnings are
cappet by the garings limit imposed by the Finance Act 1982,
money purchase funded unapproved retirement benefit
schermes are available. Currently, only Jonathan Symonds

is affected by this limit. The Company has agreed o pay
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50% of bagic salary in excess of the earmings imit with the
intention of providing equivalence of benefits with non-capped
UK Directors. If this does not provide equivalence, then the
Company has agreed to make up the difference.

Nermally, Swedish Directors participate in the collectively
bargained ITP pension plan, which provides pensions,
dependants’ pensions and lump sums on death in service.

In respect of those Swedish Directors, namely Hakan Mogren,
Ake Staviing and Claes Wilhelmsson, whose pensionable
sarnings are in excess of the earnings limit imposed by the
Communal Tax Law (Kommunalskattelagen), supplementary
pengion commitrnents are made. The Company has agreed
to pay 70% of pensionable salary from age 60 to age 65 and
50% of such earnings from age 65. The ITP provisions are
included in this additional promise.

Nota 35 to the Financial Statements sats out the information
reguired by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority
refating to Direciors’ pension enfitlerments.

Other customary benefits (such as car and fuel, heafth

benefits, savings-related share option scheme} are made
available as required.

Emoluments in 2000: the emoluments of Directors of the
Company are set out in Note 35 to the Financial Statements.

Full details of Directors’ interests in Ordinary Shares of the
Company and its subsidiaries (including options), together
with options granted and exercised in 2000 are set out in
Note 34 to the Financial Statements.

As stated above, the Remuneration Commitiee determines

the grant of options under the AstraZeneca Share Option Plan
and ensures that, on every occasion before the grant of any
aption, the performance of the Company and the performance
and contribution of each participant is fully taken into account
when determining the number of shares to be put under option
and the number of options to be granted. In respect of the
grant of options under the Plan in August 2000, the Committee
considered the overall performance of the Company against a
range of key performance indicators, including the prospects
for growth, new product launches and synergy benefits, and
decided that it was sufficient to justify a grant of options. The
Committee also received assurances from each member of
the Senior Executive Team that the participants for whom

they were recommending a grant of options had achieved

the appropriate level of performance.

Service contracts

Each Executive Director normally has a service contract with
a notice period of two years subiect to retirement, normally,
at the age of 82. At the time ¢f the Annual General Meeting
on 26 April 2001, the unexpired term of Executive Directors’
service contracts will be a maxirmum of 24 months. None of
the Non-Executive Directars has a service contract.

External appointments

With the specific approval of the Board in sach case, Exscutive
Directors may accept external appointments as non-exsctitive

directors of cther companies and retain any related fees paid
to them.

On behak of the Board

G H R Musker

Group Secretary and Solicitor
7 February 2001
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Independent auditor’s report 1o the members of AstraZeneca PLC

We have audited the financial statements on pages 58 to 124.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Directors are respansible for preparing the Annual Report and Form 20-F. As described on page 56 this includes responsibifity
for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom faw and accounting standards; the Directors
have also presented additional information under United States requirements. Our responsibilities, as independent auditor, are
established in the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority,
and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report 1o you our opinion as 1o whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly preparsd in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We alsc report to you i, in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent with the
financial statements, if the Company hasg not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we reguire for our audit, or if information specified by law or the Usting Rules regarding Directors’ remuneration and
transactions with the Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the statement on page 32 reflects the Company’s compliance with the seven provisions of the Combined Code
specified for our review by the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether
the Board's statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance procedures or iis risk and control proceduses.

Wa read the other information contained in the Annual Report and Form 20-F, including the corporate governance statement, and
consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements,

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
exarnination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 1t alse includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and
of whethar the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free frorn material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at \f'\
31 December 2000 and of the profit of the Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985.

Generally accepted accounting principles in the United Kingdom vary in certain significant respects from generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States. Application of generally accepted accounting principles in the United States would have
affected resuits of operations for each of the years in the three-year period ended 31 December 2000 and consolidated
Sharehotders’ equity at 31 December 2000 and 1999, to the extent summarised on pages 115 to 124,

7 February 2001

e Ak Ll
KPMG Audit Pic
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
8 Salisbury Sguare
London EC4Y 8BB

The above opinion is provided in compliance with UK requirernents. An opinion complying with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States will be inciuded in the Annual Report and Form 20-F filed with the United States Securities &
Exchange Commission.

AstraZeneca Arnuat Report and Forrn 20+ 2000
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Group Profit and Loss Account

for the year ended 31 December

Continuing Discontinued  Excepticnal 2000
operations  operations items Total
e Notes ~ $m $m $m $m
Less: Share of joint venture turnover (195) - - {195)
Grouptumover B 1BB0A 2209 -.... 18108
Operatingcosts oo B (12048 (199) (322 (14,361)
Other operating income 3 223 43 - 266
Group operating profit 3 3,984 346 (322 4,008
Share of operating Ooss)/proﬁt of Joqnt ventures
and associates 4 (12) R Lhsn o [199)
- o (150) . {150
D1vadend income 3 - - 3
Profit on ordinary activities before interest 8875 346 1609 3712
Net interest o] 135 - - 135
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation | Y 6oy 3847
Taxation 7 (1.192) 28 {1,299)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxaton .~ 2918 {581) 2,548
Attributable to minorities (9) - (10)
Net profit for the financial year _ 2,809 (681) 2,538
Dividends to Sharsholders
- CaSh O PV ST 8
Dlv:dend in speme demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals {1,669)
Profit/{loss) retained for the financial year (367)
Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share before
exceptional ftems B 9 . S1e4 012 - $1.76
Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share (basic) D S1 B4 8012 8032) 81,44
Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share {diuted) 9 LS4 8012 ($0.32)  $1.44
Weighted average number of
Ordinary Shares inissue (millions) 9 1,768
Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
for the year ended 31 December
2000
Notes .. _$m
Net | prof t fo_r____the financial year 2,538
Movement in unrealised holding galns and Iosses
on short-term investments : 2 e e e =
Exchange adjustments on net assets T . (1,038)
Translation differences on foreign CU”e_’?_‘?V_PQ”OW'”QS B2 %4
Tax on translation differences on forgign currency borrowmgs 22 (42)
Total recognised gains and losses
relating to the financial year 1,612

$m means mifions of US dollars
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Continuing Discontinued  Excepticnal 1999 Continuing Discontinued  Exceptional 1998

operations  cperations itens Tetal operations operations iterns Total

3m $m $rn gm o fm  $m $m gm

L 16384 8819 T 18BSs o ¥2,383 49099 . -....0ea482

(200} 8) - {208} (1,085) {15) - (1,080

.................................................. 19134 8811 .T...18445 1818 ...4084 19402
Cnred) 8022 (1,182) | (15888) o feon)  BBSO (r2)  (12813)

140 49 ~ 189 119 71 163 353

3,570 338 (1,162) 2,746 2548 5_05 91 3,142

534 S - 539

- - (46) (48)

- " o 17

3,560 341 (1,938) 1,963 3,080 510 62 3,652

(4) - - 4 47 - - 47

35% sar sssy 1,959 Ser 510 62 3,699

(1,048) (118} 351 (815} (903) (179} (4) (1,086)

2,508 223 (1.587) 1,144 2,224 331 58 2613

- ] - {1 3) 1 - {2)

2,508 222 (1,587} 1,143 2,221 332 58 2,611

_________________________________________________ 1.2¢2) (1.08)
(99) 1,550

$1.41 $0.13 - $1.54 ‘ ‘ $1.25 $0.19 - $1.44

%14 %013 (8090) $064 $1.25 $0.19 $0.03 3147

$1.41 $0.13 ($0.90) $064 $1.24 $019 $003 .. $1.46

1,776 1,779

' 1999 1998

] M $m
......................................................... 1,143 e 22811
......................................................................................................................................................................... e .2
________________________________________________ {740), 178)
W2 8%

{22) 2

513 2,430
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Group Balance Sheet

at 31 December

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets

Goodwill and intangible assets

Fixed asset investments

Current assets
Stocks

Debtors

Short- tefm mvestmems
Cagh

Total assets

Creditors due within one year
Short-term borrowings

Current instalments of loans
Finance leases

Other creditors 18 (6,683) (6,640)
(6,897) (7,019)
Net current assets 3,618 2,895
Total assets less current liabilities 11,537 12,797
Creditors due after more than one year
Loans ... e e e L1 (631) ...739
Fanceleases T e A1)
Other creditors 18 (296) (482)
{927} {1,202}
Provisions for liabilities and charges 21 (1,068) (1,253)
Net assets 9,542 10,342
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital A0 e e 442 444
Share premium account 2B L s 202
Capital redermnption reserve S o a3 _ o _ 3 1
Merger reserve - SO+ S
Other reserves 7 ‘ 7 2 1,451 676
Profit and loss account 23 6,957 8,538
Shareholders’ funds - equity interests 22 - 9521 10302
Minority equity interests 21 40
Shareholders’ funds and minority interests 9,542 10,342

The financial statements on pages 58 to 124 were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 February 2001 and were signed on its

behalf by:

Tom McKillop Joanchan Symonds
Director Director

-

o
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Statement of Group Cash Fow

for the vear ended 31 December

Financial siatements ol

2000 1999 1998
o TR Netes . Sm $m Sm
Cash flow from operating activities
Net cash infiow from trading operations 24 ... %992 4699 8817
{Outflow)/infiow related to exceptional tems 25 {809) {1,586} 15
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4,183 3,113 3,832
Dividends received from joint ventures - 3 262
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
180 132 229
pad PN i (o7) (124)
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to minority interests (16) 8 2
19 29 103
Tax paid {648) {1,020) {775)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Cash expenditure on tangible fixed assets LT, (1,347) 0480 {1,392)
Cash expenditure on intangible assets (113 {1.263) {114)
New fixed asset investments L {6} 18)
Disposals of fixed assets 37 28 155
(1,426) (2,731) (1,369}
Acquisitions and disposals
Acquisitions and purchases of minority interests 26 S (167} 23) {2,013
Net repayment of debt by Zeneca Agrochemicals 27 S %08 0 - -
Disposals of business operations e 28 T 198 =
Disposals of investrents in joint ventures and associates {2) 20 -
740 1,978 (2,013
Equity dividends paid to Shareholders {1,220} 1,216) {095)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before management
of liquid resources and financing 30 1,648 156 (955)
Management of liquid resources and financing
Movement in short-term investments and fixed deposits (nety {608) {254) 974
Financing 21 (400) (182} (205)
Increasef(decrease) in cash in the year 29 640 280} (186}
AstraZeneca Annual Report and Forrg 20-F 2000
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Basis of consolidation and presentation of financial information

estimates and agsumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Continuing operations
Continuing operations include the ongoing Healthcare operations of the Group and "Other trading’, including Marlow Foods.

Discontinued operations

Following the demerger of the Zeneca Agrochemicals business on 13 November 2000 and its subsequent merger with Novartis’
agribusiness to form Syngenta, Zeneca Agrochemicals results for the year have been reported as discontinued operations,
together with the results of the former Zeneca Specialties business, which was sold on 30 June 1999.

The following new accounting standards were adopted during the year:

UK Financial Reporting Standard 15 - ‘Tangible Fixed Assets’ sets out the principles of accounting for initial measurement,
valuation and depreciation of tangible fixed assets, with the exception of investment properties. The impact of adoption on
AstraZeneca’s financial statements was not material.

UK Financial Reporting Standard 16 — *‘Current Tax’ specifies how current tax, in particular withholding tax and tax credits, should
be reflected in financial statements. The impact of adoption on AstraZeneca’s financial statements was not material.

In addition, the following new accounting standards have been issued but have not yet been adopted:

UK Financial Reporting Standard 17 — 'Retirement Benefits' is applicable for accounting periods ending on or after 22 June 2003,
with disclosure requirements applicable for accounting periods ending on or after 22 June 2001. The Standard sets out the
requirements for accounting for retirement benefits, including the fair value of assets and liabilities arising from employer’s
obligations, treatment of refated costs, and leval of disclosure, AstraZeneca has not yet determined the effect on the financial
statements of the adoption of the Standard.

UK Financial Reporting Standard 18 - 'Accounting Policies’ is applicable for accounting periods ending on or after 22 June 2001.
The Standard requires an entity to adopt accounting policies most appropriate to its particular circumstances, to review them
regularly for appropriateness, and to disclose sufficient information to enable users of the financial statements to understand the
policies adopted and how they have been implemented. The impact of adoption on AstraZeneca’s financial statements is not
anticipated to be material.

UK Financial Reporting Standard 19 - '‘Deferred Tax' is applicable for accounting periods ending on or after 23 January 2002. The
Standard requires a form of full provision to be made for deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from timing differences between
the recognition of gains and iosses in the financial statements and their recognition in a tax computation. The notes 1o the
accounts give a broad indication of the effect of moving to a fully deferred basis {prior o the application of discounting, which the
new standard allows, but does not mandate) but AstraZeneca has not yet determined the specific figures which wiil arise from the
adoption of the detailed provisions of the new Standard.
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Accounting policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the market value of certain current
asset investments held by Group subsidiaries as described below, in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and United
Kingdom generally accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP). Where there are significant differences to US GAAP these

have been described in the UK/US GAAP section on pages 115 to 124. The net profit and shareholders’ funds in accordance with
International Accounting Standards are not significantly different from those presented under UK GAAP. The following paragraphs
describe the main accounting policies under UK GAAR The accounting policies of some overseas subsidiaries and associated

undertakings do not conform with UK GAAP and, where appropriate, adjustments are made on consolidation in order to present
the Group financial statements on a consistent basis.

On 13 Novernber 2000 AstraZeneca demerged Zeneca Agrochemicals, which was merged with the Novartis agribusiness to form
Syngenta AG. The impact of the demerger on the AstraZeneca financial statements is shown in Note 27,

Fixed Assels, Depreciation and Amortisation

AstraZeneca’s policy is 10 write off the cost of each tangible fixed asset evenly over its estimated remaining life. Reviews are made
periodically of the estimated remaining lives of individual productive assets, taking account of commercial and technclogical
obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear. Under this policy it becomes impracticable to calculate average asset lives exactiy.
Howaver, the total lives approximate 1o 28 years for buildings and 15 years for plant and equipment. Intangible assets, including
patents, acquired are capitalised and amaortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives (generally not exceeding
20 years} in line with the benefits accruing. If related praducts fail, the remaining unamortised amounts are immediately written off

to revenue expense. Finance costs and internally developed intangible assets are not capitalised. All fixed assets are reviewed for
impairment when there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Environmental Liabilities

AstraZeneca is exposed to environmental liabilities relating to its past operations, principally in respect of soil and groundwater
remediation costs. Provisions for these costs are made when there is a present obligation, it is probable that expenditure on
remedial work will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the cost,

Foreign Currencies

Profit and loss accounts in foreign currencies are translated into US dollars at average rates for the relevant accounting periods.
Assets and liabiiities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the Group balance sheet.

Exchange gains and 1osses on short-term foreign currency porrowings and deposits are inctuded within net interest payabie.
Exchange differences on ab other transactions, except relevant foreign currency loans, are taken 1o operating profit. in the
consolidated financial statements exchange differences arising on consofidation of the net investments in overseas subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates are taken directly 1o reserves via the statement of total recognised gaing and logses.

Goodwill

Cn the acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed to the net assets acquired. Goodwill arises where the fair value of the
consideration given for a business exceeds the fair value of such net assets. Goodwill arising on acquisitions since 1998 is
capitalised and amortised over its estimated useful fife (generaliy not exceeding 20 years). The Group's policy up to and including
1997 was to eliminate goodwill arising upon acquisitions against reserves. Such goodwill will remain eliminated against reserves
until disposal or termination (including the planned disposal or termination when there are indications that the value of the goodwill
has been permanently impaired} of the previously acquired business, when the profit or loss on disposal or termination will be
calculated after charging the gross amount, at current exchange rates, of any such goodwill. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment
when there are indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Investments

An associate is an undertaking, not being a subsidiary or joint venture, in which AstraZeneca has a participating interest and over
whose commercial and financial policy decisions AstraZeneca exercises significant influence.

Ajoint venture is an entity in which AstraZeneca holds an interest on a long-term basis and which is jointly controlled by
AstraZeneca and one or more other venturers under a contractual arrangement.

AstraZeneca’s share of the profits less losses of al significant joint ventures and associates is included in the Group proft and loss
account on the equity accounting basis or, in the case of joint ventures, the gross equity accounting basis. The holding value of
significant associates and joint ventures in the Group balance sheet is caloulated by reference to AstraZeneca’s equity in the net

assets of such associates and joint ventures, as shown by the most recent accounts available. adiusted where appropriate and
including goodwill on acquisitions made since 1 January 1998.

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost and reviewed for impairment if there are indications that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

Current asset investrnents held by the Group's insurance company subsidiaries, to the extent that they are actively matched
against insurance fliabilities, are valued at market value and unrealised gains and losses are taken directly to reserves via the
statement of total recognised gains and losses. Realised gains and losses are taken to the profit and loss account.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Leases

Assets held under finance ieases are capitalised and inciuded in tangible fixed assets at fair value. Each asset is depreciated over
the shiorter of the lease term or its useful life. The obligations related ta finance leases, net of finance charges in respect of future
periods, are included as appropriate under creditors due within, or creditors due after, one year. The interest element of the rental
obligation is allocated o accounting periods during the lease term to reflect a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the obligation for each accounting period. Rentals under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

Post-retirement Benefits

The pension costs relating 1o UK retirement plans are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries.
The amounts so determined include the regular cost of providing the benefits under the plans which it is intended should remain as
a fevel percentage of cumrent and expected future eainings of the employees covered under the plans. Variations from the regular
pension cost are spread on & systematic basis over the estimated average remaining service lives of current employees in the
plans. Retirement plans of non-UK subsidiaries are accounted for in accordance with local conditions and practice. With minor
exceptions, these subsidiaries recognise the expected cost of providing pensions on a systematic basis over the average
remaining service lives of employees in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The costs of providing
post-retirement benefits other than pensions, principally healthcare, are charged to the profit and loss account on a congistent
basis over the average service lives of employees. Such costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent
qualified actuaries.

Research and Development
Research and development expenditure is charged to profit in the year in which it is incurred.

Stock Valuation

Finished goods are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value and raw materials and other stocks at the lower of cost or
replacement price. The first in, first out or an average method of valuation is used. In determining cost, depreciation is included but
seliing expenses and certain overhead expenses (principally central administration costs) are excluded. Net realisable value is
determined as estimated sefling price iess costs of disposal.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profits for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing differences
between the freatment of certain items for taxation and for accounting purposes. However, no provision is made for taxation
deferred by reliefs untess there is reasonable evidence that such deferred taxation will be payable in the foreseeable future.

Turnover
Turnover exciudes inter-company turnover and value added taxes. Revenue is recognised at the point at which title passes.

Principal Financial Instruments

Forward foreign exchange contracts for existing transactions are stated at fair value at the balance sheet date and the gains/losses
arising are recognised in the Group profit and loss account. Contracts to hedge anticipated exposures are not marked to market
and gains/lossas are deferred until the transaction is completed.

Forward currency option contracts are not marked to market as they are designated hedges and reduce the Group's exposure to
risk. The gains/losses on these contracts are deferred until the date the underlying transaction being hecdged is completed.

Interest rate swaps are accounted for on an accruals basis. Cross-currency swaps are translated at year end exchange rates;
gainsflosses arising are included in the measurement of the related liabilities and dealt with in the Group profit and loss account or
reserves as appropriate,
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Notes relating to the financial statements

1 Composition of the Group

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of AstraZeneca PLC and its subsidiaries, of which there were
235 at 31 December 2000. Owing to local conditions and to avoid undue delay in the presentation of the Group financial
statements, Salick Health Care prepares its financial statements to 30 Novembaer.

2 Note of hisior'rcai cost profits and losses

There were no materal differences between reported profits and losses and historical cost profits and losses on ordinary activities
before taxation.
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Notes reiating to the financial staternents

Notes relating to the financial statements

3 Group operating profit
Continuing operations Discontinued operations

Pre Pre
exceptional  Exceptional  exceptional  Exceptional 2000
items items items items Total
USSR .1, SRR - NS ..
Group turnover 15,804 - 2,299 - 18,103

Operating costs N _ _ o ,
Costatsales e fareYy () {1.299) - ..8491)

DISTIDUNON COSYS e {219) - (79) T (286)

Research and development e St (2820) . {51) (222) - (2,899

Selling, general and administrative expenses {5.032) (260) (399} - {5,691)
{12,043) (322) {1,996) - {(14,361)

Other operating income

Covernment Qramts = - N - -

Royalties

Other income

Group operating profit

Ch ded above

... for depreciation

JTIOTBTOMSANON s BB e N

- for impairment

Gross profit, as defined by the Companies Act 1985 11,623 {11 1,000 - 12,612

4 Share of operating profits/(losses) of joint ventures and associates
Continuing cperations Discontinued operations

Pre Pre
exceptional Exceptional  exceptional  Exceptional 2000
items items ftems items Total
R . 1 SO L. NS .4 $m $m
Share of operating {loss)/prafit of joint ventures {12) (137) - = (149)
Share of operating profit of agsociates - ~ - - -
(12) (137) - - (149}

The Group has taken an exceptional charge of $137m to provide for impairment of its 50% interest in the seed company Advanta,
including a write off of $49m of related goocawill previously taken to reserves (see Note 5).

On 1 July 1998, Astra Merck Inc., the joint venture with Merck Inc., was restructured in connection with the formation of a new
operating entity and the results of these US operations have been fully consolidated since this date. Prior to this restructuring, the
joint venture was accounted for, under UK GAAP, on the equity accounting basis in these financial statements. The Group's 50%
share of Astra Merck Inc.'s results in the first six months of 1998, which are included within ‘Continuing Operations', and the share
of net assets at 30 June 1998 were as follows:

6 months

to 30 June

1998

Profit and loss account BT | R $m
Turnover B e , o ... 857
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation e 536
Taxation {210)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 326

AstraZenaca Annual Report and Form 20-F 2000




Financial Statements 67
Notes relating to the fnancial statements

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Continuing operations Discontinued operations
Pre Pre Pre Pre
excepticnal  Exceptional exceptional  Exceptional 1899 exceptional  Exceptional exceptional  Exceptional 1998
items items iterns items Totai items iterns items items Total
15,134 - 3,311 - 18,445 11,318 - 4,084 - 15,402

(11,704) {1,037) (3.022) {125) (15,888 (8.891) {72)

Continuing operations Discontinued operations

Continuing operations Discontinied operations

Pre Pre Pre Pre
excepticnal  Exceptional exceptional  Exceptional 1998 exceptiona!  Exceptional exceptional  Exceptional 1998
items items items items Total items iterns itens items Total
_____ Sm . %m oEmo o Smo o $mo $m$m$m$m$m
(10) - 1 - & . 534 T 4 = ... 538
- - 2 - 2 - - 1 - 1
{10) - 3 - (7} 534 - 5 - 539
30 June
1998
PRI $m
Fixed assets e e . , e N ....985
Current assets o e L R - 1
Creditors due after one year or more 30)
Net assets 536
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Notes relating to the financial statements

gwé;c;eptional items

2000 15909 1998
e e _ $m $m .8 m
Integration and synergy costs . (322) 864) ... -
AstraZonecaLP restructufing costs. e . @) . . 72
Salick Heafth Gare — impairment and rationalisation costs e T 148D
Granting of US Jmdur marketing rights - - 163
Continuing operations L N < I AR <2 91
Discontinued ~ Agrochemicals restructuring costs - {125) -
Exceptional items inciuded in operating profits (322) {1,162} a1
Continuing operations
Provision of impairment of investment in Advanta B.V. (after charging $49m
of goodwill previously written off 10 reserves) (137) - -
Share of operating {loss)/profit of joint ventures and associates (137} - -
Discontinued operations
Costs retated to the demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals
and formation of Syngenta o S o (150} - ‘ -
Gain on disposal of Specialties business (after charging
$406m of gooowill previously written oftto feseves) S 237 -
Lass on closure of organophasphate intermediates business - - {46}
Profits less losses on sale, closure, or demerger of operations {150} 237 (46)
Continuing operations
Merck "Trigger Event’ payment and related costs ‘ ‘ o - (BOG -
Other merger costs - {(204) -
Merger costs - (1,013 -
Profit on sale of fixed assets — continuing operations - - 17
Total exceptional items before taxation (609) {1,938 62
Net taxation credit/(charge) 28 351 4
Total exceptional items after taxation {581) {1,587) 58

The integration and synergy programme initiated in 1999 continued during 2000, with further exceptional charges of $322m,
principally for manpower related costs, advisors' fees, and contractors. This brings the cumulative charges to $1,186m against a
total estimated cost of $1,340m.

The Group has taken an exceptional charge of $137m to provide for impairment of its 50% interest in the seed company Advanta,
including a write off of $49m of related goodwil previously taken to reserves, With the demerger of Agrochemicals, the seeds
business no longer has a strategic fit within AstraZeneca, is loss making, therg is a dispute with the other 50% shareholder, and
some of Advanta’s US subsidiaries face significant potential litigation claims.

The costs redated to the demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals and formation of Syngenta include advisors' fees, the costs of
separating computer systems, employes refated costs, and environmental and occupationat health provisions. The exceptional
charge was reduced by the gain on disposal of products whose sale was required by the competition authorities as a condition of
the creation of Syngenta. Tax relief on the net exceptional costs was more than offset by the provision for capital taxes arising out
of the restructuring of the business in preparation for demerger, resulting in a net tax cost of $50m.

Detaits of the 1999 exceptional items are as follows:

* A charge of $864m for the costs committed by the end of 1999 on the AstraZeneca integration and synergy programme
{including $379m manpower related costs, $160m legal and other advisors' costs, $145m in respect of information systems
integration, $45m for asset impairment and $135m other costs) of which $316m relates to integration and $548m to synergy.
Job reductions in excess of 2,800 were achieved in 1899.

+ Acharge of $28m (1998 $72m}) to complete the programme to rationalise Astra's US operations following the Astra Merck Inc.
restructuring in mid 1998,
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5 Exceptional items {continued)

+ Acharge of $145m to recognise the conseguence of refocussing the Salick Health Care business on a smafler base of
profitable cancer centres and the impairment of certain fixed asset carrying vaiues ($78m) and debtors in the light of the
prospects for the business.

e A charge of $125m in refation to restructuring projects commenced by Zeneca Agrochemicals resulting in some 600 job
reductions and including $26m of asset impairments.

s A gain of $237m before tax realised on the sale of Zeneca Speciatties ($140m after 1ax) after aliowing for the write back of
goodwill (3406m) previcusly charged to reserves, costs of separation from other AstraZeneca businesses {including $83m asset
impairments) and provisions for pension liabilities.

s Merger costs of $1,013m, including the $809m trigger event payment to Merck (including related costs) following the merger
of Astra and Zeneca and asset impairments of $6m. This research and development payment was made in exchange for the
release by Merck of certain ¢laims under a license agreement with a Merck affifiate (see Note 36).

The 1998 exceptional charges included rationalisation costs of Astra’s US operations (as noted above), a gain on granting US

Imdur marketing rights of $163m, a loss on closure of the organophosphates intermediates business of $46m and profit on sale
of fixed assets of $17m.

Discount on liability (19) -
Joint ventures (3) @
{170) (133}

Interest receivable and similar income from investments
Securities .. . S e 30 0.8
Short-term deposits e e e 192 95 .30
BXChaNge QaIN e 8 T T
Joint ventures 1 1 2
269 166 180
Net interest receivable/(payable) 135 {4} 47

The discounting charge above relates to amounts owed in respect of the reacquisition of certain distribution rights which are
payable over the next four years. All interest has been classified within continuing operations as the management of the Group's
liquidity and funding is carried cut by the central treasury function and it is not practicable to allocate interest to the different
reporting segments.
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Notes relating to the financial statements

7 Taxation

Profit on ordinary activities bafore taxation, as shown in the Group profit and foss account, was as follows:
2000 1009 1998
________________ .. 5m $m $m
United Kingdom e _ . e 670
Overseas 3,039 1,783 3,029
3,847 1,959 3,699
Taxes on profit on ordinary activities were as folfows:
UK taxatlon O S U U P U U P U PO O PP ..
.......... COPOMAtiONEX e e N OO 288 246
...Double taxation refief W2 . o R (31
Deferred taxation 59 {58} {21}
147 141 194
........................................... 1 '070
Deferred taxation 79
1,149
Share of taxation of joint ventures
and associates 3 1 214
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 1,209 815 1,085

rates for the Group in the territories in which these operations are based.

taxes and/or UK taxation (after allowing for double taxation relief) if they were to be distributed as dividends.

Exceptional items included in tax on ordinary activities

Tax (credity/charge on exceptional items” (28)

The charge for taxation has been allocated between continuing operations and discontinued operations based on the effective tax

UK and overseas taxation have been provided at cumrent rates on the profits eamed for the periods covered by the Group financial
statements. To the extent that dividends remitted from overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are expected to result
in additional taxes, appropriate amounts have been provided, No taxes have been provided for unremitted earnings of Group
companies overseas as these are, in the main, considered perrmnanently employed in the businesses of these companies and, in
the case of joint ventures and associates, the taxes would not be material. Cumulative unremitted earmings of overseas subsidiaries
and refated undertakings totalied approximately $5,679m at 31 December 2000. Unremitted earnings may be liable to overseas

{351) 4

* Includes deferred tax relief of $66m (1989 $375m, 1998 $7m).

Statement of total recognised gains and fosses

$22m, 1998 $2m credit), and have been reported in the statement of total recognised gains and losses.
Tax reconcifiation to UK statutory rate

taxation.
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total recognised gains and losses. The tax charge on such currency translation differences amounted to $42m in 2000 (1999

The table shown reconciles the United Kingdom statutory tax charge to the Group’s charge on profit on ordinary activities before
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........................................................................................................... 3,847 1,959
Taxation charge at United Kingdorn corporation tax rate
0F 30% for 2000 (30.25% for 1999, S1%M0r1998) o e, s 993 1,147
PrOVISIOnS nOt allowable T - I 17
__________ (21) 280 (53)
155 235, -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 114) @ee) .61
125 {27} 66
Taxes on profit on ordinary activities 1,299 815 1,086
Balance sheet 2000 1993 1998
___________ e Smo_ %m_ &m
Deferred taxation asset movement
At beginning of year

Profit and loss account

Other movements

At end of year

Deferred taxation

The amounts of deferred taxation accounted for in the Group balance sheet an

d the full potential amounts of deferred taxation
comprised the following deferred tax liabilities and assets:

Year ended 31 December 2000 Year ended 31 December 1999

Partial Not Fult Partial Not Full

provision  accounted provision provision  accounted provision

for for for for for for

deferred deferred deferred deferrad deferred deferred

tax tax tax tax tax tax

Deferred tax liabilities .

UK fxedassets 298 o - 455 455
Non-UK fixed assets

- 20 .. 8. ...8303 36
Capital gains rolled over

Interest accruals
Other

Environmental

Pensmnandpostretlrementbeneflts
Other

Valuation allowance

Deferred tax asset/{iiability) 222 {144) 78 369 {129) 240
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8 Dividendsw

2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998
Per Per Per
o Share Share Share $m $m $m
AstraZeneca PLC
interim, paid on 23 October 2000 .§0.23 8023 " 408 408 -
Second interim, to be confirmed as final,
payable 9 April 2001 $0.47 $0.47 - 830 834 -
$0.70 $0.70 - 1,236 1,242 -
Dividend in specie - demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals 1,669 ~ -
Zeneca Group PLC
O e .23 . S - 220
Final - - £0.28 - - 448
- - £0.42 - - 668
Astra AB
Dividend - - SEK1.90 - - 393
2,905 1,242 1,061

" The record date for the payment of Zgneca's final dividend and Astra’s dividend for the 1998 fiscal vear was 9 April 1989, Former Astra stockholders who accepted the merger offer prior to the
record date received a dividend corresponding 10 28 pance per AstraZeneca share (total payment $358my). Astra stockholders who did not accept the merger offer prior to the record date

received Astra’s proposed dividend of SEK1.80 per share.

The demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals is recorded in the Group accounts at the book vaiue of the net assets which were

deconsolidated, $2,059m (net of minority interest), together with $813m of related goodwill which had previously been written off

10 reserves, less debt and liabilities assumed by Zeneca Agrochemicals, $1,203m, giving a dividend in specie of $1,668m.

.... N 1'o s SO .- A1
Net profit for the financial year before exceptional items ($m) S L1 A 2,730 2,553
Exceptional items after tax ($m) (see Note 5} {581) {1,587} 58
Net profit for the financial year ($m) 2,538 1,143 2611
Earnings per Ordinary Share before exceptional items ) $1.76  $1564  $1.44
{Losgs)/gain per Orclinary Share on exceptional items ($) {30.32) ($0.90) $0.03
Earrings per Ordinary Share {$) $1.44 $0.64 $1.47
Diluted earnings per Ordinary Share before exceptionalitems (8) $1.76 $1.54 .. $1.43
Dited {oss)/gain per Ordinary Shara on exceptional iterns ($) ($0.32) {$0.50) $0.03
Diluted earnings per Ordinary Share {$) $1.44 $0.64 $1.46
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue

for basic earnings (mitions) e 1,768 1776 1,779
Dilutive impact of share options outstanding {millions) 2 3 4
Dituted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue {millions) 1,770 1,779 1,783

There are no options, warrants or rights outstanding in respect of unissued shares except for employee share option schemes.
The number of options outstanding and the weighted average exercise price of these options is shown in Note 33. The eamings
figures used in the calculations above are unchanged for diluted earnings per Ordinary Share. Earnings per Ordinary Share before
exceptional items has been calculated to eliminate the impact of exceptionat tems on the rasults of the business.
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10 Segment mfon-natlon

Classes of Business

A description of the principal activities of the classes of business is given in the Operational Review on pages 1o . The Zeneca
Agrochemicals business is treated as discontinued foflowing its demerger from the Group and its merger with the crop protection
and seeds activiies of Novartis to form Syngenta on 13 Novemnber 2000.

Turnover
2000 1869 1298
.................................................................................................................................................. . Sm _...%m 8
Heathoare S 15898 15042 11,223
| Other tradlng 106 9z 95
Continuing operations 15,804 15,134 11,318
Discontinued operations _'Ag_rochemmals External 2,299 2,657 _?.7’90
. . - PSR - 3 -
Duscontmued operanon__s___ Specmaltles External - 654 1,294
Intra-Group - 3 8
2,299 3,317 4,092
e e ... 18103 18451 15410
Intra-Group eliminations - ) {8}
GIOUPWIMOVES 18103 18,445 15402
Share of joint venture turnover 195 208 1,080
Group turnover and share of joint venture turnover 18,298 18,653 16,482
The Group’s policy is to transfer products internally at external market prices.
Operating profit/floss) Profit{loss) before
after exceptionals interest and taxation
2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998
.................................................................................................. Sm 5w $m $m . Sm _§m
Proflt/(loss) arising in
Healthcare ‘ ‘ 3,689 2,558 2864 3692 1645 2,664
Other trading 27) (25) 27) (27) (25) {10)
Continuing operations 3,662 2,533 2,637 3,665 1,520 2,654
Discontinued operations — AQFPChem'Ca'S 346 12 359 . 196 142 .....359
Discontinued operations — Specialties - 71 146 - 308 100
4,008 2746 3142 3861 1970 S 313
Share of operating (loss)/profit of joint ventures
and associates (149) (7) 539
3,712 1,963 3,652

Corporate overheads have been allocated to each business segment on a consistent basis over the periods presented. The effect
of these allocations is not material.
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Total assets

Net assets/(liabilities)

2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998

) e e Sm_ $m $m  $m $m $m
Healthcare . e 12088 7,496 8978 13162 12,403 10,225
Other trading 19 (108} 88 496 564 609
Continuing OpErations o 7,604 7,388 7063 .. 13658 12967 10834
Discontinued operations — AQfOChem'Ca*S e 18802027 T 2BT8 L 29TT
Discontinued operations — Specialties {126} (164) 656 3 19 1,002
| o 7,478 9,084 9746 = 13,661 15,865 14,813

Intra-Group e'lmmaﬂons ......................................................... - T T (12) 002 . 070
7 2,064 1,144 1,074 4,785 3,939 3,520

Investments in JO!rI‘I ventures and associates - 114 162 - 114 162
9,542 10,342 10,982 18,434 19,816 18,478

" Non-operating assets include short-term investments and cash. short-term borrowings, loans, and deblors and creditors not attributable to individual business segments.

Degpreciation, amortisation

Capital expenditure™ and impairment

2000 1889 1998 2000 1959 1998
. $m $m $m 5m $m $m
HEBINGEKE eV SO ! 2963 .. 1078 ... 884 1.004 617
Other trading 4 19 21 6 21 22
Continuing operations 1,248 2,982 1,097 890 1025 639
Discontinued operations - Agrochemicals 183 194 333 & 471 126
Discontinued operations — Specialties - 55 96 - H 56
1,401 3,231 1,526 1,011 1,287 821

* Capital expeniditure includes expenditure on goodwilt and intangible assets. HealthCare capital sxpenditure in 1999 includad the $957m first option payrnent 1o Merck and $720m in réspect of the

reacquisition of marketing rights.

Employzses

Avel

f people employed by the Group'ln

10,000 9,700 9,100

United Kingdom

Continental Ewrope 20,400 19,200 17,000
TheAmericas 14200 12900 12,700
Asia, Africa & Australa5|a 5,500 5,400 6,000
Continuing operations 7 50,100 47,200 44,800
Discontinued operations — Agrachemicals o 8900 8100 . 8000
Discontinued operations - Specialties - 2,700 5,500

The number of people employed by the Group at the end of 2000 was 52,300 (1982 55,200, 1998 60,800).
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Cperating profit
after exceptional tems

Profit after excepticnal tems
before interest and taxation

Tom R T e o
United Kingdom e 666 443 652 661 . 278 548
Continental Europe 1,084 1872 1160 943 1515 1,163
The Americas 90 1,740 ©22) 1,344
Asia, Africa & Australasia 135 172 39 133
Confinuing operations 220828882837 3,516 1510 . 3,188
Dsconfinued operations - Agrochemicals 346 1ap %9 16 44 360
Discontinued operations — Specialties - 71 146 - 309 104

4,008 2,746 3,142 3,712 1,963 3,652

United Kingdom .
Continental Europe

TSRS 184 1180 1,131
Asia, Afica & Australasia 733 747 2,791
Continuing operations e 7607 7388 7063
Jsoontnued operations - Agioctemicals oo 1880 2027
Discontinued operations — Specialties (126) (164) 656

7,481 9,084 9,746

Tangible fixed assets

1999 1098
$m

United Kingdom

1,531

Sweden

United States
Cthers

Continuing operations N
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10 Segment information {continued}

Geographic areas

The tables below show information by geographic area and, for turnover and tangible fixed assets, material countries. The figures
for each area show the turnover, operating profit and profit on ordinary activities before interest and taxation made by companies
tocated in that area/country, together with net operating assets and tangible fixed assets owned by the same companies; export

sales and the related profit are included in the areas from which those sales were made.

Turnover
2000 1999 1998
S Sm $m $m
United Kingdom o

I8l e e 997 LMs 1116
Intra-Group 2,155 1,905 1,653
3,152 3,020 2,669

Continental Burope e ,
France 861 864 723
Germany 778 849 861
Y e e 532 ..545 .48
L 297 . 284 245
L, 402 . 441 273
SWEOBN e 601 S99 .83
Others 891 950 . 855
intra-Group 1,371 1,203 862
5,733 5,735 4,306
The Americas e e e I e
CBEOE | e 479 419 367
United States” 8,129 7.344 4,331
North Armerica 8608 7768 4,698
Brazil 18 132 179
Others 186 12 137
Intra-Group 183 201 182
9,110 8,258 5,196

Asia, Affica & Australasia

567

Japan
Others . e e el el e e e e e e e e 5??
Intra-Group 74
1,695 1,550 1,218

Continuing operations 7 _ 19,690 18,663 13,989
Discontinued operations — Agrochemicals e 21096 3871 4117
Discontinued operations — Specialties - 784 1,653
e S 23,086 23318 19,659
Intra-Group gliminations (4,983) 4,873 {4,257)
18,103 18,448 15,402

" As disclosed above, sales in the United States do not include the Group's share of salas of Astra Merck Inc., which amounted to $857m for the first six months of 1998.

Export sales from the UK totalled $3,429m for the year ended 31 December 2000 (1999 $3,587m, 1998 $3,388m).
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United Kingdom
Continental Eur_o_pe

...... LA . . 4’555 . 4’050
The Americas 8,992 8,140 5,068
Asia, Africa & Australasia 1,668 1,576 1,312
Continuing operations N 15,804 15,134 11,318
Seoontbued operalions - Agrochemleals T 2209 . 2.857 2,790
Discontinued operations — Specialties - 654 1,294
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11 Tangible fixed assets

Capital
expenditure
and assets in Total
Land and Flant and course of tangible
buildings  equipment construction assels
At beginning of year S, 2795 6361 1,039 10,185
Exchange adjustments e e e e (212 .. (465) L R— (r64}
Q_gpita[ expenditure S _ _ 167 290 a0 1,366
Transfer of assets into use 179 404 (583) -
Agrochemicals demerger R e 339) | (1,678) (en ..@2198
Disposals and other movements (38) (355) (5) (398)
At end of year 2,552 4,557 1,092 8,201
Depreciation
Atbeginning of year . e 892 3,362 .
Exchenge adjustments . e  fs6) - 314
Charge for year S N 596“ - 7 687
impairment o - _ 7 B 8 - B 26
Agrochemicals demerger e AL (891) - ... 0002
Disposals and other movements (53} (314) - {367)
At end of year 739 2,505 - 3,244
Net book value at 31 December 2000 1,813 2,052 1,092 4,957
Net book value at 31 December 1999 1,943 2,999 1,039 5,981

Capital expenditure in the year of $1,366m (1999 $1,476m) did not include any capitalised finance ieases (1999 $nil); cash
expenditure on tangible fixed assets was $1,347m (1999 $1,490m). Land and buildings includes non-depreciated land which cost
$179m (1999 $206m).

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e BB
The net book value of land and buildings comptised
Freeholds ) e e e o 12809 1,982
Long leases {over 50 years unexpired) o o .2z b
Short leases 2 6

1,813 1,943

AstraZeneca Annual Report and Form 20-F 2000




Nanca slalements 7w

Notes relating to the financial statements

12 Goodwiil and intangible assets

intangible
Goodwill assals Total
o §m sn. . sm
Cost
At beginning of year U, 1184 | 3,223 4,407
Exchange adjustments o 2 ler9) .. 1800
Addiions w3 %
Agrochemicals demerger (214) (128 342)
Disposals and other movement: 9 - 9)
At end of year 972 2,819 3,7
Depreciation
At beginning of year S, 99 572 671
Exchange adiustments e n. .. 83 (63)

Agrochemicals demerger 29 (@0 g2
Disposals and other movements 8 - (8
At end of year 122 718 840
Net book value at 31 December 2000 850 2,101 2,951
Net book value at 31 December 1999 1,085 2,651 3,736
13 Fixed asset investmﬂents
Joint Other investments

ventwes  Associates Listed Urlisted Total
...................................................................................................................................................................... $m oS S $m $m
Cost
At beginning of year w8 .8 8t 20 212
Additions B 2. T e 6 8
Agrochemicals demerger B . - ©) )
Disposals and other movements, including exchange (4) (3} (51} B) {64}
At end of year 134 - - 11 145
Share of post-acquisition reserves
Al beginning of year o _ (80 3 T T 27
Retained loss finciuding provision for impairment $88my @08 @) - = {108)
Exchange 1 - - - 1
At end of year (134 - - - {134)
Net book value at 31 December 2000 - - - 11 11
Net book value at 31 December 1999 108 B 51 20 185

The market value of the listed investments at 31 December 2000 was $nil (1299 $111m).

The fair values of the unlisted investments are not materially different from their carrying values.
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13 Fuxed asset investments (continued)

Share of joint venture assets and liabilities

2000 1999
............................................................................................................... _ _ . ... MU L1
Gross assets B , 98 218
Gross liabilities (98} (1109
- 108
14 Stocks e " T
2000 1999
________________________________________________ , , _ o Sm $m
Raw materials and consumables , _ B . . 543 981
Finished goods and goods for resale 794 876
2,105 2,156
15 Debtors
‘ 2000 1999
$m_. $m
Amounts due within one year -
Trade debtors o ... 702 302
Less: Amounts provided for doubtful debts (39} {118)
2,663 2,908
D O B O e e ne ....I8
OO O 0TS e e, 08819
Prepayments and accrued income* 358 225
3,607 3,830
Amounts due after more than one year
Deferred taxation e . - 189 435
Other debtors e . [T m
Prepayments and accrued income* 88 94
353 640
3,960 4,470
* Figures incluge prepaid pensicn costs (Note 33).
Provisions for doubtful debts
2000 1999 1998
: S R, m $m $m
Balance at beginning of year 118 139 127
Profit and loss account Charge e 34 60 39
Amounts utilised and other movements (incl. Agrochem:cals demerger] (113) (81) 27
Balance at end of year 39 118 139
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16 Short-term investments

2000 1989
PR RP PP, e s PP PP PP $m $m
Listed debt securities _ e e e e : 441 542
Other isted INVESIMENTS e e : S 46 z
Other debt securities - 17
Investment securies R .. 4T 559
Fixed deposits 2,942 2,300

3,429 2,859

The Group's insurance subsidiaries hold cash and short-term investments totalling $206m (1999 $234m), of which $132m
(1999 $150m} is required to mest insurance solvency requirements and which, as a result, is not readily available for the general
purposes of the Group. In addition, some $350m of short-term investments shown above are committed as security against
deferred payments due under a contractual obligation of the Group (see Note 36}. The market value of cther listed investments
wag $165m at the year end.

17 Short-term borrowings

2000 1999

N e e S sm

BT DO O I TGS e e e e e e
B SOOI e 21 38
Secured by floating charge , L 6
Unsecured 91 299
123 343

Other borrowings (unsecured) 3 1
126 344
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18 COther creditors

..

2000 1099

S $m_ $m

5@9!.‘.9!?,5’.9?..W!?b!ﬂ..??.@..!ﬁ?’f ............................................................................................................................... S
Corporate taxation R 891 .84
Value added and payroll taxes and so<:|al securuty _______________________ 76 55
Other creditors 1,132 1753
Accruals Las T4
wadends to Shareho!ders 830 834
6,683 6.640

Amounts due after more than One year

Other creditors 296 460
Grants not yet credited o income - 2
296 462

Agrochemicals demerger and $89m in respect of the Specialties disposal

and other minor restructurings.

Included in other creditors are amounts totalling $117m (1999 $171m) to meet insurance obligations of the Group’s insurance
subsidiaries. Also included in other creditors are amounts due within one year in connection with the Group's exceptional charges
as detailed in Note 5. The amounts comprise $248m in respect of synergy and integration costs, $56m in respect of the

19 Loans
Repayrnent 2000 1999
_______________________ Dates sm $m
Secured loans __ | ,
Securedbyfixedcharge 2006/2007 ¥ 19
Secured by floating charge 2003/2010 - 28
Total secured 34 47
Unsecuredioans
US do“ars . e L e e e e e e s e e R
_Barkloan - variablg rate 2001 80 80
,,,,,,,, 6.:3% Guaranteed notes 2003 283 198
,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 7% Guaraniteed debentures o 2023 205 . .295
Others 2002/201 3 27 153
Total unsecured 685 726
Total loans 719 773
Less: current mstalments of loans {88) (34)
Loans due after more than one year 631 739
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20 Financial instruments

A discussion of the Group's objective, palicy and strategy in respect of risk management and the use of financial instruments is
included in the financial review on pages * 10 ». The following disclosures exclude all short-term debtors and creditors.

Interest rate risks of financial assets and liabilities

The interest rate profile, after taking account of interest and currency swaps, of the financial assets and fiabilities of the Group as at

31 December 2000 was:

Financial Weighted Weighted
assets/liabilities average average
) on which fixed period for
Floating Fixed no interestis interest  which rate
rate rate  paid/recelved Total rate is fixed
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, SN . M:...o NS .. AT . % ...t
Financial liabilities
US dollar . R 655 . 0 377 1,042 08 .92
L - .26 e T
Other 118 36 154 5.9 4.3
799 46 377 1,222
Financial assets
US doliar o e 3,538 - ~... .. 3538
U0 e O T TR 1
Other 775 - 57 832
4,404 - 57 4,461

The fioating rate financial liabilities comprise largely of fixed rate debt that has been swapped into ficating rate debt. One long
dated $300m USD bond reverts back 1o a fixed rate in 2009. The financial liabilities also include $126m of short-term bank
borrowings and overdrafts, bearing interest at rates fixed by reference to local interbank rates.

Financial assets on which no interest is received comprise of equity investments held by the Group.

Financial liabllities on which no interest is paid comprise deferred payments due relating to the reacguisition of certain

marketing rights.

The financial assets principally comprise cash on overnight deposit and short-term investments with an average maturity of 40
days. These include deposits where the interest rate is fixed until maturity but, as the original maturity is less than one year, they
are classified as floating rate financial instrumenits. The benchrmark rates for financial assets are the LIBID rate for euro and US
coliar liquidity balances and the average Federal Funds effective rate for US dollar overnight balances. Financial assets include
$11m of other fixed asset investiments on which no interest is received.

Currency exposures

One hundred per cent of the Group's transactional curransy exposures an waorking capital balances, which typically extend for up
to three manths, are hedged using forward foreign exchange contracts. As a result, as at 31 December 2000, there were no
material monetary assets or liabilities in currencies other than the functionat currencies of the Group companies concerned, having
taken into account the effect of forward exchange currency contracts that have been utilised to match foreign currency exposures,

Additionally, approximately 50% of forecast future foreign currency transaction exposures extending for 12 months are selectively
hedged. The principal currency exposures {sterling, Swedish kronor, euro and yen) are hedged using a mixture of purchased
currency options and forward foreign exchange contracts. As at 31 December 2000 the Group held forward and option contracts
to hedge the following forecast forgign currency transaction exposures.

Sterling payables

2000
Hedged
amount
$m

1,204

SEK payables

635

537

Yen receivables

51
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20 Financial instruments (continued)

Maturity of financial liabilities

..

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities, other than short-term creditors such as trade creditors and accruals, at

31 December 2000 was as follows:

2000 1999

Analysis by year of repayment Loans Other Total Loans Other Total
_ ¥m $m Sm oS Smo . $m
After five years 32 - 323 332 - 332
From five 1o four years T . —— o -
From four to three years T A T 294 108 402
From three 1o two years ‘ ‘ 29 120 41 18 127 145
From two to one years 10 128 138 a5 116 211
Due after more thanone year e I 631 ..248 879 . 739 351 .09
Due within one year 88 255 343 34 448 482
719 503 1,222 773 799 1,672

Other financial liabilities comprise deferred payments to re-acquire certain distribution rights, short-term borrowings and finance

leases.

Borrowing facilities

The Group has various borrowing facilities available 1o it, the majority of which offer a currency option of US dollars, euros or
sterling. Unused shori-term credit facilities (both committed and uncommitted) totalled approximately $1.0bn at 31 December
2000. tncludad in this were undrawn committed facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met at that date

as follows:

2000 1999
e $m . 5m
EXDIANG N ONE YOBY OF I8SS ettt e i i 0 876 -
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years 150 375
Expiring in more than twe years - 150
525 525
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20 Fipancial instruments {continued)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying values and fair values of all the Group's financial assets and financial
kabilities as at 31 December 2000 and 1938.

2000 2000 1999 1909
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
B S Sm ........ $m $m $m
L
SOOI OO OWINGS e (28 . (28) 844 (344)
Loans Lo e . (138 (746) (ro2) (778
Cash o o _ 1,021 1021 429 429
Short-term investments L3428 3,547 2,859 . 2,858
Fixed asset invesiments 11 11 71 131
Derivative financial instruments held to manage
the interest rate and currency profile
Cross-currency swaps and interest rate swaps 19 64 19 14
Derivative financial instruments held or issued
to hedge the currency exposure on existing transactions
Forwerd foreign exchange contracts {1} ) 20 20
Foreign currency option contracts 1 - a2 35
Derivative financial instruments held or issued to hedge
the currency exposure on expected future transactions
Forward foreign exchiangs COMIACYS e - ! . {1)
Foreign currency option contracts 80 80 32 35

In addition to the primary financial instruments above, the Group has financial liabilities of $377m comprising deferred payments
due, totalling $403m before discounting. The Group has a standby fetter of credit covering these financial liabilities and is
collateralised by high grade government securities.

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of financial instruments are as follows:

a.

Short-term investments - the fair value of listed investments is based on year-end guoted market pricas. For unlisted
investments carrying values approximate fair vaiue.

Fixed asset investments {excluding equity investments in joint ventures and associates) — the fair value of listed investments is
based on year-end quoted market prices. For unfisted investments carrying values approximate fair value.

Loans ~ the fair value of publicly traded debt is based on year-end quoted matket prices; the fair value of floating rate debt is
nominal vaiue, as markst to market differences would be minimal given frequency of resets, the tair value of remaining debt is
estimated using appropriate zero coupon valuation techniques based on rates current at year end.

Forward foreign exchange contracts — the Group has forward foreign exchange contracts to sell currency for the purpose of
hedging non-dollar commercial transaction exposures which existed at the date of the balance sheet ard to hedge anticipated,
but not firmly committed, non-dollar commercial transactions for 2001. The majority of the contracts for existing transactions
had a maturity of six months or less from year encl. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is estimated using the
spot rates of exchange existing at year end and accruing any interest differential.

Foreign currency option contracts ~ the Group has foreign currency option contracts to hedge anticipated, but not firmly
committed, non-dollar commercial transactions for 2001, The fair value of option contracts is estimated using Black-Scholes
valuation techniques as adapted by Garman Kohihagen.

Interest rate and cross-currency swaps ~ AstraZeneca uses interest rate and cross-currency swaps to hedge the Group's
exposure 10 fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange movements on borrowings in accordance with a formal risk

management strategy. The fair value is estimated using appropriate zero coupon valuation techniques based on rates current at
year end.
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The above financial instruments are subject to credit and market risk. AstraZenaca containg credit rigk through the use of
counterparty and product specific credit limits and by ongoing review procedures. All financial instruments except the letter of
credit are transacted with commercial banks and, in line with standard market practice, are not backed with cash collateral. The
notional principal values of off balance sheet financial instruments do not represent amounts exchanged by the parties and are not
a meagure of the credit risk to the Group of these instruments. The credit risk of these instruments is mited to the positive fair
values of such contracts.

Market risk is the sensitivity of the value of financial instruments to changes in refated cumrency and interest rates. The Group is not
exposed 1o material market risk because gains and losses on the derivative financial instruments are iargely offset by gains and
josses on the underlying assets, liabilities and transactions subject t© hedge.

Hedges
The Group’s policy is to hedge 100% of transactional currency exposures and 50% of forecast future transaction exposures using
forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign currency option contracts. It also uses crass-currency and interest rate swaps to

manage its borrowings profile.

Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are not recognised until the exposure that is being hadged is itself recognised.
Unreccognised gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are as follows:

Total net

Gains Losses gainsf{losses)

_________ U <1 AU ... N .1

Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at 1 January 2000 e 8 ©) @)

Gains and losses arising in previous years that were recognisedin2000 ‘ 3 (4) {1)

Gains and losses arising in previous years that were not recognised in 2000 - )] (5

Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at 31 December 2000 _ 45 I - 45

Gains and losses expected to be recognised in 2001 _ _ _ 7 R ) 8

Gaing and losses expected 1o be recognised in 2002 or later 37 - 37
21 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Environrnentat
Integration Employes and other

and synergies benefits provisions Total

.......... $m $m $m . 5m

- 796 249 1,045

819 .18 . 182 1,079

e N0 88 8T

Disposals - an “@ (15)

Other movements, including exchange 2 {35) 53 16

At 31 DecemBer 1999 e 114 780 .29 183

Profit and l0sS acCount e S 04 109 100 513

Net amounts paid or becoming current {386) 23 @9 | (508)

Disposals , e o SO TR (156)

Other movements, including exchange ) {28) 1 {34)

At 31 December 2000 25 754 289 1,068

Employee benefit provisions comprise pension, post retirement and other employee benefit provisions. These will ¢rystaliise, in the
mair, over the estimated working lives of the employees concerned, The environmental provisions are principally in respect of sites
in the US, further details of which are given in Note 36. Cther provisions include $85m (1899 $144m) in respect of daferred
taxation.

No provision has been released or applied for any purpose other than that for which it was established.

AstraZeneca Annual Report and Form 20-F 2000




22 Reconciliation of movemenis in Shareholders’ fund

) FINENCal HTEISMENIS 57
Notes relating to the financial statements

2000 1999 1098

Shareholders’ funds al beginning of year 10,302 10,929 0,652
Net profit for the fnanCial Year e e 2,538 1,143 2,611
Diidends
Cash L (1.236)  (1,242)  (1,061)

{1,669) - -
(367) (©99) 1,550
Issues of AstraZeneca PLG Ordinary Shares e 19 12
Repurchase of AstiaZeneca PLG Ordinary Shares O - I ) -
Astra AB minority interest buyout @ (142) -
Goodwitl written back 882 . a0 "
Exchange adjustmentsonnetassets (1,038) (740 (178)
Transiation differences on foreign currency borrowings 154 132 {7
Tax on translation differences on foreign currency borrowings 42 @2) 2
Mavement in unrealised holding gains and losses
an shart-term investmants = - 2
Other movements (8) 2) (4)
Net (reduction iny/addition to Shareholders’ funds (781) 627) 1,377
Shareholders' funds at end of year 9,521 10,302 10,829
23 Reserves
Share Capital Joint Profit
premium  redemption Merger Other ventures and and loss
account resene reserve resenes asseciates account Total
o _ - o Sm $m B LR A $m 8 AL, .4
At31 December1g97 40 - 583 L8 09 8249 8,954
PrORLIGIAINGG 107 YBAT | e oo e S 1583 . 1,550
Share premiums e T e L S 19
Exchange adjustments: S
Goodwil s 3 T
Net assets 7 8 (184) {178
.. On foreign currency borrowings B/
Fareign currency barrowings tax effect 2 2
(43) 6 {148) {183)
Movement in unrealised holding gains and losses R e 2
Other movements @ (4)
Net movements 14 - - (41} 3 1,399 1,375
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23 Reserves {continued)
Share Capital Joint Profit
premium  redemption Merger Other ventures and and loss
account feserve reserve reserves  associates account Totat

R $m Sm $m $m  &m $m m

At 31 December 1998 , LS4 T8 86 .02 9648 = 10329
. (16) ®3) .9
T R 17
R 1T e e 157
st _ B <D -
(142) {142)
L (183) .. (182)
................................ 410 410

Exchange adjustments:
B <O (-, SO
. Net assets I N ‘ - 1 (r41) (740)
..On foreign currency borrowings | | e 1 132

Foreign currency borrowings tax effect (22} (22)
e B LA (A (630)
Other movements @) )
Net movements 148 1 (142) 647 {(18) (1,110) (471}
At31December1999 202 1. 41 703 @) 8538 9858
Lossretained foryear (150 . @10y (@)

R (14 -
Astra AB minority interest buyout e et e, e @)
Repurchase of shares e OO B8)
Goodwill written back | - 862 ... .. 8082
Exchange adjustments:

GO e 67 O "
..Netasssts S » {1039 (1,088)
VVVVVVVVV On foreign currency borrowings 154 154

Foreigh currency borrowings tax effect 42) (42}

| | , 6r 1 84 (928
Other movements 2 - (10} {8}
Net movements 33 2 (8) 931 {156) {1,581} (779
At 31 December 2000 235 3 433 1,634 (183) 6,957 9,079

The movement in other reserves in 1999 refates to the realisation of goodwill, principally on the disposal of Zeneca Specialties and
the redenomination of share capital. The movement in 2000 relates to the realisation of goodwill in respect of the demerger of
Zeneca Agrochemicals ($813m} and the impairment of the Advanta seeds business goodwill {$49m),

The cumulative amount of goodwill resulting from acquisitions, net of disposals, prior to the adoption of FRS 10 in 1998, amounted
to $606m (1999 $1,537m, 1998 $2,027m), using 2000 year-end raies of exchange.
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23 Reserves (contmued)

There are no significant statutory or contractual restrictions on the distribution of current profits of subsidiaries, joint ventures

or assocCiates, undistributed profits of prior years are, in the main, permanently employed in the businesses of these companies.
The undistributed income of AstraZeneca companies overseas may be liable to overseas taxes and/or United Kingdom taxation
(after allowing for dauble taxation relief) if they were to be distributed as dividends {(ses Note 7).

24 Net cash mflow from tradlng operatlons

Operatlng proﬁt before excepttonal |tems

Debtors increase

Creditors increase
Other non-cash movements

25 Cash flows related to exceptional items

Current period cash flow related to exceptional items and merger 2000 1999 1998
related payments, before associated tax charge/relief o _ _ $m $m ~ $m
Merck "Trigger Event” payment — U .| TN A1 S
Merger, irtegration and synergy costs S . o Lo B3y e2n) o {148)
Salick Health Gare rationalisation S o (11) 12 -
Agrochermicals restructuring T v SO 4") N
Costs relating to the disposal of Speciates business , (62) (338) "
Dererger of Zeneca Agrocherticals and formation of Syngenta (68 o~ "
Granting of US imdur marketing rights - - 163
Outfiow reiated to exceptional charges i i o ‘ (809 {1586 15
Proceeds from the disposal of Specialties busnness

(included in "Acquisitions and dISPOSAIS') e , e 1,956 =
Repayment of debt by Zeneca Agrochemicals 909 - -
Exceplional item cash flow LA s SN L AL
‘First Option” payment tc Merck (lncluded in

‘Net cash expenditure on fixed assets’) - (967) -
Exceptional and merger related cash flow 100 (597) 15
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26 Acquisitions and purchases of minority interests

There were no significant business acquisitions in 2000 or 1999. The principal acquisitions during 1998 were the purchase of
Ishihara Sangyo Kaisha Ltd's worldwide chlorothalonil business on 4 February 1998, the remaining 50% of the Astra Merck
partnership on 30 June 1998, and the pharmaceuticals business of Orica Lid on 4 September 1998, All these acquisitions have
been accounted for by the acquisition methad of accounting.

2000 1999 1998

Total Total Total

fair value fair value fair value

e - $m S8BT
Fixedassets e LT - 1,028
Current assets e O . - 10 1,298
Creditors due Within ONe year e AT 495)
Creditors due after more than one year - - (53)
Provisions for fiabilties and charges S 790
Minority interest - (1 ~
Fair value of net assets acquired ‘ - ) 7 - 2 1,241
Goodwill acquired 32 7 1,322
Consideration for subsidiaries and operations acquired 32 g 2,563
Purchases of minority interest 135 20 7
R, 167 29 ...2570
Equity accounted canrying value of existing interest o _ - = (837}
Cash included in undertaking acquired 7 - n )
Deferred consideration - {5) {17)
Net cash consideration 167 23 2013

Assets and fiabifities are adjusted to their fair values based on external valuations and internal assessments. There were no
significant differences between bock and fair values in respect of the acquisitions made in the year.
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27 Zeneca Agrochemicals demerger

On 13 November 2000 Zeneca Agrochemicals was demerged from the AstraZeneca Group and merged with the agribusiness of
Novartis to form Syngenta AG. The Zeneca Agrochemicals results for the period to 13 November have been reported as
discontinued in the AstraZeneca accounts for the year ended 31 December 2000 and prior years. The demerger of Zeneca
Agrochemicals was accounted for as a dividend in specie. The impact of the demerger is set out below,

Fixed aSSetS T L T DT e L e, S S
Current aSSetS . . Tt e e L B - .. - e
Creditors due within one year |

Creditors due after more than one year and provisions

Min share of net assets

Goodwill previously charged to reserves written back

. Sm.o . 8m
Fixedassets

Current assets

e ” 651
Creditors due within oneyear o - (874)
Creditors due after more than one year and provisions - (18)

Book value of net assets dsposed

........................................................................................................................ e e ” (20}
Disposal costs - {49)
Cash consideration - 1,981

onsolidated for the pericd until disposal (to 30 June 1999) but
i » the Specialties business contributed $44m to operating
f exceptional items and $41m in respect of fixed capital
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29 Rec()ncmahon of net cash flow to movement in net funds

92 Financial Statements |

2000 1989 1998
lncreasel(decrease) in cash e 640 (280 {188}
Cash outflow from decrease in loans, short- term
borfowings and leases 86 o e
Cash outflow/{inflow) from mcrease/(decrease}
in short-term investments 608 254 (874)
Change in net funds resuiting from cash flows 1,314
Qg__b__'g__[g_lggjsgq_g‘rjﬂdlsposais/cash acquwed on acqwsutlog]s 127
Othernon-casnchanges 48
Exchange movements (53)
Movementinnet funds e 143 88 67
Net funds at 1 January 2,169
Net funds at 31 December 3,605
30 ;;z;lysis of net funds
At1 Jan Cash  Acquisitions* Other Exchange At 31 Dec
2000 flow and disposals non-cash  movements 2000
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Smo . $m 3m 8m S “sm
Loans dueafteroneyear (739 @ 25 %9 12 (631)
Current instalments of 08NS (34) 25 A (87) ‘. (88)
Finance leases 2) 2 -~ - - -
Total loans and leass finance {775) (1 36 2 18
Short-term investments 7 2,858 608 1 46 83
CSN 429 613 - S )
OVBIdraNS e (167) L A SR A L
Short-term borrowmgs excludlng overdrafts (177) a7 92 - 5
2,944 1,315 91 46 (72)
Net funds 2,169 1,314 127 48 (53)
Financing item included in cash movements above:
AAAA lssue of shares 9
vvvvvvv Repuchase of shares B8 e
Net cash inflow before management of
liquid resources and financing 1,648

* Excluding cash and overdrafts
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31 Financing

2000 1590 1998

lssues of AstraZeneca PLC Ordinary Shares . 18 19 12
Repurchiase of AstraZeneca PLC Ordinary Shares (353) (183 . -
Issue of shares by subsidiaries to minority interests - 3 -
30 (334) (161) 12

Repayment of lease finance 30 {2 {B) {9)
N 0B e S S .
Loans repaid ‘ 7 e {36) (40 (110
Net decrease in short-term borrowings 30 {67) (14) {98)
{64) {15) (208)
Net cash outflow from financing {400) {(182) {205)

A major non-cash financing transaction in 1999 was the issue of shares in connection with the merger, as described in Note 40.

32 Post-retirement benefits

Pensions

The Company, and most of its subsidiaries, operate or participate in retirement plans which cover the majority of employees
(including Directors) in the Group. These plans are either defined contribution, where the level of company contribution is fixed at

a set leve! or percentage of employess' pay, or defined bensfit, where benefits are based on employees’ years of service and final
pensionatde pay. Former Zeneca plans are, generally, funded plans which are effected through separate trustee-administered
funds. The Swedish plan for salaried employees is administered by Pritidnst AR, a joint company for Swedish industry, and benefit
levels and actuarial assumptions are established by Férsakringsbolaget SPP. The pension sost for the Group’s main defined benefit
plans is established in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries basad on valuations undertaken on varying dates.

With regard to the Group’s main UK defined benefit fund, the latest actuarial valuation was carried out at 31 March 2000 and the
pensicn cost assessed using the projected unit credit method. The key assumptions used for determining the past service financial
position of the fund for accounting purposes differ from those used for funding purposes, with the iatter being more conservative.
The significant assumptions used for this accounting purpose were that, against a background of long-term UK price inflation
averaging 2.5% pa, investment returns would average 6.1% pa, salary increases 4.3% pa, and pension increases 2.5% pa. The
market value of the UK fund’s assets at the valuation date was £2,650m, equivalent, after allowing for future increases in earnings
and pensions, 1o 101% of the benefit obligation that had accrued to members at the vaiuation date using the accounting basis, or
90% if the actuary’s funding basis were to be used. The regular pension cost for accounting purposes has been determined using
an assumed long term rate of return of 6.9% leading to a cost of 15.5% of members’ total pensionable salaries. The Group has
increased its total contributions to the fund in accordance with the actuary’s advice,

Since the valuation date the UK fund has been split, with approaching a quarter of the UK fund'’s assets and fiabilities representing
both current and former employees being transferred to a Zeneca Agrochemicals Pension Fund. Following this spiit, and the
transfer in of employees in the smaller legacy Astra UK defined benefit pension scheme on 31 December 2000, a further actuarial
vauation of the main UK defined benefit fund will be completed as at 31 March 2001.

In total the Group's main funded defined benefit plans (including the UK plans) held assets at their most recent valuation dates
whose market values amounted to $4,987m. After allowing for future increases in earnings and pensicns, 100% of the benefit
obligation agsessed on an accounting basis that had accruad to membaers at the valuation dates were covered by the value of the
assets of the plang and by the value of provisions set aside in subsidiary companies’ accounts at the same dates.

The totat pension cost for the Group for 2000 was $184m (1999 $298m, 1998 $265m). In the Group balance sheet at 31 December
2000, accrued pension costs amounted to $23m (1982 $44m} and were included in cther creditors (Note 18); pravisions for
unfunded benefit obligations, included in provisions (Note21), amounted to $413m (1999 $451m). Prepaid pension costs
amounting to $4m (1999 $74m) were included in debtors (Note 15},

Post-retirement benefits other than pensions

In the US, and to a lesser extent in some other countries, AstraZeneca’s employment practices include the provision of healthcare
and life insurance benefits for retired employees. Some 6,761 retired employees and covered dependants curently benefit from
these provisions and some 12,743 current employees will be eligible on retirement. AstraZeneca accrues tor the present value of
such retiree cbligations over the working lite of the employee.

The cost of post-retirement benefits other than pensions for the Group in 2000 was $25m (1999 $21m, 1998 $22m). Provisions for

the benefit obligations at 31 December 2000 amounted 1o $233m {1999 $232m, 1998 $237m}. Other than this provision there
were no plan assets at 31 December 2000.
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33 Employee éosts and share option plans for employees

Employee costs
The average number of people employed by the Group in 2000 was 57,000 (1999 58,000, 1998 58,300) and the costs incurred

during the year in respect of these employees were:

2000 1999 1998
e e e e .Sm m o Em
Salaries | . e e o 2862 2843 2810
Social security costs B _ - 484 479 480
PENSION COSIS e s e o 202 A0
Other employment costs 170 194 210

3,680 3724 3,670

Employee costs above do not include severance costs.

The Directors befieve that, together with the basic salary system, the Group’s employee incentive schemes should provide a
competitive and market-related package to motivate employees. They should also align the interests of employees with those of
shareholders, as a whole, through long-term share ownership in the Company. The Group's current UK, Swedish and US schemes
are described below; cther arrangements apply elsewhere.

The AstraZeneca UK Performance Bonus Plan

The Zeneca Employee Performance Bonus Flan, a discretionary bonus scheme for UK staff based on trading results with bonuses
being related to the achievement of performance targets, was discontinued at the end of 2000. It has been superseded in 2001 by
the AstraZeneca UK Performance Bonus Plan.

Employees of participating AstraZeneca UK companies are invited to participate in this bonus plan which rewards goed
performance at corporate, function/business and individual/team levels. Depending upon performance and upon which level it is
measured, bonuses may be paid partly in the form of free Ordinary Shares in the Company {under the Inland Revenue approved
AstraZeneca Al-Employee Share Plan and up to a maximum annual value of £3,000} and partly in cash. A tax efficient share
retention scheme, under which employess leave their bonus shares in trust for three to five years, forms part of the All-Employse
Share Plan. Existing Ordinary Shares are used to satisfy the free share element of bonuses under this plan and are purchased in
the market.

The AstraZeneca Executive Annual Bonus Scheme

This scheme supersedss the Zeneca Executive Performance Bonus Scheme and is a performance bonus scheme for Directors
and senior employees who do not participate in the AstraZeneca UK Performance Bonus Plan. Annual bonuses are paid in cash
and reflect both corporate and individual performance measures. The Remuneration Commitiee has discretion to reduce or
withihold bonuses if business perforrmance falls sufficientiy short of expectations in any year such as to make the payment of
bonuses inappropriate.

The AstraZeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme
UK employess may make regutar monthly savings contributions over a three or five year period and may apply for aptions to
acquire AstraZeneca shares. Further details are set out below.

The AstraZeneca Share Option Plan

A share option plan for employees of participating AstraZeneca Group companies which was approved by shareholders at the
Company's AGM in May 2000. The first grant of options occurred in August 2000. The Remuneration Committee sets the policy
for the Company’s operation of the plan. Further details are set out below.

Sweden

The Astra Profit Sharing Plan was discontinued at the end of 1989 and has beén replaced in Sweaden by an all employee
performance bonus plan effective from 2000. The plan rewards good performance at corporate, function and individual/team level.
Bonuses for corporate and function performance are always paid in the form of AstraZeneca Ordinary Shares. Bonuses for
individual/team performance may be paid in Ordinary Shares or in cash, at the employee’s discretion. Existing Ordinary Shares are
used 1o pay bonuses awarded under the plan. These are purchased in the market. They must be left in trust for three years.

The AstraZeneca Executive Annual Bonus Scheme and the AstraZeneca Share Option Plan both operate in respect of relevant
AstraZeneca employees in Sweden.

USA

It the USA, there are four senior staff incentive schemes, under which either AstraZeneca ADSs or stock appreciation rights related to
AstraZeneca ADSs are awarded to participants, There are currently approximately 271 participants in these schemes. AstraZeneca
ADSs necessary to satisfy the awards under these schemes are purchased on the open market, and no subscriptions for new
COrdinary Shares have been involved.
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33 Employee costs and share option plans for employees (continued)

Share Option Schemes

At 31 December 2000, there were options outstanding under the Zeneca 1993 Senior Staff Share Option Scheme, the Zeneca

1994 Executive Share Option Scheme, the Astra Shareholder Value Incentive Plan, the AstraZeneca Savings-Related Share Cption
Scheme and the AstraZeneca Share Option Plan.

{1) Summary of the Zeneca 1993 Senior Staff Share Option Scheme
The Zeneca 1993 Senior Staff Share Option Scheme was introduced at the time of the demerger of Zeneca from ICI in 1993, The

last date for the grant of options was 19 May 1994 and the scheme was replaced by the Zeneca 1994 Executive Share Option
Scheme.

{2) Summary of the Zeneca 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme

The Zeneca 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme was introduced in 1994, The last date for the grant of options was 16 March
2000 and the scheme has been replaced by the AstraZeneca Share Option Plan.

Options granted under the 1994 scherne will normally be exercisable betweaen three and ten years following grant provided the

relevant performance condition has been satisfied. Options may be satisfied by the issue of new shares or by existing shares
purchased in the market. o

Options will not normally be exercisable unless a performance condition set by the Remuneration Committee has heen satisfied.
The performance condition is that earnings per share must grow by at least the increase in the UK Retall Price Index ovar three
years plus 3% per annum. Satisfaction of this condition is tested annually by reference to the audited financial statements. Once
the condition is satisfied in respect of any rolling three vear period beginning no earlier than the end of the financial year prior to the

grant of the option, then it need not be satisfied again in respect of that option. The Remuneration Committee reviews the
perfarmance criterion at intervals to ensure that it continues to be appropriate.

{3) Summary of the Astra Shareholder Value Incentive Plan

In 1988, Astra established a stock option plan for some 100 Astra employees in key senior positions. The plan is no longer used
for the grant of options and has been superseded by the AstraZeneca Share Option Plan.

On completion of the merger with Zeneca, options in Astra shares granted under the plan were replaced by options to acquire a
number of AstraZeneca shares based on the exchange ratio used in the exchange offers used to effect the AstraZensca merger.

The ratic of AstraZeneca options granted in respect of former Astra options was 0.5045 AstraZeneca options for each Astra option
held and the table shown has been restated throughout accordingly.

(4) Summary of the AstraZeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme
Eligibility
UK resident employees of participating AstraZeneca companies are automatically efigible to participate.

Grant of Options

Invitations to apply for options may be issued within six weeks after the announcement by the Company of its results for any

period and at other times in circurnstances considered to be exceptional by the Directors. No invitations may be issued later than
ten years after the approval of the scheme by shareholders.

Options may only be granted to employees who enter into UK Infand Revenue approved savings contracts with the savings body
nominated by the Company, under which monthly savings of a fixed amount (currently not less than £5 nor more than £250) are
made over a period of three or five years. The number of shares over which an option is granted will be such that the total amount
payable on its exercise will be the proceeds on maturity of the related savings contract. No payment will be required for the grant

of an option. Options are not transferable,

individual Participation

Monthiy savings by an employee under all savings contracts linked to options granted under any SAYE scheme may not exceed
£250 or such lower amounts as may be determined by the Directors,

Acquisition Price ‘

The price per Crdinary Share payable upon the exercise of an option will not normally be less than the higher of;

(@) 290 per cent of the arithmetical average of the middle-market quotations for an Ordinary Share on the London Stock Exchange

on three consecutive dealing days shortly before the date on which invitations to apply for options are issued (provided that no

such day may fall before the Company last announced its results for any period) or such other dealing day or days falling within
the six week period for the issue of invitations as the Directors may decide; and

(b} the nominal value of an Ordinary Share (unfess the option is expressed to relate only 1o existing shares).
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Exercise of Options
An option will normally be exercisable only for six months commencing on the third or fifth anniversary of the commencement of
the refated savings contract. Gptions may be satisfied by the issue of new shares or by existing shares purchased in the market.

Options normally lapse on cessation of employment, Exercise is, howsver, permitted for a limited penod (irespective of the periad
during which the option has been held) following cessation of employment in certain compassionate circumstances or where an
option has been held for more than three years (except on dismissal for misconduct) and on an amalgamation, take-over or
winding-up of the Company.

AstraZeneca has chosen to avail itself of the exemption to application of UITF17 (revised) to its SAYE scheme.
{5) Summary of the AstraZeneca Share Option Plan

Ehgibility
Any AstraZeneca employee may be recommended from time to time for the grant of an option. The Remuneration Committee sets
the policy for the Company’s operation of the plan including as regards which employees will be eligible to participate.

Grant of Options
Options may be granted at any time other than during a clase period. No options may be granted after the fitth anniversary of the
approval of the plan by shareholders until the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the plan.

The grant of options is supervised by the Remuneration Committee which is comprised wholly of Non-Executive Directors. No
payment is required for the grant of an option. Options are not transferabie.

Acquisition Price

The price per Ordinary Share payable upon the exercise of an option will not be less than an amount equal to the average of the
middle-market closing price on the date of grant for an Ordinary Share of the Company on the London Stock Exchange on the |
three consecutive dealing days immediately before the date of grant (or as otherwise agreed with the Inland Revenue). Where the i
option is an option to subscribe, the price payable upon exercise cannot be less than the nominal value of an Crdinary Share of
the Company.

Exercise of Options
An option will normally be exercisablie befween three and ten years following is grant provided any relevant performance condition
has been satisfied. Options may be satisfied by the issue of new shares or by existing shares purchased in the market.

The Remuneration Committee sets the policy for the Company's operation of the plan including as regards whether any
performance target(s) will apply to the grant and/or exercise of each eligible employee’s option.

Options normally lapse on cassation of employment. Exercise is, hawever, permitted for a limited period following cessation of
employment either for reasons of injury or disability, redundancy or retirement, or at the discretion of the Remuneration Commitiee,
and on an amalgamation, take-over or winding-up of the Company.

Demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals

in order to recognise the potential loss in value of options over AstraZeneca Ordinary Shares as a resutt of the demerger of Zeneca
Agrochemicals by way of the declaration and payment of a dividend in specie {to which option holders, unlike shareholders, were
not entitied), the Company tock the steps outlined below with regard to all individuals who held options over AstraZeneca Ordinary
Shares on 10 November 2000 under either the Zeneca 1993 Senior Staff Share Option Scheme, the Zeneca 1994 Executive Share
Option Scheme, the AstraZeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme or the AstraZengca Share Option Plan. Option holders
under the Astra Shareholder Value incentive Plan will ba treated in the same way. These arrangements were reviewad and
approved by the Remuneration Committee and the overall calculation of the number of additional Ordinary Shares allocated was
raviewed independently by Goldman Sachs International and confirmed by them as fair and reasonable in the circumstances.

(a) Option holders were allocated additional AstraZeneca Ordinary Shares on an ex gratia basis in accordance with the following

formuta:
Number of AstraZeneca Ordinary Shares X 33.65 X 30%
under option on 10 November 2000 40237651 x 35.14

£33.65 = the Syngenta global offer price per share

£35.14 = the AstraZeneca Ordinary Share ¢losing price in London on 11 October 2000
{the date of the EGM to approve the dividend in specie)

40.237651 = the final ratio for determining the number of AstraZeneca shares required
1o be held in order to receive 1 Syngenta share.
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33 Employee costs and share optton plans for employees (contmued)

{b) Option hotders under the AstraZeneca Savings-Related Share Option Schame and option halders working in the agrochemical

business were entitfed to receive their additional allocation of AstraZeneca Ordinary Shares immediately, as were former
employees entitled to the additional allocation.

{c) Option hotders under schemes other than the AstraZeneca Savings-Related Share Cption Scheme working in the
pharmaceutical business will be entitted 1o receive their additional allocation of AstraZeneca Ordinary Shares on 13 November
2003, the third anniversary of the creation of Syngenta AG. The Executive Vice-President, Human Resources has discretion to

release to pharmaceutical employees their additional allocation of AstraZeneca Ordinary Shares at an earlier date in appropriate
circurnstances, such as retirerment.

It is anticipated that the cost to the Company of purchasing the additional AstraZeneca Ordinary Shares to make the allocation

described above will not exceed $7m. The average number of additional AstraZeneca Ordinary Shares received by each option
holder will be approximately 11.

AstrgZeneca Share Option Plan 1994 Scheme SAYE Scheme ASVIP
Shares
under
QOptions WAEP* Options WAEP* Options WAEP* option WAEP*
. pence ..00C  pence .. 000 . pence 1600 SEK
Movements during 1998
Options granted . e 012 2433 8O3 2146
Options exercised 564 67 874
Options fortelted e Voo Maes 137 1278
Options lapsed . | S e NI
Weighted average fair value of optlans
granted during the year 569 540 17
At 31 Decermber 1998
Cpticns outstanding 2.664 1618 5,040 1252 1,249 361
Movements during 1959
Options granted . 810 2564 .12l 2264 LN
Optiens exercised o 32 1205 2876 860 N
Options forfeited o o oM 1898 387 1665 NI
Options lapsed LN Nil e N
Weighted average fanr value of optmons
granted during the year 827 856
At 31 December 1959
Options outstanding Nil il 3,001 1934 4,388 1708 1,249 361
Movements during 2000
Options granted _ 712 3093 8885 2714
Options exercised ..o NO N800 182
Optiong forfeited Nil Nil 99
Opfionslapsed o N N i
Weighted average fa|r value of ophons
granted during the year
At 31 December 2000
Optionsoutstanding . 712 S093 10887 2588 3826 2074 1080 . 870
Range of exercise prices 3093p 82épto 1023p to 2988EK
________________________________________________ e 2TASR 2806p . AAESEK
Weighted average remalnlng
contractual life 3,521 days 3,198 days 1,146 days 1,319 days
QOptions exercnsable 2 3093 1.064 1,618 79 1148 1,090 370

* Weignted Average Exercise Price

In addition to the schemes disclosed above at 31 December 2000 there were 92,026 options outstanding issued under the
Zeneca 1993 Senior Staff Share Option Scheme with a weighted average exercise price of 689p.
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34 Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

The interasts at 31 December 2000 or on date of resignation of the persons who on that date were Directors (including the interests
of their famifies) in shares and debentures of the Company and its subsidiaries are shown below, all of which were beneficial.

Interest in Interast in

Ordinary Shares, Crdinary Shares,
in¢cluding shares Shares held including shares Shares held
heid in trust, at in trust at Net held in trust, at in trust at
1 January 2000 1 January 2000 shares 31 December 2000 31 December 2000
________________________ or appointment date  or appointment date acquired or resignation date or resignation date
Percy Bamevik o 100,000 T - 100,000 i
Hékan Mogren S840 T 2906 887068282
Tom Mkillop oo ... 8BSyt o oesa 8758 7383 18812
Ake Staving B 537 . | - 8041 . 858 7624
Jonathan Symonds . 8252 8802 w780 L ADee 10,364
Claes Wilhelmsson 18,349 2r,123 e 81318
Sir David Barnes 214,576 27834 12,148
Sir Peter Bonfield 500 n T 500 -
KarlvonderHeyden 10000 -, . .Meoo0 2000 -
Erna Mater R Lans R 600 . e -
Dame Bridget Ogivie o 500 . - 560 -
Lars Ramavist : 500 R e 500 —
Marcus Wallenberg o T B0 e T e 74,504 -
Former i OrS s e
Michael Pragnelt 9,394 5,404 6,822 16,216 3,958

No director or senior executive beneficially owns, or has options over, 1% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company, nor
do they have different voting rights to other shareholders.

Shares held in trust above are long-term incentive bonus shares appropriated under the Zeneca Executive Performance Bonus
Scheme which have not vet been released.

The interests of Directors in options to subscribe for Ordinary Shares of the Company, which include options granted under the
AstraZeneca Savings-Related Share Option Scheme, together with options granted and exercised during the year are included in
the following table.
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34 Directors’ interests in shares and debentures fcontinued)

Exercise Market price

No. of shares price at date of First date Last date

o _ under option persharel  exercise  exercisable®  exercisable”

Sir David Barnes At 1 Jan 2000 144,031 984p 280595 28.03.06
Exercised 3,000 630p 2700p 24.06.96 23.06.03

...................................................................... At 31Dec 2000 141,031 ..292p 03
Hakan Mogren At 1 Jan 2000 49,108 2749p 131202 121209
Granted 24871 2714p 18.03.03 15.03.1C

Granted 21,823 2093p 23.08.03  22.08.10

__________ _ , o At31Dec2000 95802 ~  2818p 134202 220810
Tom McKiltop At 1 Jan 2000 142,684 1694p 05.04.97 24.03.09
Granted 22,108 2714p 16.03.08 15.03.10

Granted 29,097 3093p 23.08.03 22.08.10

e P31 DeC 2000 193,889 2020p 30,0487 220810
Ake Stavling At 1 Jan 2000 30,701 2508p 26.05.02 25.06.09
Granted 14,186 2714p 16.03.03 15.03.10

Granted 13,417 3093p 23.08.03 22.08.10

T e ... ... M381Dec2000 58304 ~  2693p 260502 22.08.10
Jonathan Symonds At 1 Jan 2000 73,704 2296p 01.10.00 240808
Granted 28,451 3093p 23.08.03 22.08.10

At31Dec 2000 102,155 2518p ..01.1000 | 22.08.10
Claes Wilhelmsson At 1 Jan 2000 33,492 2508p 28.05.02  25.05.09
Granted 17,686 2714p 16.03.03  15.03.10

Granted 12,032 3083p 23.08.03 220810

! _ A131Dec2000 64,110 2683p 260502 220810
= Michael Pragnell At 1 Jan 2000 106,500 1346p 06.04.96  24.03.09
' Granted 9,580 2714p 16.03.03 15.03.10
Exercised 20,000 885p 3284p 06.04.98 05.04.05

At resignation date 96,089 1582p 06.04.98 15.03.10

T Exercise prices at 1 January and 31 Decemnber are weighted averages.
* First andl last exercise dates of groups of options, within which pericds thera are shorter exarcise penods.

In addition to the above the following Directors held options under the Astra Shareholder Value Incentive Plan which were
converied into options over AstraZengca shares on completion of the merger based on an exchange ratio of 0.5045 AstraZeneca

options for each Astra option held. None of these options were exercised during 2000 and no further options have been or will be
granted under the scheme.

Hakan Mogren At 1 Jan 2000 37,480 3598EK 06.04909 23.01.06
e, M 31 DeC 2000 57,480 B59SEK 06.04.99  23.01.08
Ake Stavling At 1 Jan 2000 16,193 3BGSEK 06.04.99 23.01.06
...... . At31Dec2000 16,193  B69SEK ~ ......080489  2301.06
Claes Wilhelmsson At 1 Jan 2000 17,168 385SEK 08,0499 23.01.08

At 31 Dec 2000 17,168 3655EK 068.0499 23.01.06

The aggregate amount of gains macde by Directors on the exercise of share options during the year amourted to $0.8m (1999
$0.4m, 1998 $nil) and the gains made by the highest paid director were $nil (1989 $47,000, 1288 $nil). The market price of the
shares at 31 December 2000 was 3375p and the range during 2000 was 1926p to 3600p. The Register of Directors’ Interests
{fwhich is open to inspection) contains full details of Directors’ shareholdings and options to subscribe.

QOn demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals, Directars who held options over AstraZeneca Qrdingry Shares bacame entitled to
additional shares at set out in Note 33.
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35 Emoluments of Directors

The aggregate remuneration, excluding pension contributions, paid to or accrued for all Directors and officers of the Company for
services in all capacities during the year ended 31 December 2000 was $em (including $385,000 to the Chairman). Remuneration
of individual Directors was as folliows:

Salary Taxable Total Total Total

and fees Bonuses benefits Cther 2000 1699 1998

______ . ..o $000 §oco ..3000 $'000 $000 $000
Percy Barnevik o B e SB8B00 T
HakanMogren .. 1,040 499 5 1,564 1,500 -
Tom MekKillop e 1,185 554 28 . &4 8 1741 848
AkeStaving 6w 28 B 842 -
Jonathan Symonds 678 M43 20 123t 1,234 1,148 734
Claes WIheImsson ) 680 339 20 1,039 885 =
SirDavidBames . .818 254 35 582 1,217 1,426
Sir Peter Bonfield 59 59 5% 4
Kart von der Heyden 63 8 8 12
Dame Bridget Ogilvie 69 B L A5
Lars Ramqist B e e 63 O -
Marcus Watlenberg 59 e 59 B o -
Other/Former Directors 539 100 47 686 2,245 2,681
" Total 5,788 2,452 180 207 8,627 10,195 5,791

t Payments for pension related tax liabiities,
" Bonus takes info account stepping down from executive position after iong and valuable service.

- Relates to relocation allowances.

Some Directors and officers weare also granted options to subscribe for Ordinary Shares under the Group's share option schemes.
Details of share options granted to, and exercised by, Directors and the aggregate of gains realised on exercised options in the
year are given on page 99.

in accardance with English law and practice there are written conditions of employment between AstraZeneca and all its monthly
salaried employses. Contracts of employment of Directors and officers are subject to termination on reaching the age of 62 years

{unless extended by mutual consent) or on notice periods of up to two years being given by AstraZeneca or such employes.

No Director or officer has a family relationship with any other Director or officer.
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35 Emoluments of Directors (continued)

Transactions with Directors

During the year there were no recorded transactions between the Company and the Directors.,

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is determined by the Remuneration Committee comprised entirely of Non-Executive
Directors and chaired by Lars Ramqgvist. Remuneration above consists of annual salary, health and car benefits, a bonus scheme
and an executive share option scheme. Salaries are reviewed each year in the light of comparison with other companies, the
performance of the Company and individual experience and contribution. Further details are provided in the Repart of the Board on

Remuneration of Directors on pages ¢ to ».

The Non-Executive Directors were not eligible for performance related boruses or share options and no pension contributions were

made on their behalf.

Directors' Pension Entitlement

Tom McKillop Hakan Mogren Ake Staviing Claes Wilhelmsscn
{per annum) $'000 $'000 $'000 _$'000
Defined Benefit Arrangements
1. Accrued pengion at 1 January 2000
or date of appointment - 644 928 232 362
2. Increase in accrued pension
during year as a result of inflation
3. Adjustment to accrued pensicn as a result
of salary increase relative to inflaon ...
4, Increase in accrued pension as a
result of additional service S
5. Accrued pension at 31 December 2000
or date of resignation 958 436 542
6. Employee contributions during year
7. Age at 31 December 2000
or date of resignation (years} o 5T 5% 88 61%:
8. Pensionable service (years) 313 28%. 27" 33%:
1 Accrued pension payable between the age of 60 and 85. Once 65 the pension payable is reduced by /7ths or 28.6%) from the figures shown.
Jonathan Symonds
, $1000
Money Purchase Arrangements
Company contributions paid 208

The contributions and accrued benefits shown above are paid in pounds sterling or Swedish kronor and have been translated into
S doliars for convenience purposes at rates of $1=£0.6% and $1=SEK 8.91 respectively.
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35 Emoluments of Directors (continued)

Former Zeneca Directors’ pension entitlerment

Tom McKillop is a member of the main UK defined benefit pension plan. The normal pension age under this plan is 62 however a
members accrued pension is available from age 60 without any actuarial reduction. In addition the accrued pension is available,
vnreduced, from age 57 if the Company consents to a request for early retirement, and from age 50 if the retirement is at the
Company'’s reguest.

On death in retirement, the accrued pension shown is guaranteed payable for the first five years of retirement and then reduces to
two-thirds of this amount should there be a surviving spouse or other dependant. Any member may choose higher or lower levels
of survivor's pensions at retirement, subject to Inland Revenue limits, in return for an adjustment to their own pension of equivalent
actuarial value. Pensions are also payable to dependent children. In the event of a senior employee becoming incapacitated from
performing his work then a pension is payable immediately as if such person had reached normal retirement age, based on current
pensionable salary. In the event of death prior to retirement, dependants are entitled to a pension of two-thirds of the pension

that would have been earned had such person remained in service to age 62 plus a capital sum of four times pensiocnable pay.
Pensions in payment are increased annually in line with inflation, as measured by the Retail Price Index, up t0 a maximum of 5%.

Jonathan Symonds has a money purchase arrangement whose objective is to provide benefits similar to that which would have
been achieved under the UK plan.

Former Astra Directors’ pension entitlement

Directors who were formerly Astra employees (Hakan Mogren, Ake Staviing, Claes Wilhelmsson) are entitied to a total pension of
70% of pensionable salary from age 60 1o 65 and of 50% of such earnings from age 65. As a result the accrued pensions shown
above are payable only from age 60 to age 65 after which they will be reduced by 2/7ths of the amounts shown. Paid in pension
capital may also be used in the event of retirement or termination before the age of 60. The pensionable salary is adjusted yearly in
accordance with the consumer price index. In the event of long-term iliness then a pension is payable immediately as if such
person had reached the normal retirement age, of 70% of current pensionable salary. Cn death in retirement the accrued pension
shown is payable to a surviving spouse or other dependant. In the event of death prior to retirement the accrued pension shown is
payable to a surviving spouse or other dependant plus a capital sum of three times pensionable salary iess $100,000 if married or
1wo times pensionable salary less $100,000 i not.

56 Assets pledged, commitments and contingent liabilities

2000 1989 1698
— Jom o 8mo LB
Assets pledged
Mortgages and other assets pledged _ st av ¥
Commitments
Contracts placed for future capital expenditure
not provided for in these accounts 590 383 411

Included in the above total are contracts related to certain product purchase and licence agreements with deferred consideration
obfigations, the amounts of which are variable depending upon particular ‘milestone’ achievements. Sales of the products to which
these ‘milestones’ relate could give rise to additional payments, contingent upon the sales levels achieved. Guarantees and
contingencies arising in the ordinary course of business, for which no security has been given, are not expected to result in any
material financial loss.
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Commitments

AstraZeneca is required to pay approximately $800m over at least a five-year period which commenced in 1893, under the terms
of an agreement with Schering-Plough. With effect from 1 January 1998, in connection with this agreement, AstraZeneca obtained
a stand-by letter of credit in the amount of $608m. This letter of credit is collateralised by high-grade governrment securities which
are not available to AstraZeneca to the extent of the outstanding baiance of the letter of credit. The amount outstanding under the
letter of credit is automatically reduced with each payment made by AstraZeneca to Schering-Plough. Under the terms of this
‘agreernent AstraZeneca reacquired the rights to market omeprazole under the Losec trade mark and felodipine under the Prevex
and Perfudal trade marks in ltaly and Spain. Payments under this agreement for 2000 totalled approximately $110m.

Pursuant 1o the restructuring of the joint venture with Merck & Co., Inc. (see Note 4), AstraZeneca is obliged o make certain
contingent payments to Merck based on sales of certain current and pipeline AstraZeneca products until at least 2008.
AstraZeneca is also requirad to make certain payments to Merck in the form of partnership distributions, including a priority
return and certain variable returns which are based upon sales of certain other AstraZeneca products in the USA.

As part of the Astra Metck restructuring and as a result of the merger of Astra and Zeneca, an option {the ‘First Option’) exists
under which Merck has the right to require that AstraZeneca purchases Merck's rights to all products other than omeprazole and
esomeprazole in 2008. If Merck dogs not exercisa the First Option in 2008, then AstraZeneca may exercise the First Option in
2010. Even if the First Option is not exercised by Merck, AstraZeneca is obliged in 2008 to purchase Merck’s rights to contingent
payments in respect of the sales of certain AstraZensca products in the USA. The purchase price will be based on a multiple of an
average of the three preceding years’ pre-tax retums paid by AstraZeneca to Merck for such sales. In the event that the First
Option is exercised, AstraZeneca will pay compensation to Merck based on a multiple of an average of the three preceding years’
pre-tax payments from AstraZensca to Marck for all praducts except for omeprazole and esomeprazole. i the First Option is
exercisad, the payments in 2008 (or 2010 if applicable) are subject to a minimum of at least $4.70n.

In addition, AstraZeneca has an option to purchase Merck’s rights to payments in respect of omeprazole and esomeprazole two
vears after the First Option is exercised or later when the combined sales of omeprazole and esomeprazole are helow a certain

level (the ‘Second Option’), The exercise price for the Second Option will be the fair value of such rights as determined at the time
of such exercise.

if neither the First Option nor the Second Ogption is exercised hy AstraZeneca or Merck, the license agreement will continue

indafinitely with respect to the compounds still subject to the license agreement at the time of the merger, the value of which
license rights will diminish over time.

Environmental costs and liabilities

The Group's expenditure on environmental protection, including both capital and revenue items, relates to costs which are
necessary for meeting current good practice standards and regulatory requirements for processes and products.

They are an integral part of normal ongoing expenditure for maintaining the Group’s manufaciuring capacity and product ranges
and are not separated from overall operating and development costs. There are no known changes in environrmental, requlatory or
other requirements resulting in material changes to the levels of expenditure for 1998, 18999 and 2000,

in addition to expenditure for meeting current and foreseen environmental protection requirements, the Group incurs substantial
costs in investigating and cleaning up fand and ground-water contamination. In particular, AstraZeneca has environmental fiabifities
at some currently or formerly owned, leased and third party sites in the USA. AstraZeneca, or its indemnitees, have been named
under US legislation {the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Gompensation and Liability Act of 1880, as amended) as
potentially responsible parties (PRP) in respect of 35 sites (although AstraZeneca expects tc be indemnified against liabilities
associated with eight of these sites by the seller of the businesses associated with such sites) and, where appropriate, actively
participates in or monitors the clean-up activities at sites in respect of which it is a PRP. Stauffer Management Company, a
subsidiary of AstraZeneca established in 1987 to own and manage certain assets of Stauffer Chamical Company which was
acquired that year, has identified 33 sites (including 20 for which AstraZeneca has been named a PRP} for which it may have
responsibility that will, in aggregate, require significant expenditure on clean-up and monitoring.

Liabilities are generally more likely to crystalise where a contaminated site is to be sold, its use changed or where a regulatory
authority impGses a particular remedial measure. Costs of these liabifities may be offset by amounts recovered from third parties,
such as previous owners of the sites in quastion or through insurance, although the availability of pollution insurance and the scope
for recovery under such insurance are uncertain, particularly in North America. I the future the availabiiity of historical insurance to
offset these liabifities will be reduced as a result of certain insurance ssttlements effected this year by Stauffer Management
Company (SMC}, an AstraZenaca Group company, as part of closing out our exposure to some material environmentat claims.

The future leve! of investigation and clean up costs will depend on a number of factors, including the nature and extent of any
contaminatian that may ultimately be found to exist, tha need for and type of any remedial work to be undertaken and the
standards required by appiicable current and future environmental laws and regufations, and the number and financial viability of
other potentially responsible parties. The relative importance of these factors varies significantly from site to site. Many sites are at
dhifferent stages in the regulatory process or at different stages in the process of evakuating environmental damage or alternative
remediation methods. it is therefore difficult to form meaningiul ranges of estimates for such costs.
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36 Assets pledged, commitments and contingent liabilities {continued)

AstraZeneca has provisions at 31 December 2000 in respect of such costs in accordance with the accounting palicies on page ».
Although there can be no assurance, management befieves that, taking account of these provisions, the costs of addressing
currently identified environmental obligations, as AstraZeneca currently views those obligations, is unlikely to impair materially
AstraZeneca’s financial position. Such contingent costs, to the extent that they exceed applicable provisions, could have a materiat
adverse effect on AstraZeneca’s results of operations for the relevant period.

Legal Proceedings

Losec (omeprazole)}

In June 1997, the German Federal Patent Court declared invalid a previously granted supplementary protection certificate which
“extended protection for omeprazele, the active ingredient contained in Losec/Prifesec, from 1998 to 2003. The decision was
appealed and on 1 February 2000, at AstraZensca’s request, the German Supreme Court decided to refer the case to the
European Court of Justice for a preliminary ruling. The case does not involve any financial claims.

In March 2000, the German Federal Patent Cowt declared that AstraZeneca’s formulation patent for Losec/Prilosec was invalid.
The decision has been appealed to the German Supreme Court. As a consequence, all pending infringement actions in Germany
have been stayed awaiting the outcome of the appeal. There is one intertocutory injunction in force against ratiopharm GrmbH
based on the formuiation patent stilt in force. if the final decision on the validity of the formulation patent goes against AstraZeneca,
ratiopharm may claim damages for lost sales due to the interlocutory injunction.

in 1998, Astra filed suits in the LUSA against Andrx Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Genpharm, Inc. This followed the filing of abbreviated
new drug applications by Andrx and Genpharm with the US Food ard Drug Adminisiration concerning the two companies’
intention to market generic omeprazole products in the USA. The suits are continuing. During 1999, Astra also filed suits against
Kremers Urban Development Company and Schwarz Pharma, Inc., and against Cheminor Drugs Ltd., Reddy-Cheminor Inc. and
Schein Pharmaceuticals, inc. During 2000, AstraZeneca filed further suits against Lek Pharmaceutical and Chemical Company d.d,
impax Laboratories Inc., Eon Labs Manufacturing Inc. and Mylan Pharmaceuticals Inc. The basis for the proceedings is that the
actions ot all the companies infringe several patents related 1o Priosec/Losec.

in October 2000, the Federal Court of Australia {Full Court) handed down a patent ruiing pertaining to omeprazole in connection
with a dispute between AstraZeneca and the generic company, Alphapharm Pty Ltd, The court declared that AstraZeneca’s
formulation patent was invalid. On 6 Novernber 2000, AstraZeneca applied for special leave to appeal the detision to the High
Gourt of Australia.

During 2G00, AstraZeneca was granted interlocutory injunctions based on certain of AstraZeneca's omeprazole patents and
supplementary protection certificates against the generic company, Scandinavian Pharmaceutics-Generics AB, in Sweden,
Denmark and Norway. Scandinavian Pharmagceutics-Generics cannot sell its omeprazole product pending the outcome of the main
actions in these cases. if AstraZeneca loses in a final decision, Scandinavian Pharmaceutics-Generics may claim damages for lost
sales due to the interlocutory injunctions.

Other court cases relating to omeprazole patents are pending worldwide. However, the financial impact if AstraZeneca loses is not
considered 1o be material.

in February 2000, the European Commission commenced an investigation relating to certain omeprazole intellectual property
rights, and associated regulatory and patent infringement litigation. The investigation is pursuant to Article 82 of the EC Treaty,
which prohibits an abuse of a dominant position. The investigation was pracipitated by a complaint by a defendant in a number of
patent infringement proceedings brought by AstraZeneca and relates 1o a fimited number of European countries. AstraZeneca has,
in accordance with its corporate policy, co-operated with the Commission. AstraZeneca remaing of the view that the complaint is
unfounded and that it has complisd with all relevant competition laws. In particutar, it considers that the matters raised by the
complaint are more properly dealt with by the Courts in the context of the litigation in which the complainant is involved.
AstraZeneca will continue to co-operate with the Commission should i decide to take the matter further.

Plendil (felodipine)

In August 2000, AstraZeneca LP received a letter from Mutual Pharmacettical Co., Inc, informing AstraZeneca of Mutual's intention
1o market a generic version of AstraZeneca’s felodipine extended releass tablets (Plendil) prior to the expiration of AstraZeneca’s
patent covering the extended release formulation. AstraZensca filed a patent infringement action against Mutual in the US District
Court for the Eastern District of Pennsyivania. Mutual responded and filed counterclaims alleging non-infringement and invalidity.
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Nolvadex (tamoxifen)

In January 1996, Zeneca Limited received a letter from Mylan Pharmaceuticals inc. stating that Mylan had filed an abbreviated new
drug application with the FDA sesking permission to market tamoxifen citrate in the USA and asserting that Zeneca'’s patent for
tarmoxifen citrate was invalid and unenforceable. Zeneca disputed Mylan’s position and in February 1996 filed an action against
Mylan in the Federal District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania. Among other things, Mylan asserted affirrnative
defences and counterclaims alleging patent misuse, unclean hands and collateral estoppel {based on Zeneca's settlement of an

earlier patent dispute in 1993), which Zeneca denied. The case was dismissed without prejudice pending the resolution of the
Pharmachemie case, described below.

Notification was received by Zeneca Limited in February 1996 that Pharmachemie BV had filed an abbreviated new drug
application with the FDA to markeat tamoxifen citrate in the USA and asserting that Zeneca’s US patent for tamoxifen citrate was
invalid and unenforceable. Zeneca disputed Pharmachemie’s position and in March 1896 filed an action against Phammachemie in
the Federal District Court for the District of Manyand. This matter was transferred to the US District Court for the District of
Massachusetts. After the ciose of discovery in this case, Zeneca filed a motion for partial summary judgement on Pharmachemie’s
affrmative defences of patent misuse, unclean hands and collateral estoppel (similar to those asserted by Mylan). In February
1999, the court issued an order granting the motion and dismissing such affirmative defences with prejudice.

After a 1999 jury trial on the remaining patent claims, the court ruled that the tamoxifen citrate patent was valid and enforceabls,
and that Pharmachemie had infringed the patent. The court rejected Pharmachemie's claims of inequitable conduct by Zeneca
and entered a final judgment in Zenaca's favour pursuant 1o an order dated 14 September 2000 and an amended order dated

27 QOctober 2000. Pharmachemie did not appeal. Subseguently, Mylan Pharmaceuticals agreed with Zeneca 1o resolve conclusivaly

its patent claims in favour of Zeneca through the entry of an order analogous to the order in the Pharmachemie case, which order
was entered by the court an 30 November 2000.

AstraZeneca is a co-defendant with Barr Laboratories in four purported class actions pending in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of New York, one purported class action pending in Michigan state court and one pending in California. Four of
the cases, including the Michigan and California cases, were filed by plaintiffs representing a putative class of consumers who
purchased tamoxifen. The fith case was filed on behalf of a putative class of "third party payers” {including HMOs, insurers and
other managed care providers and health plans) that have reimbursed or otherwise paid for prescriptions of tamoxifen. The
plaintifts ailege that they paid “supra-competitive and monopofistic prices” for tamoxifen as a result of the settiernent of patent

litigation between Zeneca and Barr in 1983, The plaintifs seek injunctive refief, treble damages under the anti-trust laws of certain
states, disgorgement and rastitution.

Diprivan {propofol}

AstraZenaca’s new formulation of Diprivan {propofol) containing the antimicrobial agent, disodium edetate, has patent protection in
the USA expiring in March 2015. In 1998, notices were received by Zeneca Limited that GensiaSicor Pharmaceuticals, Inc. had
submitted a propotol proguct that contained ne antimicrobial agent, and a propofol product that contained an antimicrobial agent
different from that contained in new formulation Diprivan, for FDA approval. Zeneca Inc. filed with the FDA a ‘Citizens Petition’
asking the FDA to withdraw s approval for the formulation of Diprivan that did not contain the antimicrobial agent used by Zeneca
and the FDA granted this petition on 10 December 1298. Zeneca also petitioned the FDA not to approve any generic version of
propofol which (i) does not contain any antimicrobial agent and (i) contains any antimicrobial agent other than the one used in
Diprivan, without adequate clinical and scientific studies to support the product's safety. On 4 January 1899, Zeneca learned that
this petition was denied and that the FDA had granted approval to GensiaSicor's abbreviated new drug application for a propofol
product containing the antimicrobial agent, sodium metabisulfite. AstraZeneca did not agree with the FDA's decision and on

5 February 1999 Zeneca Inc. filed a tawsuit in the US District Court for the District of Maryland seeking a preliminary and
permanent injunction enjoining () the FDA's approval of GensiaSicor's ANDA for a propofol product that contains the antimicrobial,
sodium metabisulfite, and (i) the FDA's approval of GensiaSicor's propofol product until AstraZeneca’s market exclusivity terminated
on 11 June 19859, Shortly after Zeneca filed the action against the FDA, GensiaSicor intervened. In March 1999, the District Court
denied Zeneca's motion for prefiminary injunction. Shortly thereafter, Zeneca filed a motion for summary judgement and the FDA
and GensiaSicor filed cross-motions for summary judgement. In August 1999, the District Court denied Zeneca’s motion for
summary judgement and granted the FOA's and GensiaSicor's crogs-motions for summary judgement and entered judgement in

their favour. Zeneca appealed the District Court’s decision to the United States Court of Appeals for the Fourth Gircuit, which
affrmed the decision of the District Court.
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36 Assets pledged, commitments and contingent liabilities {continued)

Retail pharmacies’/drug purchasers’ actions

Since Qctober 1893, several thousand retail pharmacies and certain retall drug purchasers have commenced purporied class
actions and individual actions in various federal and state couris throughout the USA alleging that, with respect to brand name
prescription drugs, manufacturers and wholesalers engaged in discriminatory pricing practices, discriminatory discounting and
rebate practices, and/or conspired with one another to fix prices and artificially maintain high prices to the plaintiffs in restraint of
trade and commerce. More than 20 brand name prescription drug manufacturers and eight wholesalers have been named
defendants in some or all of these suits.

Zeneca Inc. was named a defendant in more than 140 separate complaints, including a consolidated action on behalf of a class of
retail pharmacies now pending in the federat court of Chicago, WMindis {in Noverber 1894, the federal court in Chicago certified this
class); four actions on behalf of purported classes of retail pharmacies pending in state court in San Francisco, California; one
action in an Alabama state court; one purported class action in a Wisconsin state court; one purported ¢lass action in a Minnesota
state court, an individual action in state court in Mississippi; and fourteen purported class actions on behalf of consumers in
Alabama, Arizona, California, Florida, Kansas, Maine, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Carolina, Tennessee, Washington,
Washington DC, and Wisconsin state courts. The Alabarna action purports to bring claims on behalf of consumers from the
following states: Kansas, Maine, Michigan, Minnesota, Washington DC, Mississippi, New Mexico, North Dakota, South Dakota and
West Virginia. A second Tennessee action brought in 1998 asserts claims on behalf of consumers of Tennesses, Alabarna, Arizona,
Elatida, Kansas, Maine, Michigan, Minnesota, New Mexico, North Carolina, North Dakota, South Dakota, West Virginia and
Wisconsin, During 1899, four new consumer class actions were filed in New Mexico, North Dakota, South Dakota and West
Virginta. Classes have been certified in the California retailer and consumer actions and the 1998 Tennessee action. The actions in
federal court generally allege violations of Section 1 of the Sherman Act, and in some cases, violations of Section 2{a) and Section
2(d) of the Robinson-Patman Act. The actions in California state count allege violations of the California Unfair Practices Act, the
Cartwright Act and the Unfair Competition Act. The state cases allege violations of the respective state statutes analogous to the
federal anti-trust and/or unfair competition laws. The complaints generally seek injunctive relief barring the allegedly unlawful
conduct, and unspecified damages which would be trebled under applicable law. The complaints also seek costs, interest and
reasonable aftorney’s fees.

Zeneca entered into a Settlement Agreement with the retail class plaintiffs whose anti-trust claims were consofidated in a federal
multi-dlistrict litigation proceeding pending in the Northern District of lllincis. Zeneca has also reached seftlements with numerous
independent and chain pharmacies that opted out of the federal class action, although there are still actions braught by certain
chain and independent pharmacies pending in the federal court of Chicago, Minois. Zeneca has also settied the Minnesota and
Wisconsin retall cases as well as all the consumer cases, except for Alabama and the 1998 Tennessee action. Zeneca has
consistently denied liability and continues to believe it has meritorious defences to all of these claims. However, it believes that
entering into these setflements is the prudent course of action given the inherent risks and costs of litigation and to avoid further
business disruption.

CERCLA
AstraZeneca is subject to a number of environmenial fiigation proceedings in the USA. in particular, in 1930, the US and State of
California Trustees filed an action under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as
amended, in the US District Court for the Central District of California against defendants including Stauffer Management Company
(SMC), Montrose Chemical Corporation of California and several other AstraZeneca-related entities alleging DDT related natural
resource damage near two ocean dumg sites, the Las Angeles/Long Beach Harbors and the Palos Verdes Shelf. Rhane-Poulenc
Inc., an indemnitee of SMC, was added as a defendant in 1991. The source of alleged DDT release is the Montrose plant in
Torrance, California. Montrose conducted operations at the faciiity from 1947 untit 1982 during which time the property was owned
by Stauffer Chemical Company but is currently owned by a subsidiary of SMC. The plaintiffs are seeking recovery for alleged
damages to natural resources as well as a declaration of liability for past and future response costs with respect to the former
Montrose plant site and the Palos Verdes Shelf. The plaintiffs claimed $482m in natural resource damages and response costs with
respect to the Palos Verdes Shelf. The Palos Verdes Shelf part of the case has recently been settied and Court approval of that
settlement is pending. Montrose Chernical Corporation of California will be responsible for the settiement amount. All the entities
remaining in the suit, including any AstraZeneca enfities, wili be refeased from hability with respect to the Palos Verdes Shelf and
other offshore areas. There are stilt two fiability issues pending with respect to the Torrance plant site. Resoiution of those issues
will not adversely affect AstraZeneca in any material manner. Settlement discussions with the US and state governments are
proceeding.
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36 Assets pledged, commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)

AstraZeneca is also involved in an action instituted in 1991 with the LS District Court for the Eastern District of California. US and
California state environmental agencies brought suit under CERCLA against Rhéne-Poulenc for a declaration of liability with respect
to past and future response costs refated o the release of mining wastes at the [ron Mountain site in Northern California. Zeneca
has an indemnity obligation to Rhdne-Poulenc for all liabilities arising from this site as a result of the acquisition and subsequent
sale of Stautfer Chemical Company in 1287, Rhéne-Poulenc brought counterclaims against state and tederat agencies relating to
the government’s construction and operation of dams in the vicinity of Iron Mountain and the federal government’s World War |}
and post-World War Il activities at ron Mountain. The Court ruled that as to the response activities conducted to date, the
government was not a liable party. The Court also ruled that Rhone-Poulenc was the successor 1o the company which had
conducted the mining at Iron Mountain. Owing to a change in the law, Rhéne-Poulenc requested that the Court reconsider this
decision. Because of pending settlement discussions, the Court agreed to review Rhéne-Poulenc’s reguest if settlement were not
reached. In fact, the Iron Mountain case has recently been settied and the Court has approved the settiement. AstraZeneca is
released from any present or future liability at the site. The settlement is being funded out of insurance recoveries and reserves and
AstraZeneca will not suffer any material adverse financial impact as a result of the settlement.

Advanta BV

Advanta BV is a Dutch joint venture active in the seeds business. AstraZeneca Holdings BV owns 50% of the shares and the other
50% is owned by Koninklijke VanderHave Groep BY ("VanderHave"). In December 2000 VanderHave brought preliminary relief
proceedings against AstraZeneca Holdings BY alleging breach of the shareholders agreement and requesting the transfer of

AstraZeneca’s shares in Advanta to VanderHave. The District Court of Rotterdam dismissed VanderHave's case in January 2001.
VanderHave have lodged an appeal.

General

AstraZengca is also involved in various other legal proceedings considered typical 10 its businesses, including some remaining US
retail pharmacy anti-trust class and individual actions outside the scope of the settlement described above, litigation relating to
employment matters, product liability, commercial disputes and infringements of intellectual property rights and the validity of -
certain patents. Although there can be no assurance regarding the outcome of any of the legal proceedings referred to in this

Note 36 to the financial statements, AstraZeneca believes that they will not have a materially adverse effect on AstraZeneca’s
financial position. .
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37 Leases

Total rentals under operating leases charged to profit and loss account were as follows:

2000 1999 1998

e Tsm sm 3m

Hie of plantand machinery 15 83 24
Other 74 50 40
89 83 64

Commitments under operating leases to pay rentals during the year following the year of these financial statements analysed
according to the period in which each lease expires were as follows:

Land and buildings Other assets

2000 1999 2000 1999

_______________________ o $m .. 8m Sm . &m
Expiring withinoneygar 5 2 7 5
Expiring in years two to five 26 21 14 23
Expiring thereafter 8 10 7 3
39 33 28 31

The future minimum lease payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining terms in excess of one year, and future
minimum lease payments under capitalised leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments at
31 December 2000 were as follows:

Operating leases Finance leases
2000 1999 2000 1999
| §m $m Sm sm
Obligations under leases comprise

Rentals due within one year 67 64 - 1

Rentals due after more thanoneyear
After five years from balance sheetdate 110 4 I -
Fromfourtofiveyears 20 18 - -
From three 1o four years _ . 2B 29 - -
From two to three years e 43 38 - -
From one to two years 57 48 - 1
258 207 - 1
Less: amounts representing interest - -
Present value of net minimum lease payments B S - 2
Less: current lease obligations - -
Non-current lease obligations - 2

The Group had no commitments (1989 $nil) under finance leases at the balance sheet date which were due to commence
thereafter.
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Included in debtors are interest-free loans of $24,000 and $4,000 to two officers of the Company. These loans are provided in
accordance with the Company’s policy of providing relocation assistance to staff who have been transferred.

2000 1999 1998
e R $Sm oo 8mo o %m
Audit fees

MG AU PIC [, 3.2 3.7 4.3
Deloitte & Touche - 24 20
Cthers - 0.3 0.8
3.2 6.1 71

Fees for other services
KPMG Audit Plc and associates — UK e 89 19.6 2.2
............................ - Worlawide S . ....50 49 35
Deloitte & Touche UK _ . e . LR 0.1
- Worldwid 3.5 1.1

In addition to the above, KPMG Audit Flc and its associates charged fees for other services of $8.0m that have been borne by
Syngenta AG in relation to its demerger from AstraZeneca.

The charge for the statutory audit of the Company, AstraZenaca PLC, was $1,600 (1999 $1,600, 1998 $1,600). KPMG Audit Plc
are sole auditors to AstraZeneca in 2000. KPMG Audit Pic and Deloitte & Touche were joint auditors in 1999. Pricr to the merger,
Deloitie & Touche were sole auditors 1o Astra and KPMG Audit Plc were sole auditors for Zeneca.

Related party transactions
The Group had no material related party transactions which might reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by the
users of these financial statements.

Subsequent events
No significant change has occurred since the date of the annual financial statements.
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39 Company information
Company Balance Sheet

At 31 December 2000 1999
Notes $m $m

Fixed assets
Fixed asset investments 39 6,736 905

6,736 905

Current assets
Debtors — amounts owed by subsidiaries 27,944 37,957

Total assets 34,680 38,862

Creditors due within one year

Non-trade creditors 38 {889) {2,015)

(889) (2,015)
Net current assets 27,055 35,042
Total assets less cumrent liabilittes 33,791 36,847

Creditors due after more than one year
Loans - owed to subsidiaries 39 {590) {580)

Net assets 33,201 36,257

Capital and reserves

Called-up share capital 40 442 444
Share premium account 39 235 202
Capital redemptionreseve 39 3 .1
Otherreseves .3 2209 2239
Profit and loss account 39 30,282 33,371
Shareholders’ funds - equity interests 33,201 36,257

The financial statements on pages 58 to 124 were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 February 2001 and were signed on its
behalf by:

Tom McKillop Jonathan Symonds
Director Director

Aot (J
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39 Company information {continued)

Deferred taxation

The parent company had no deferred tax assets or liabilities {actual or potential) at 31 December 2000.

Investments in subsidiaries

Fixed asset investments Shares Loans Total

$m $m $m

Cost at beginning of year 314 591 905

Additions before revaluation N .. . ... 8430 - 6,430

Disposals L o . o ... 598 T 5o

Revaluation of Syngenta AG to Global Offer Price 2,116 = 2,116

Dividend in specie — Syngenta AG (2,117) - (2,117}

Net book value at 31 December 2000 6,145 501 6,736

Net book value at 31 December 1909 314 591 905

Other creditors 2000 1999

: $m $m

Amounts due within one year

Amounts owed to subsidiaries 59 1,181

Dividends to Shareholders 830 834

889 2,015

Loans - owed to subsidiaries Repayment 2000 1999

- - Dates $m $m

Loans {unsecured)

US dO“aTS‘ P i e e e
6.58% loan 2003 285 2095
7.2% loan 2023 295 295

Total loans 590 590

Loans or instaments thereof are repayable
After five years from balance sheetdate .98 285

i TOM WO 10 five year: 295  ....295
From one 1o two years - -

Total unsecured 590 580

Total due within one year - -

Total loans 590 590
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39 Company information (continued)
Share Capital Profit

premium  redemption Other and loss 2000

Reserves account reserve reserves account Total

.  $m $m $m $m 3m
At beginning of year 202 1 2,239 33,371 35,813 2402
Net gains for the year - - 2,116 (1,499) 617 34,807
Transfers between reserves T = (2.116) 2,116 = S
Dividends ... e
Cash S - - - (1,236) {1,236) (1,609}
Gividend in specie o - - 7 = (2117 (2,117) -
Share repurchase , . - 2 - (353) @51 ....082)
Redenomination of share capital - -~ - - - 157
Share premiums 33 - - - 33 148
At end of year 235 3 2,239 30,282 32,759 35,813

As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company has not presented its profit and loss account.

In the Company accounts the demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals was accounted for by revaluing the demerged legal entity,
Syngenta AG (to which the Zeneca Agrochemicals business had been transferred), to the Global Offer Price per share times the
number of Syngenta shares to be distributed to AstraZeneca shareholders ($2,117m), and distributing those shares as a dividend
in specie.

In 1999 the Company sold its investment in Astra AB to a subsidiary, resulting in a gain of $32,839m which was taken to reserves.
This gain, which represents an unrealised profit, will be realised as the underlying receivable is settled in cash. The exchange loss
on the underlying receivable for the year ended 31 December 2000 of $3,478m {year ended 31 December 1988: gain of $79m)
has also been taken to reserves. The gain on the revaluation of the investment in Syngenta AG of $2,116m has similarly been
taken to reserves via the statement of total recognised gains and losses. On distribution in specie of the investment in Syngenta
AG that unrealised gain has been treated as realised in determining the lawfulness of that distribution. The balance of the profit and
loss account at 31 December 2000 includes $29,440m which is not available for distribution {31 December 1999: $32,918m).
included in other reserves is the special reserve of $157m, arising on the redenomination of share capital. Of the remaining balance
on other reserves, $673m is distributable.
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40 Called-up share capital of parent company

Allatted, called-up

Authorised and fully paid

2000 2000 199¢

_ ) o $m ~ Sm $m
Ordinary Shares (80.25 each) L ez a2 444
Unissued Ordinary Shares ($0.25 sach) _ _ e 158 — -
Redeemable Preference Shares (£50,000) - - _
600 442 444

The Redeemable Preference Shares carry limited class voting rights and no dividend rights. This class of shares is capable of
redemption at par at the option of the Company on the giving of seven days’ written notice to the registered holder of the shares.

The movements in share capital during the year can be summarised as follows:

No. of shares

o O B o milion} $m
At beginning of year B e LATTS 444
lssussofshares , 1 "
Repurchase of shares (10) {2)
At 31 December 2000 1,766 442

Merger

A total of 825,932,791 AstraZeneca shares were issued in 1993 to Astra shareholders who accepted the merger offer before the

final closing date, 21 May 1999, AstraZeneca received acceptances from Astra shareholders representing 99.6% of Astra’s shares
and the remaining 0.4% was acquired in 2000 for cash.

Share buy-back

During the year the Company purchased, and subseguently cancelied, 9,405,000 Ordinary Shares at an average price of 2411

pence per share for a consideration, including expenses, of $353m. The excess of the consideration over the nominal value has
been charged against the profit and loss account reserve.

Share options

A totat of 818,039 shares were issued during the year in respect of share aptions. Details of movements in the number of shares
under option are shown in Note 33; details of options granted to Directors are shown in Note 34.
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Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Percentage of voting

At 31 December 2000 Country share capital held Principal activity
United Kingdom
AstraZeneca UK Limited England o 100# Research, production, marketing
AstraZeneca Insurance Company Limited England 100 Insurance and reinsurance underwriting
AstraZaneca Treasury Limited England 160 Treasury
Continental Europe
N.V. AstraZeneca S.A. Belgium 100 Marketing
ASPSA France 100 Production
Laboratoires Astra France _France 100 Production, marketing
Zeneca Pharma S.A. _France 100 ~ Research, production, marketing
AstrazenecaGmbH (Germany 100 Development, production, marketing
AstraZeneca Holding GmbH Germany 100 Praduction, marketing
AstraZeneca S.p.A. haly 100 Production, marketing
Laboratorio Astra Espafna S.A. ~ Spain 100 i Production, marketing
AstraZeneca AB Sweden 100 Research and development,
......................................................................... . PrOGuction, marketing
Astra Tech AB Sweder 100 Research and development,
. o o _production, marketing
AstraZeneca B.V. The Netheriands 100 Marketing
The Americas
AstraZeneca do Brasil Ltda. Brazil 100 Production, marketing
AstraZeneca Canada Inc. Canada L1V Research, production, marketing
IPR Pharmaceuticals inc. Puerto Rico 100 Production
AstraZeneca LP USA Q9 Development, production, marketing
Salick Health Care, Inc, USA 100 Provision of disease-specific
healthcare services
Zeneca Holdings Inc. USA 100 Production, marketing
Asia, Africa & Australasia
AstraZenecaPty Ltd. . Australia 100 Research, production, marketing
AstraZeneca Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. China 100 Production, marketing
AstraZeneca Hong Kong ttd. .. Hong Kong oo 100 e Production
AstraZeneca K.K. Japan 80 Production, marketing

# shares held directly

The companies and other entities listed above are those whose results or financial position principally affected the figures shown in
the Group's annual financial statements. A full list of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates will be annexed to the Company’s
next annual return filed with the Registrar of Companies. The country of registration or incorporation is stated alongside each
company. The accounting dates of principal subsidiaries and associates are 31 December, except for Saiick Health Care, Inc.
which is 30 November. AstraZeneca operates through 235 subsidiary companies worldwide. Products are manufactured in some
20 countries worldwide and are sold in over 100 countries.
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Additional information for US investors

Differences between UK and US accounting principles

The accompanying consolidated financial statements inciuded in this report are prepared in accordance with UK GAAR. Certain

significant differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP which affect AstraZeneca’s net income and shareholders’ equity are set
out below.

Purchase accounting adjustments

Under UK GAAP the merger of Astra and Zeneca was accounted for as a 'merger of equals’ (poaling-of-interests). Under US
GAAPR the merger was accounted for as the acquisition of Astra by Zeneca using ‘purchase accounting'. Under purchase
accounting, the cost of the investment is calculated at the market value of the shares issued together with other incidental costs
and the assets and liakilities of the acquired entity are recorded at fair value. As a result of the fair value exercise, increases in the
values of Astra’s tangible fixed assets and inventory were recognised and valuss attributed to their in-process research and
development, existing products and assembled work force, together with appropriate deferred taxation effects, The difference
between the cost of investment and the fair value of the assets and liabilities of Astra has been recorded as goodwill. The amount
allocated to in-process research and development is reguired, by US GAAP, to be expensed immediately in the first reporting
period afier the busingss combination. Fair value adjustments 1o the recorded amount of inventory have Deen expensed in the
period the inventory was utilised and additional amortisation and depreciation have also been recorded in respect of the fair value

adjustments to tangible and intangible assets and the resulting goodwill. Pre-acquisition results are exciuded from US GAAP net
income.

In the consolidated financial statements prepared under UK GAAR, goodwill arising on acquisitions made prior to 1 January 1998
accounted for under the purchase method has been eliminated against shareholders’ equity, whilst under US GAAP this goodwill
(after allocations to the fair value of tangible and intangible assets) is required 1o be capitalised and amortised. Under the
requirements of UK Financial Reporting Standard 10 "Goodwill and Intangible Assets’, goodwill on acquisitions made after

1 January 1998 is capitalised and amortised over its estimated usefui life which is generally presumed not to exceed 20 years.
UK GAAP requires that on subsequent disposal or termination of a previously acquired business, any goodwill praviously taken
directly to shareholders’ equity is then charged in the income staterment against the profit or loss on disposal or termination.

For the purpose of the adjustments to US GAAP included below, goodwili (including that capitalised under UK GAAP) is being
amortised through the income statement over the estimated ussful fives assigned to each individual acquisition. At 31 December
2000, these lives varied between 5 years and 40 years with a weighted average life of approximately 27 years. Identifiable
intangible assets, which principally include patents, ‘know-how' and product registrations, are amortised over their estimated useful
lives which vary between 4 yaars and 40 years with a weighted average life of approximately 16 years.

At 31 December 2000 and 1999, shareholders’ equity includes capitalised goodwill of $13,500m and $15,793m respectively (net
of amortisation and impairment of $1,503m and $1,945m) and capitalised identifiable intangible assets of $11,61tm and
$13,825m respactively (net of amortisation and impairment of $2,402m and $1,43%m). The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Provision

is made where there is a permanent impairment to the carrying value of capitalised goodwill and intangible assets. Goodwill on
businesses disposed of is charged to the gain or 1oss on disposal.

On disposal of a business, the gain or loss under US GAAP may differ from that under UK GAAP due principally to goodwill
capitalised and amortised, together with the appropriate share of other differences between UK and US accounting principles

recognised praviously.

Capitalisation of interest _

AstraZeneca does not capitalise interest in its financial statements, US GAAP requires interest incurred as part of the cost of
constructing fixed assets to be capitalised and amoertised over the life of the asset.

Dividends

Under UK GAAP QOrdinary Share dividends proposed are provided for in the year in respect of which they are recommended by

the Board of Directors for approval by the shareholders. Under US GAAP such dividends are not provided for until declared
by the Board.

Defarred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided on a full liability basis under LIS GAAPR, which permits deferred tax assets to be recognised if their
realisation is considered to be more likely than not; under UK GAAPR, provision is made for deferred taxation only if there is
reasonable evidence that such deferred taxation will be payable in the foreseeable future.

Pension and post-retirement benefits
There are three main differences between UK GAAP and US GAAP in accounting for pension ¢osts:

i US GAAR requires measurements of plan assets and obligations to be made as at the date of the financial statements or a

date not more than three morths prior 1o that date. Under UK GAAP calcutations may be based on the results of the latest
actuarial valuation;

AstraZeneca Annual Report and Form 20-F 2000




116Fnancial Statements )
Additional information for US investors

Additional information for US investors

Differences between UK and US accounting principles {continued)

{it US GAAP mandates a particular actuarial method - the projected unit credit method — and requires that each significant
assumption necessary to determine annual pension cost reflects best estimates solely with regard to that individuat
assumption. UK GAAP doas not mandate a particular method, but requires that the method and assumptions taken as a
whole should be compatible and lead to the actuary’s best estimate of the cost of providing the benefits promised; and

under US GAAP, a negative pension cost may arise where a significant unrecognised net asset or gain exists at the time of
implementation. This is required to be amortised on a straight-iine basis over the average remaining service period of
employees. Under UK GAAP, AstraZeneca’s policy is not to recognise pension credits in its financial statements unless a
refund of, or reduction in, contributions is likely.

{iii

=

Restructuring costs

Under UK GAAP, provisions are made for restructuring costs once a detailed formal plan is in place and valid expectations have
been raised in those affected that the restructuring will be carried out. US GAAP requires a number of specific criteria to be met
before such costs can be recognised as an expense. Among these are the requirements that the costs incurred are incremental to
other costs incurred by the company, or represent amounts to be incurred under contractual obligations which are not associated
with or do not benefit activities that will be continued. Also, all significant actions arising from a restructuring and their completion
dates must be identified by the balance sheet datg. To the extent that restructuring costs are related to the activities of the
acquired company, US GAAP allows them to be recognised as a liability upon acquisition.

Software costs
Under UK GAAP, AstraZeneca expenses all software costs. Under US GAAP, with effect from 1 January 1999, certain of these

costs are required to be capitalised and amortised over three years.

Foreign exchange

Under UK GAAP, unrealised gains and losses on foreign currency transactions to hedge anticipated, but not firmly committed,
foreign currency transactions may be deferred and accounted for at the sarme time as the anticipated transactions. Under US
GAAP such deferral is not permitted except in certain defined circumstances.

Current assets and liabilities

Current assets under UK GAAP inciude amounts which fall due after more than one year. Under US GAAP such assets would be
reclassified as non-current assets. Borrowings under UK GAAP are classified according to the maturity of the financial instrument,
while under US GAAP, certain borrowings would be classified according to the maturity of the available back-up facility, Provisions
for liabilities and charges under UK GAAP include amounts due within one year which would be reclassified to current liabilities
under US GAAR In addition, provisions would be shown as part of amounts payable and accrued liabilities due after one year.

Statement of cash flows: Basis of preparation

AstraZeneca’s Statement of Group Cash Flow is prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Financial Reporting Standard 1
(Revised 1996) (‘FRS1'), whose objective and principles are similar to those set out in SFAS No.85, ‘Statement of Cash Flows',
The principal differences between the standards relate to classification and also that the UK GAAP cash flow statement combines
the cash flow statements of Astra and Zeneca for all periods whilst the US GAAP cash flow statements includes the cash flows of
Astra only from the date of acquisition, 6 April 1999, Under FRS 1, the Company presents its cash flows for (a) operating activities;
(b) dividends received from joint ventures and associates; (c) returns on investments and servicing of finance; (d) tax paid;

(e) capital expenditure and financial investrent; (f) acquisitions and disposals; {g) dividends paid to sharehoiders; (h) management
of liquid resources; and { financing. SFAS No.95 requires only three categories of cash flow activity being (a) operating;

{b) investing; and (c) financing.

Cash flows from taxation, returns on investments and servicing of finance and dividends received from joint ventures and
associates under FRS 1 would be included as operating activities under SFAS No.95; capital expenditure and financial investment
and acquisitions and disposals would be included as investing activities; and distributions would be included as a financing activity
under SFAS No.95. Under FRS 1 cash comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand, less overdrafts repayable on
demand; and liquid resources comprise current asset investments held as readily disposable stores of value. Under SFAS No.95
cash equivalents, comprising short-term highly liquid investrments, generally with original maturities of three months or iess, are
grouped together with cash; short-term borrowings repayable on demand would net be included within cash and cash equivalents
and movements on those borrowings would be included in financing activities.

New accounting standards not yet adopted

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133 - ‘Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities' as
amended by SFAS 137, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB
Staterment No. 133, and SFAS 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities, is effective for the
Company as of 1 January 2001. SFAS 133 requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities measured at
fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a detivative depends on the use of the derivative. Adoption of these new
accounting standards will result in a cumulative after tax increase in net income of approximately $32m. Adoption will also impact
assets and liabilities recorded on the balance sheet, and may have a material effect on future results.
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Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

Introduction
As a result of the significant difference between the UK GAAP an
the year of acquisition, and in the results of preceding periods, ¢
GAAP have been prepared for the benefit of US investors. In pa
excluded from the consolidated results and cash fiows respecti

d US GAAP treatment of the combination of Astra and Zeneca in
ondensed statements of operations and cash flow under US
rticular, under US GAAP, results and cash flow of Astra are

vely for all periods prior to 6 April 1999,

The following is a summary of the material adjustments to n

et income and shareholders’ equity which would have been required if
US GAAP had been applied instead of UK GAAP

Net income
2000 1999 1998
e $m $m $m
Net income, as shown in the consolidated statements
of income before exceptional items I i e 3119 2730 2,553
Exceptional items after tax {581} {1,587) 58
Net income for the period under UK GAAP S 2538 .. 1148 2,611
Pre-acquisition results of Astra - {413} (1,427)
2,538 730 1,184
Adjustments to conform to US GAAP
Purchase accounting adjustments {including goodwill and intangibles)
Deemed acquisition of Astra
7777 In-process research and development - (8,315) -
,,,,,,,,,, Inventorystep-up I .(826) T
Amortisation and other acquisition adjustments {1 ,756) ) (759) -
Others e R S Bt B 1) B .t
Divestment of Specialties business - 284 -
Impairment of Salick Health Care goodwill - (308) -
Capitalisation, less disposals and amortisation of interest 45 5 8
Deferred taxation
On fair values of Asra 284 -

_________ . Qae) (28)
Pension eXpeNse {59) (33)
Post-retirement benefits/plan amendment 4 5
Software costs 98 -
Restructuring costs . ST en h
Unrealised losses on foreign exchange and others (35) -

Net income/(loss) in accordance with US GAAP 865 (3,539) 1,036
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Differences between UK and US accounting principles {continued)

US GAAP Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

2000 1999 1998
For the years ended 3t December $m $m _$m
Sales I e, ) ‘ . 15,804 12,789 4,971
Cost of sales e T @181) (4278  (1,169)
Distribution costs 7 (210} (200} (97}
Research and development {2,620) (2.178) _{806)
Selling, general and administrative expenses _ {4,861) {4,323 {1,700)
Acquisition refated costs (419) (4,562) -
Amortisation of intangibles and goodwill e .. (2043 (1601)  (67)
Other income 223 115 115
Operating income {loss) 1,693 {4,238) 1,247
Net interest income/(expense) 183 (23) (54)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before taxation 1876 (4261) 1198
Taxes on income from continuing operations {969) 180 {397}
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 907 (4.071) 796
Discontinued operations: H
_Net {loss)incomne from discontinued operaticns {42} 108 240
Gain on disposal of Spacialties business, net of income taxes - 424 -
" Netincome {loss) for the year 865 (3,539 1,036
Weighted average number of $0.25 Ordinary Shares
in issue {mnillions of shares} ) i 1,768 1,569 950
Dilutive impact of share options outstanding (millions of shares) 2 3 4
Diluted weighted average number of $0.25 Ordinary Shares
in accordance with US GAAP (millions of shares) 1,770 1,672 954
Net {loss)/income per $0.25 Ordinary Share and ADS
in accordance with US GAAP - basic and diluted ($) 0.49 (2.26) 1.09
I | 2000 1999 1998
Net income/{loss) from continuing operations per $0.25 Ordinary Share and ADS
in accordance with US GAAP -~ basic and diluted (§) 0.51 (2.60) 0.84
Gain on disposal of Specialties business, net of income takes
-basicand diuted 8) e B o - b T
Net (loss)income from discontinued operations per $0.25 Ordinary Share and ADS
in accordance with US GAAP - basic and diluted &) _ (0.02) 0.07 0.25

The dividend in specie in respect of the demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals under US GAAP amounted to $836m, after exchange
on the translation of foreign currency financial statements realised of $287m.
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D\ﬁerences between UK and US accountmg principles {(continued)

US GAAP Statement of Comprehensive Income

2000 1999 1998
For the years ended 31 December o e $m $m o 8w
Net income/(loss) fortheyear i ... 865 (3539 1036
Exchange gains/{losses) net of o L o feney 43n) 80
Exchange realised on demerger of Ze“?s?_a A9r9_9hemlcais ‘ e 209 - -
Other movements (2) 64 | )

Total Comprehensive Income (1,618 3.912) 1118

The cumulative exchange gains and losses (net of tax) on the translation of foreign currency financial staternents under US GAAP
are set out in the following note.

2000 1889 1998
For the years ended 31 December e SO Sm_...8m
Balence at 1 Jarnary e S G T £ A L)
Movement in year {2,481) {437) 90
Balance at 31 December (2,845) (364) 73

Stock compensation

In the Group’s financial statements prepared under UK GAAP, no cost is accrued for the share options awarded to employees
under the Zeneca 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme, the AstraZeneca Share Option Pian, and the AstraZeneca Savings-
Related Share Option Scheme as the exercise price is eguivalent to the market value at the date of grant, Under US GAAP the
cost is calculated as the difference between the option price and the market price at the date of grant or, for variable plans, at the
end of the reporting period (urtil measurement date}. Under the requirements of APB Opinion No. 25 any compensation cost
would be amortised over the pariod from the date the options are granted to the date they are first exercisable. SFAS No.123 sets

out an alternative methodology for recognising the compensation cost based on the fair value at grant date. Had the Group
adopted this methodology, the effect on net income under US GAAP is shown below,

2000 1989 1998

.................................................................................................... , e SO 8m B
Net (loss)/income under US GAAP asreported ) 865 {3,539 1,036
Compensation cost (46) (16} (13)

Pro forma net income

Net incorne per $0.25 Ordinary Share and ADS under US GAAP (basic):

As reported (§) o ) . s049 (8226 $1.09
Pro forma {$)

$0.46 $2.27) $1.08
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Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

The fair value of options granted is estimated, based on the stock price at the grant date, using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assurmptions:

R I . 2000 1999 1998
Dividend yield _ o ‘ 2.0% 3.0% 2.0%
Expected volatiity B o _ S 20.0%  200% = 200%
Risk-free interest rate 5.9% 51% 51%
Expected lives: 1994 Scheme 6.0 years 6.0vyears 6.0___)/_9@_@
Expected lives: AstraZeneca Share Option Plan 6.0 years n/a nfa
Expected lives: SAYE Scheme 46years 4d.4years 4.6 vyears

The options are based on existing AstraZeneca shares and therefore have no dilution effect as the Company would be buying
shares in the open market rather than issuing new shares. Subsequent to the effective date of the merger no share options have
been awarded under the Astra Shareholder Value Incentive Plan,

In the initial phase-in period, the effects of applying SFAS No.123 for disclosing compensation ¢cost may not be representative of
the effects on pro forma net income and earnings per share for future years.

Shareholders’ equity 2000 1999
....................... FE— FUDPR $rr| $m
Total shareholders’ equity under UK GAA 9,521 10,302

Adjustments to conform to US GAAP
Purchase accounting adjustments {ncluding goodwill and intangibles)

Deemed acquisition of Astra

Goodwill 12610 14,202
. langible and intangible fixedassets 9,510 11,174
Others B 8 490
Capitalisation, less disposals and amortisation of interest 135 161

Deferred taxation

On fair value of Astra _ 2702 (3.172)

__________ Others (278) (247)
Dividend ‘ 830 834
Pension expense e e (29 (72
Post-retirement benefits/plan amendment R .. B2 81
Software costs capitalised 120 28
Restructuring costs ) 22 119
Others 69 56
Shareholders’ equity in accordance with US GAAP 29,707 33,735
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Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

Pension and post-retirement benefits

For the purposes of US GAAP, the pension costs of the major UK retirement plan and of the retirement plans of the major non-UK
subsidiaries have been restated in the following tables in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 132. These plans
comprise a substantial portion of the actuarial liabilities of all AstraZeneca retirement plans. The changes in projected benefit

obligations, plan assets and details of the funded status of these retirement plans, together with the changes in the accumulated
other post-retirement benefit abligations, under SFAS No. 132 are as follows:

Other post-retirernent

Pension benefits benefits
2000 1899 2000 1989
$m $m $m $m

Change in projected benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 5,036 9,199 224 222
Servicecost S L 147 Lo 9
Interest Cost 301 284 W i
Participant contributions ... 19 20 - -
Plan arr]ge__r_w_dments ‘‘‘‘ ' - 2 (11) -
Actuarig! (gain)loss 316 a1y (5) 6
Special termination benefits e L ¥ 62 T -
Acquisitions and disposals aony - @3) -
Sefflement and curtailment i (219) = (10
Beneftspaid .. . (212) €37) o {13) (14)
Other movernents including exchange (344) (111 (2) -
Benefit obligation at end of year 4,188 5,036 197 224

Pension benefits

2000 1992
Changeinplanassets = e
Fai 1 Jerwary 9,035 4,346
Actual return on plan assets 166 805
GrOUD GO U O 244 432
Paricipant contributons w20
Acquistions and disposals (1,119 LT
Setflement and curtallment - (242)
Benefitspaid (212) (237)
Other movements, including exchange (330) {89)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 3,803 5,035
Funded status of plans @83 (M
Unrecognised net loss e 124 (305)
Prior service cost not recognised e 28 110
Unrecognised net obligation on implementation g 18
(194) (178}
Adjustments to recognise minimum liability
Intangible assets e e e et e T -
Accumulated other comprehensive income - -
Accrued benefit liability (194) (178)

There were no plan assets in respect of other post-retirement benefits.
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At 31 December 2000, the projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of the plan assets in respect
of the retirement plans above with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $3,485m, $3,226m and
$3,122m, respectively. At 31 December 1999, none of the main funds above had an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of
plan assets.

Assumed discount rates and rates of increase in remuneration used in calculating the projected benefit obligations together with
long-term rates of return on plan assets vary according to the economic conditions of the country in which the retirerment plans are
situated. The weighted average rates used for calculation of year end benefit obligations and forecast benefit cost in the main
retirement ptans and other benefit obligations for SFAS No. 132 purposes were as follows:

Pension benefits Other post-retirernent benefits

2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998

e L e e ieeeeeeaeeeeees ees EEes eeeeeeeeeeeiiiiieaea. . - 0/0 % B 00 % - N % .......... . %
Discount rate e e 5B R A 57 7 72 .84
Long-term rate of increase in remuneration 4.4 4.5 4.5 n/a n‘a n/a
Expected long-term return on assets 6.2 6.3 6.6 n/a n/a n/a

The Group has assumed & long-term rate of increase in healthcare costs of 7.0%, reducing to 5.5%.

Pension benefits QOther post-retirement benefits
2000 1595 1888 2000 1999 1998
e ‘ Sm . Sm $m $m $m $m
Net periodiccost
Servica cost — present value of benefits
accruing during the year e 102 14T 141 10 9 5
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 301 284 319 17 11 15
Expected (return/loss on assets _ (322) @ (325) T - =
Settlement and curtaiiment - LTS o1« S
Net amortisation and deferral 46 69 64 (1) - -
Net periodic cost for the year 177 298 199 26 10 20

It is estimated that a 1 percentage point change in the weighted average heaithcare costs trend would have the following effects on
the accumulated benefit obligation and net periodic ¢ost at 31 December 2000:

1 percentage point

o . S _increase decrease
Accumulated benefit obfigaton 12 e A1)
Net periodic cost 4 {4)
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Differences between UK and US accounting principtes (continued)

US GAAP Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2000 1999 1998
Forthe years ended 31 December $m M $m
Casgh flows from operating activities 3,554 1,698 1,493
Cash flows from investing activites
Movement in short-term investments and fixed deposits (608} en 430
New fixed asset investments - o @ 0 .09
..Disposal of fixed assets 37 28 119
Acquisition and disposals 740 2,235 (593)
Capital expenditure (1,460) (2,383 (844)
Net cash outflows from investing activities {1,294) (224) (9086)
Net cash flow before financing (subtotal) 2,260 1,474 587
Gash flows from financing activities
Equity dividends paid {1,220) (1,218} {616)
Issue/{repurchase) of AstraZeneca PLC shares (334) (161) 12
Net decrease in short-term borrowings . ®n. 08 6
New loans/loans repaid 7 _ N 3 {8) (110}
Repayment of lease finance {2 (6) {8)
Net cash outflows from financing activities {1,620) (1,407} (773}
Increase/(decrease) in cash 640 I {186)
CaSh .........................................................
At 1 January e . e 282 206 388
Increase (decrease) in cash 640 67 (186)
Exchange movements 6 {11 4
At 31 December 908 262 206

(1) The acquisition of Astra was completed as a share for share exchange.
The details are given in Note 40.

(2} Interest paid was $145m in 2000 ($87m in 1999, $100m in 1998).
Interest received was $180m in 2000 ($102m in 1999, $40m in 1988).

(3) Tax paid was $648m in 2000 ($352m in 1999, $468m in 1998).
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Differences between UK and US accounting principles (continued)

Taxation
2000 1999 1998
Years ended 31 December $m o $m
Taxes on income from continuing operatons
UK taxation . e
. Corporationtax 79 346 . 344
Double taxation relief (109) (74} A3
Deferred 40 9 8
Overseas taXes .. 956 493 135
Deferrad taxation - (865) (19)
Share of taxation of joint ventures and associates 3 1 2
Taxes on income from continuing operations 969 (190} 397

The table below reconciles the United Kingdom statutory tax charge to the Group's actual charge on income from continuing
operations.

2000 1999 1998
Years ended 31 December ‘ $m $m $m
income (loss) on continuing operations . NBTE 428Y) 1198
Taxation charge at United Kingdom corporation

- Tax rate of 30% for 2000 (30.25% for 1999, 31% for 1998) 563 (1,289) 371

Acquisition related items 29 1 134 -
Goodwill, Seeds, and Salick Health Care impairment 576 275 16
Net effect of lower rates and eligible costs in other jurisdictions (210} 313 (14
Other 11 3 24
Tax on income from continuing operations 969 (190) 397
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Group Financial Record — UK GAAP

1896 1897 1808 1969 2000
$m $m  &m $m $m

For the years ended 31 December 1995
M

Turnover and profits

Group turnover 12,074 13,188 13,166 15,402 18,445 18,103
Cost of sales (4,085 14807 (4083 (4961)  6037) {5491
DIStibUtion GOSYS (374) (385) (364) (367 .. (343) . ..(288)
Research and development (Ler) (.98 - R170) (2473 (2923 (2,899
Selfing, general and administrative expenses .. 18868 8751 (3838 (4.812) ©588)  (5,691)
Other income 189 193 126 353 189 266
Group operating proft 2567 . 2977 2857 3142 2746 4008
_________ Group operating profit before exceptional items 2,670 2,977 2,857 3,051 3,808 4,330
Exceptional items charged to operating profit (103 - - 91 (1,162) (322)
Share of operating profit of joint ventures and associates 354 504 722 839 7 (149)
Exceptional tems _ ‘ 30e) (56) - 29) (778) (150)
Dividend INCOMe e : - S - - T 3
Net interest 75 118 81 47 {4) 135
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2,690 3,543 3,660 3606 1050 3,847
Taxation (808) {1,040) {1,081) (1,086) 815 {1,299)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 1,882 2,503 2,579 2613 1,144 2,548
Attributable to minorities {25) 19 9 2 {1y 1))
Net profit for the financial year 1,857 2,484 2,570 2,611 1,143 2,538
Return on sales
Group operating profit before exceptional items
as a percentage of sales 221% 22.6% 21.7% 19.8% 21.2% 23.9%

At 31 December 1995

1966 1997 1988 1009 2000
,,,,,,,, oS S o Sm L Bm $m $m
Balance sheets
Fixed assets (tang_ip_l_e and _i_ntanglblg) and g_c_;odwill ) 5,251 5_,661” 5894 _8,721 oosnr 7,908
Fixed asset investments ) 834 1,006, 1027 - 388 185 N
Current assgets 8,044 9,118 8,085 9,404 9,914 10,515
Total assets 14,129 15,784 16,016 18,478 19,816 18,434
Creditors due within one year {4,540) (4,559} (4,459) (5,650} {7,019} (6,897)
Total assets less current liabilities 9,589 11,185 11,557 12,828 12,797 11,537
Creditors due after more than one year N {©37) @2 {902) (8O {1,202) {927)
Provisions for liabilties and charges 0081 (1073 (1049)  (1.048) (1,253 (1,068)
Minority equity interests Y63 17884 88 &0 2
Shareholders’ funds - equity interests 7,478 9,022 9,552 10,929 10,302 9,521
Shareholders’ funds and minority interests 7,641 9,200 9,606 10,082 10,342 9,542
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For the years ended 31 December 1995 1996 1997 1908 1999 2000

_ _ gm  $m $m $m $m $m
Cash flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities 3,005 3,198 3,355 3,832 3,113 4,183

Dividends received from joint veniures and associates 243 328 369 262 3 -

29 19

(1.020) (648)

2,731  (1,426)

1,978 740

{1.216) (1 220)

Nst cash flow before management of liquid resources
and financing 448 1,200 448 (955) 156 1,648

Pro forma combined

For the years ended 31 December 1998 1999
AL ot St L

Group turnover 17,117 18,445
Cost of sales o - 6612  (6,037)
Distribution costs o 7 {375) {343}

(2,551 (2923

Research and d _
{5,334) {6,597)

Selling, general and administrati

Other income 353 189
Group operatingproft 3,508 2,734
Share of operating profit/(loss) of joint ventures and associates 3 Y
Profits less losses on sale or closure of operations w“e) 237
Profits on sale of fixed assets L AT
MEIGEN COSIS e s T {1013
Net interest (60) (25)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation e 3512 . 1926
Taxation (1,039} (809)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation e .. 2473 17
Attributable to minorities {2) (
Net profit for the financial year 2,471 1,116
Earnings per $0.25 Crdinary Share before exceptional items $1.36 $1.52
Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share basic) $1.39 ...%083
Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share (diluted) $1.39 $0.63
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in issue (millions) 1,779 1,776

The pro forma profit and loss figures for 1998 and 1899 above include two further adjustments to the statutory figures to illustrate
the effect on the sales and profits as if the Astra Merck restructuring and the merger related payments to Merck had occurred at
the beginning of 1998 (rather than July 1898 and April 1999 respectively),

The pro forma figures incorporate sales of $1,715m for 1998 related to the Astra Merck joint venture which are excluded from the
statutory consclidation. Changes in the cost base which arise from the Astra Merck restructuring have also been backdated to

1 January 1998. The net effect of these pro forma adjustments is to reduce 1998 reported profits by $55m, before tax relief of
$23m.

A pro forma amortisation cost of $12m and notional interest cost of $21m per quarter on the payments due to Merck on
completion of the merger were atso provided for the period 1 January 1998 to 5 April 1999. These charges are offset by tax relief
of $6m per quarter.
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Group Financial Record - US GAAP

The selected financial data set out below for each of the years in the five year period ended 31 December 2000, has been
extracted or derived from audited financial statements.

The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified in their entirety by reference to, the financial
statements of AstraZeneca and the notes thereto, which are included elsewhere in this document.

Consolidated income statement data
For the years ended 31 December

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
Income/(loss) from continuing operations e S
Net income/(loss) {$ million) o07 1,142 1,036 {3,539) 870
Income/{loss) from continuing operations per Ordinary Share
Net income/floss) per Ordinary Share 3096 8120 8109 ($226) 049
Diluted income/{loss) per Ordinary Share $0.95 $1.20 $1.09 ($2.25} 0.49
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges
For the Group with estimated material
adjustments to accord with US GAAP 11.7 11.6 11.7 {19.3)
Consolidated balance sheet data
At 31 December 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
S $m oI $m $m Sm
Total assets 9,537 9,677 10,675 45,405
Net assets e
Shareholders’ equity 4,673 5,035 5,568 33,735 29,743

Merger accounting

For the purpose of US GAAP, the merger has been regarded as a purchase accounting acquisition of Astra by Zeneca.

Accordingly the US GAAP results above for the period from 1996 through 1998 are not restated for the merger with Astra and
represent the previously reported results of Zeneca Group PLC.

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

For the purpose of computing these ratios, earmnings consist of the income from continuing ordinary activities before taxation of
Group companies and income received from companies owned 50% or less, plus fixed charges (excluding capitalised interest).
Fixed charges consist of interest (including capitalised interest) on all indebtedness, amortisation of debt discount and expense
and that portion of rental expense representative of the interest factor. The comparative figures have been restated from those
previously disclosed to reflect the reclassification of the operations of Specialties and Agrochemicals as discontinued.
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AstraZeneca *1999

Ordinary Shares in issue — milions

At year end 1,775 1,766
Weighted average for year 1,776 1,768
Stock Market price - per $0.25 Ordinary Share

Highest {pence) 2946 3600
Lowest {pence) 2208 1926
At year end {pence) 2568 3375
Earnings per $0.25 Ordlinary Share before exceptional items $1.54 $1.76
Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share (basic} $0.64 $1.44
Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share (diluted) $0.64 $1.43
Dividends $0.70 $0.70t
*For the period from 1 January 1999 10 31 Decemnber 1999 (except for Stock Market prices which are for the period from 6 April 1999 to 31 Cecember 1999).

tin addition, sharehoiders received a distribution of shares in Syngenta AG as a dividend in specie in respect of the demerger of Zeneca Agrochemicals.

Zeneca 19986 1997 1998 *1999

Ordinary Shares in issue — milions

At period end — . 9AT 949 950 ... 953

Weighted average for period a47 948 250 951

Stock Market price — per $0.25 Ordinary Share

Highest {pence} 1759 2265 2759 3037

Lowest (pence) .. N =1 1594 1860 .. 2406

At period end (pence) 1648 2141 2617 3037

Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share before exceptional items $1.10 $1.26 $1.27

Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share (basic) ‘ $1.05  $1.26 $1.25

Earnings per $0.25 Ordinary Share (diluted) $1.05 $1.26 $1.24

Dividends $0.54 $0.63 $0.70

~ For the period from 1 January 1999 to 6 April 1999

Astra 1996 1997 1998 ..71998

Ordinary Shares in issue - millions

At period end 616 1,643 1,643 1,643

Weighted average for period 616 1,130 1,643 1,643

Stock Market price - per Astra A Share

Highest (SEK) _ ) . 129 167 173 190

Lowest (SEK} 92 112 117 154

At period end (SEK} 126 138 166 190

Stock Market price - per Astra B Share

Highest (SEK) e e 126 148 169 190

Lowest (SEK) . .. 9 L e . 154

At period end (SEK]} 123 134 165 180

Earnings per Share {SEK) 575 6.21 7.18

Dividends (SEK} 1.50 1.80 1.90

* For the period from 1 January 1999 1o 6 Aprl 1829
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By size of account
No. of shares

2000
e e e e s e i e+« e e e e .0/0
17280

20 000 e e e s e

501 - 1,000 :

1001 -5000 e e 20

5001-10000 o e S 0.3

10001 -50000 . R — e . B 15

B da7

over 1,000,000 80.7

Issued share capital 100.0

T includes VPG and ADR haidings

At 31 Decermber 2000, AstraZeneca PLC had 191,945 registered holders of 1,766,480,864 Crdinary Shares of $0.25 each. In
addition there were approximately 60,000 hotders of American Depositary Receipts representing 4.5% of the issued share capital
and 168,000 holders of shares held under the VPC Services Agreement representing 26% of the issued share capital. The ADRs,
each of which is equivalent to one Qrdinary Share, are issued by Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York.

The tables below also set forth, for the last three guarters of 1999 and for the first two quarters and last six months of 2000, the
reported high and low share prices of AstraZeneca PLC. Astra and Zeneca merged in April 1999, consequently the reported high
and low share prices of Astra AB and Zeneca Group PLC are shown for the first quarter of 1992,

Zeneca Group PLC

Ordinary Shares

The reported high and low middie market closing quotations in pence for Zeneca shares on the London Stock Exchange (‘'LSE'),
are derived from The Daily Official List.

American Depositary Shares

The reported high and low sales prices of American Depositary Shares are as reportad by Dow Jones {ADR Quotations), Until April
1999, Zeneca Group PLC American Depositary Shares {gach representing ong Ordinary Share) evidenced by American Depositary
Receipts issued by Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as depositary, were listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

Zeneca

Ordinary ADS

High Low High Low

_ T, o (pence) ~ (pence)  (USH _(Uss
1999 - Quater1 T . 3097 2406 4850 4050

Astra AB

Until April 1999, the principal market for trading in the shares of Astra AB was the Stockholm Stock Exchange ('SSE’), on which
the shares had been traded since 1855. From 1985 until April 1999, the shares were listed on the London Stock Exchange and
also quoted on SEAQ International. From 1996 unitil April 1998, American Depositary Shares (‘ADSSs’) representing the company’s
A Shares and B Shares had been listed on The New York Stock Exchange, and were available in the United States through an
Arnerican Depositary Receipt (‘ADR') program established pursuant to separate Depositary Agreements entered into by the
company and The Bank of New York, as depositary. One ADS represented oneg Share.

The high and low closing sale prices for the A Shares and the B Shares are as stated in the Official List of the SSE, which reflects
price and volume information for trades completed by members on the SSE during the day as well as for inter-dealer trades
completed off the SSE and certain inter-dealer trades completed during the trading on the previous business day.

Astra
A-Shares B-Shares
Ordinary ADS QOrdinary ADS
High LOw High Low High Low H'gh Low
) Lo fsEK . SEW 0 uUse) o sy (SER) ... (SEKy . Ws§ o USY)
1939 - Quarter 1 18B.5 155.5 23.44 18.75 188.5 1545 23.13 18.88
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AstraZeneca PLC

Since April 1999, following the AstraZeneca merger, the principal markets for trading in the shares of AstraZeneca PLC are the
London, Stockholm, and New York Stock Exchanges. The high and low prices are derived as set out above for the Zeneca Group
PLC and Astra AB shares.

AstraZeneca

Ordinary LSE ADS Ordinary SSE*

High Low High Low High Low

{pence) {pence) (Ug$) {UsH) {SEK) (SEK)

1999 - Quarter 2 2846 2362 46.56 38.10 403 315
—Quarter3 2569 2008 4219 31 362 289
-Quarterd . 2eB 2465 4777 4006 o 336
2000 -Quarter 1 . 297 196 4300 8079 /6 266
- Quarter 2. 3085 2603 4567 39.28 413 345

- July 3180 2850 46.98 41.78 429 386.50

— August _ 3160 2898 45.20 41.90 434,50 388

- September 39 3070 5180 4306 511 418
-October 370 3170 5076 4851 515 451
~November . 300 3160 5144 4581 513 449

— December 3480 3211 52.25 4712 502 444

“Principally hedd in bearer form

Share Capital
9 Feb 2001 31 Dec 2000 9 Feb 2001 31 Dec 2000
No. of shares  No. of shares $m m
Ag}pggj‘i‘gggg;hare Capital (million} {rnilion} ‘
Ordirary shares of $0.25 each 2,400 2,400 600 600
Redeemabile preference shares £50,000 £50,000

Unissued Share Capital
Ordinary shares of $0.25 each 634 158

Issued Share Capital
The movements in issued Ordinary Share capital are set out below:

2000 1999 1998 1998

L No. of shares (millor) _§m
Atbegnning ofyear 1775 950 949 304
Nominal value of shares issued to Astra AB shareholders - - - -
Group share capital at beginning of year 1,775 950 949 394
Shares issued on merger - 826 - - i - -
Redenomination of share capita! - e T T (187) =
Issues of shares o 1 3 1. T 2 . -
Repurchase of shares {10) 4 - @ (1) -
At end of year 1,766 1,775 950 442 444 384

During 2000 AstraZeneca’s share repurchase programme which was introduced in 1999 continued with the repurchase and
subsequent cancellation of 9.4 million shares at a total cost of $353m, representing 0.53 per cent of the total issued share capital
of the Company. In 1999 4.4 milion Ordinary Shares were repurchased, and subsequently cancelled, at an average price of 2603
pence per share for a consideration, including expenses, of $183m. The excess of the consideration over the nominal value was
charged against the profit and loss account reserve. Shares issued in respect of the exercise of options totalled 0.8 million.
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In 1899 in connection with the merger, As

shares were cancelled and US dollar shares issued, credited as fully paid on the basis of one Dollar Share for each Zeneca share
then held. This was achieved by a reduction of capital under section 135 of the Companies Act 1985. Upon the reduction of
capital becoming effective, all issued and unissued Zeneca shares were cancelled and the sum arising as a result thereof credited

to a special reserve which was converted into US dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing on the Record Date. This US dollar
reserve was then applied in paying up at par newly created US dollar shares.

At the same time as the US dollar shares were issued, the Company issued £50,000 Redeemable Preference Shares for cash at
par. The Redeemaible Preference Shares carry limited class voting rights and no dividend rights. This class of shares is also

capable of redemption at par at the option of the Company on the giving of seven days' written notice to the registered holder of
the shares.

A total of 8268 million AstraZeneca shares were issued to Astra shareholders who accepted the merger offer before the final closing

date, 21 May 1990, AstraZeneca received acceptances from Astra shareholders representing 99.6 per cent of Astra's shares and
the remaining 0.4 per cent was acquired in 2000 for cash.

A total of 3.6 million shares were issued during 1999 in respect of share options, cornpared with 0.8 million shares in 1938.

Major shareholdings

On 9 February 2001 (not more than one month prior to the date of the Notice of Annual General Meeting) the: following had

disclosed an interest in the issued Ordinary Share capital of the Cormpany in accordance with the requirements of Sections
198-208 of the Companies Act 1985:

Shareholder

The Capital Group
Companies, Inc.,

investor AB

Percentage of issued
_______ ) _I}{umber of shares share capital

9.03%

5.18%
Na other person held a notifiable interest in shares, comprising 3% ot more of the issued Ordinary Share canital of the Company,
appearing in the register of interests in shares maintained under the provisions of Section 211 of the Companies Act 1885.

Significant changes in the percentage ownership held by major shareholders during the past three years are set out below. Major
shareholders do not have different voting rights.

Percentage of issued share capital
Shareholders 9 Feb 2001 14 Mar 2000 1998 16 Mar 1999
“““ ] __In AstraZeneca In AstraZeneca In Astra In Zeneca
i 9.03% 7.8% ) 5.53%
Investor AB 5.18% 5.2%

AstraZeneca PLC American Depositary Shares (each representing one Ordinary Share) evidenced by American Depositary Receipts
issued by Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as depositary, are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. As of 9

February 2001, the proportion of Ordinary Shares represented by American Depositary Shares was % of the Ordinary Shares
outstanding.

Number of registered holders of Ordinary Shares as of 9 February 2001:
~ In the United States
- Total

Number of record holders of American Depositary Receipts as of @ February 2001:
- In the United States
— Total

So far as the Company is aware, it is neither directly nor indirectly owned nor controlied by one of more corporations or by any
government.
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As of 9@ February 2001 the total amount of the Company’s voting securities owned b;ﬁi}éétors and Officers of the Company was: ‘

Title of class Amount owned Per cent of class
(80.25 shares)

Ordinary Shares

The Company does not know of any arrangements the operation of which might result in a change in the control of the Company.

Related party transactions

During the period 1 January 2000 to 9 February 2001 there were no transactions, ioans, or proposed transactions between the
Company and any related parties which were material to eitber the Company or the related party, or which were unusual in their
nature or conditions. (See also Note 32 Statutory and other information).

Options to purchase securities from registrant or subsidiaries
(a) As of 9 February 2001 options outstanding to subscribe for Ordinary Shares of $0.25 of the Company were:

Number of shares Subscriptionprice .. Normal expiry date

The weighted average subscription price of options outstanding at 9 February 2001 was ep. All options were granted under
Company employee schemes.

(b} Included in paragraph {a) are options granted to Directors and Officers of AstraZeneca as follows:

Number of shares 7 Subscription price Normal expiry date

{¢) Included in paragraph (b) are options granted to individually named Directors. Details of these option holdings as at
31 December 2000 are shown in Note 34 to the financial staterments.

During the period 1 January 2001 to 9 February 2001 no Director exercised any options and there were no changes in the
interests of Directors shown in Note 34 to the Financial Statements.

Dividend payments

The record date for the second interim dividend payable on 9 April 2001 (in the UK, US and Sweden) was 23 February 2001,
Shares have traded ex-dividend on the London and Stockholm Stock Exchanges from 21 February 2001 and ADRs have traded
ex-dividend on the New York Stock Exchange from the same date. Future dividends will normally be paid as follows:

First interim: Announced end of July and paid in October
Second interim:  Announced in February and paid in April

Registrar and Transfer Office
The AstraZeneca Registrar
Lloyds TSB Registrars

The Causeway

Worthing

Woest Sussex BNS9 6DA
Telephone 0870 60C 3956
Website: www.shareview.co.uk

Resuits
Unaudited trading results of AstraZeneca in respect of the first three months of 2001 will be published on 26 April 2001 and results
in respect of the first six months of 2001 will be published on 26 July 2001.

Documents on display

The Memorandum and Articles of Assceigtion of the Company and the rules of the AstraZeneca Share Option Plan may be
inspected at the Company's registered office at 1% Stanhope Gate, London W1K 1LN,
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Taxation for US residents

The following summary of the principal UK and certain US tax consequences of ownership of Ordinary Shares or ADRs held as
capital assets by US resident shareholders is based an current UK and US federal income tax law and practice and in part on
representations of Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York as Depositary for ADRs and assumes that each abligation in the
deposit agreement among the Company, the Depositary and the helders from time to time of ADRs and any related agreement will
be performed in accordance with its terms. The US Treasury has expressed concerns that parties to whom ADRs are pre-released
may bs laking actions that are inconsistent with the claiming, by US holders of ADRs, of foreign tax credits for US federat income

tax purposes. Accordingly, the analysis of the creditability of UK taxes described below could be affected by future actions that
may be taken by the US Treasury.

United Kingdom and United States income taxes and tax treaties affecting remittance of dividends

Under the current Double Taxation (Income) Convention {the ‘Convention') between the United Kingdom and the United States,
which is currently being renegotiated, US resident individuals who are the beneficial owners of dividends on Ordinary Shares, or
American Depositary Recelpts representing Crdinary Shares, in UK Corporations are generally entitied to a tax credit payment in
respect of dividends equal to one-ninth (1/9) of the dividend paid. This tax credit payment is reduced by a UK withholding of up to
15% of the gross dividend paid. Therefore, a US holder will not actually receive any payment of this credit.

US resident corporate shareholders are generally treated in the same way as individuals provided that either alone, or together with
associated corporations, they do not control directly or indirectly 10% or more of the voting shares of the Company and do not

constitute investment or halding companies, 25% or more of the capital of which is owned, directly or indirectly, by persons that
are not individuals resident in, and are not nationals of, the United States.

For US federal income tax purposes, the sum of the dividend paid, and if a US rasident shareholder so elscts, the associated tax
credit payment is includible in gross income by US resident shareholders and, for foreign tax credit limitation purposes, is foreign
source income, treated separately, togsther with other ftems of ‘passive income’ {or, in the case of certain holders, ‘financial
services income’), The withholding deduction is treated as a foreign income tax which may, subject to certain limitations and

restrictions, be eligible for credit against a US resident shareholder's US federal incomea tax liability {or deductibie by such
shareholders in computing their taxable income).

Shareholders whose holdings are effectively connected with a permanent establishment or fixed base in the United Kingdom, or

who are corporations also resident in the United Kingdom for the purpose of the Convention, are not entitied to payment of the tax
credit nor are they subject to any deductions from the dividend.

Taxation on capital gains

Under the Convention each contracting state may in general tax capital gains in accordance with the provisions of its domestic
law. Under present UK law, individuals who are neither resident nor ordinarily resident in the United Kingdom, and companies
which are not resident in the United Kingdom will not be liable to UK tax on capital gains made on the disposal of their Ordinary

Shares or ADRs, unless such Crdinary Shares or ADRS are held in connection with a trade, profession or vocation carried on in the
United Kingdem through a branch or agency.

A US resident shareholder will recognize capital gain or loss for US federal income tax purposes on the sale or exchange of the
Ordinary Shares or ADSs in the same manner as such hotder would on the sale or exchange of any other shares held as capitat
assets. As a result, a US resident shareholder will generally recognize capital gain or loss for US federal income tax purposes equal
to the difference between the amount realized and such holder's adjusted basis in the Ordinary Shares or ADSs. The gain or loss
will generally be US sourge income or loss. US resident shareholders should consult their own tax advisors about the treatment of

capital gains, which may be taxed at lower rates than ordinary income for non-corporate taxpayers, and capital losses, the
deductibility of which may be limited.

United Kingdom inheritance tax

Under the current Double Taxation {Estates) Convention (the ‘Estate Tax Convention') between the United States and the United
Kingdom, Ordinary Shares or ADRs held by an individual shareholder who is domiciled for the purposes of the Estate Tax
Convention in the United States, and is not for the purposes of the Estate Tax Convention a national of the United Kingdom, will
generally not be subject to the UK inheritance tax on the individual's death or on a chargeable gift of the Ordinary Shares or ADRs
during the individual’s fifstime provided that any applicable US federal gift or estate tax liability is paid, unless the Ordinary Shares
or ADRs are part of the business property of a permanent establishment of the individual in the United Kingdom or, in the caseg of
a shareholder who performs independent personal services, pertain 1o a fixed base situated in the United Kingdom. Where the
ADRs or Crdinary Shares have been placed in trust by a settlor who, at the time of settlement, was a US resident shareholder, the
ADRs or Ordinary Shares will generally not be subject to UK inheritance tax unless the settlor, at the time of settlemert, was not
doriciled in the US and was a UK national. In the exceptional case where the Ordinary Shares or ADRs are subject both to UK

inheritance tax and to US federal gift or estate tax, the Estate Tax Convention generally provides for double taxation 1o be relieved
by means of credit relief,
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Exchange controls and other limitations affecting security hoiders

(a} There are no governmental laws, decrees or regulations in the UK restricting the import or export of capital or affecting the
remittance of dividends, interest or other payments to non-resident holders of Ordinary Shares or American Depositary Shares.
However, a 1.5% stamp duty reserve tax is payable upon the deposit of Ordinary Shares in connection with the creation of but
not subsequent dealing in American Depositary Receipts. This is in lieu of the normal 0.5% stamp duty on all purchases of
Ordinary Shares.

{b) There are no limitations under English Law or the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association on the right of
non-resident or foreign owners to be the registered holders of and to vote Ordinary Shares or to be registered holders of notes
or debentures of Zeneca Wilmington inc.

Exchange rates

For the periods up to April 1999, Astra accounted for and reported its results in Swedish kronor, whereas Zeneca accounted for
and reported its results in sterling. Consistent with AstraZeneca’s decision to publish its financial statements in US dollars, the
financial information in this document has been translated from kronor and sterling into US dollars at the following applicable
exchange rates:

SEK/USD USD/GBP
Average rates (profit and loss account, cash flow) i 7 _A
LT S 7000 1,5798
1 e e o 87000 1.5525
1997 e i 7.6225 1,6386
1998 s
1999

B e 6.6800 ..1:5500
1008 e e 6.8400 1.6900
1997 7.8500 1.6600
1998 - 8.0400 1.6600
1999 8.5130 1.6185

The following information relating to average and spot exchange rates used by AstraZeneca is provided for convenience.

SEK/USD USD/GBP
Average rates (profit and loss account, cash flow) e,
2000 ) 8.9103 1.5341
End of year spot rates {balance sheet}
2000 39,5390 1.4925
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6;ﬁn,t|oﬁ§ : S
In this document the following words and expressions shall, unless the context otherwise requires, have the following meanings:

........................................ Amef‘ca“DeWS‘taW Receipt e\”dm‘“g litle 10 an ADS

Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, as dep08|tary under the deposﬂ agreement
© which the ADRs are issued

ors of the Company
Company ASTaZeneca PLO e
AstraZeneca, AstraZensca

GrouporteGrouwp T *.E?..Q?Eﬂ??‘.ﬂ!,?ﬂﬁ*,,,‘ts SUbS‘d‘a”eS
Crdinary Shares

Depositary

Pound sterling"' EGBPpenceor p
UK or Unlted Klngdom
us dollar, US$ or$

US or United States - ' ‘ Unlted States of America
FDA

Food and Drug Administration of the Us T

Figures in parentheses in tables and financial statements are used to represent negative numbers.

Except whare otherwise indicated, figures inciuded in this report relating 1o pharmaceutical product market sizes and market
shares are obtained from syndicated industry sources, primarily [LM.S. Health {IMS), a market research firm internationatly

recognised by the pharmaceutical industry. The 2000 market share figures included in this report are based prirmarily on data
obtained from an online IMS database.

IMS data may differ from that compiled by the Group with respect to its own products. Of particular significance in this regard are
the foliowing: {1) AstraZeneca publishes its financial results on a financial year and quarteny interim basis, whereas IMS issues its

data on a monthly and quarterly basis; (2) the online IMS database is updated quarterly and uses the average exchange rates for
the relevant quarter; (3) IMS data from the US is not adjusted for Medicaid and similar state rebates; and (4) IMS sales data is

compiled using actual wholesaler data and data from statistically representative panels of retail and hospital pharmacies, which
data is then proiected by IMS to give figures for national markets.

References 1o prevalence of disease have been derived from a variety of sources and are not intended 1o be indicative of the
current market or any potential market for AstraZeneca’s pharmaceutical products since, among other things, there may be no
correlation between the prevalence of a disease and the number of individuals who are treated for such disease.
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Terms used in Annual Report

and Form 20-F US equivalent or brief description

ACCIUBIS | e Accrued expenses

Allotted L
Bank borrowings __________________ _Payable to banks ___________

Issued share cap|tal

"‘-WLlabilltles/payables

C - Long-term debt due W|thln one__ygar _______ o

Debtors ‘ Receivables and pr epaid expenses ..

Eamings . Netincome
Finance leage Capital lease

leed asset lnvestm_gnts o ~ Non-gurrent investments

!_—‘__r_eehold ‘ OWnerShlp with absolute rlghts in perpetulty

interest recewabie interest 1ncome o

Interest payable . Interest expense ”

LOANS LONG AN GO0t et o e
Prepayments Prepaidexpenses
Profit iIncome. '

Profit and loss account Income statement/consohdated statement of income

Retained earnings

Redeemable securities and short-term deposits
Premiums paid in excess of par vaiue of Ordinary Shares

Statement of Total Recognised Statement of Comprehensive income

Gains and Losses U PP .

Stocks _ Inventories
Igng!pl_g__f!?@qgssets ““““““““““ ~ Property, plant and equmment ,,,,,,,
S g e
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Cross Reference to Form 20-F

The information in this document that
is referenced on this page is included
in the Annual Report on Form 20-F for
2000 (2000 Form 20-F) and is filed
with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). The 2000 Form
20-F is the only document intended to
be incorporated by reference into any
filings by AstraZeneca under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
References to major headings include
all information under such majer
headings, including subheadings.
References to subheadings include
cnly the infermation contained under
such subheadings. Graphs are not
included unless specifically identified
opposite. The 2000 Form 20-F has not
been approved or disapproved by the
SEC nor has the SEC passed comment
upon the accuracy or agdequacy of the
2000 Form 20-F. The 2000 Form 20-F
filed with the SEC may contain
modified information and may be
updated from time ¢ time,
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235 Country of Incorporation

6979 France

5337 Bermuda

6908 Sweden

6914 Sweden

6913 Sweden

6901 Sweden

6893 Sweden

5544 United States of America
5339 British Virgin Islands
7332 Taiwan, Republic of China
6895 Sweden

6919 Sweden

6909 Sweden

6923 Sweden

6905 Sweden

6899 Sweden

6998 Norway

6911 Sweden

6992 Switzertang

7176 Malaysia

7344 Hong Kong

6942 Poland

7405 South Africa

6917 Sweden

4186 Australia

6984 United Kingdom

6960 Portugal

5565 United States of America
6794 Swaden

6959 Austria

6944 France

6939 Denmark

6918 Sweden

6932 Norway

6933 HOLLAND

6916 Germany

6902 Sweden

6972 Haly

5567 United Kingdom

5568 Finland

6962 Spain

5570 United States of America
5561 United States of America
5562 United States of America
8985 United Kingdom

5667 United States of America
6989 Denmark

7117 Brazil

Subsidiary Undertakings

Full Name

ASP.SA,

Acorga Limited

Aktiebolaget Astromen

Aktiebolaget Draco )

Aktiebolaget Hassie

Aktiebolaget Medena

Aktiebolaget Rita

Ambulatory Diagnositc Testing Services, Inc,
Arbil International Insurance Limited
Asterpharm inc

Astra Biotech AB

Astra Export & Trading AB

Astra Fondaktieboiag

Astra Lakemedel AB

Astra Middle East AR

Astra Nordic AB

Astra Norge AS

Asfra Pharma AB

Astra Pharmaceutica AG

Astra Phammacautical {Malaysia) SDN BHD
Astra Pharmaceuticals (China)
Astra Pharmaceuticals (Poland) sp.z.0.0
Astra Pharmaceuticals (Pty) Ltd
Astra Pharmaceuticals AB

Astra Pharmaceuticals Holdings Pty Ltd,
Astra Pharmaceuticals Ltd.,

Astra Portuguesa Lda

Astra R&D Boston, Inc.

Astra Synthelabo Aktiebolag

Astra Tech

Astra Tech

Astra Tech A/S

Astra Tech Aktiebolag

Astra Tech AS

Astra Tech B.v.

Astra Tech GmbH

Astra Tech International Aktiebolag
Astra Tech italy SpA

Astra Tech Ltd

Astra Tech Oy

Astra Tech S.A,

Astra Tech, Inc.

Astra U.S. Holdings Corparation
Asfra USA, Inc.

AstraPharm

Astra-Thai Holdings

AstraZeneca A/S

AstraZeneca do Brasil Limitada

Page 1

Held %

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
51
99.9
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
50
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
97
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100




7358 Thailand

8892 Sweden

6440 Switzerland
6988 HOLLAND
6142 Norway

6020 HOLLAND
5668 Canada

3700 United Kingdom
7170 Colombia

6936 HOLLAND
6943 Czech-Republic
6912 Sweden

1012 United Kingdom
6150 HOLLAND
4182 Australia

7161 Chile

6158 Spain

8911 United Kingdom
941 France

8103 Germany

6145 Sweden

65982 France

6267 Denmark

6226 HOLLAND
7326 Hong Kong
7335 Turkey

6171 HOLLAND
7264 ndia

8044 United Kingdom
6910 Sweden

7333 United Kingdom
6208 HOLLAND
6212 HOLLAND
6945 Hungary

7275 Japan

7327 South Korea
6224 HOLLAND
5310 United States of America
4189 New Zealand
6976 Germany

6990 Switzerland
6980 France

8098 United Kingdom
6213 HOLLAND
6305 Austria

6995 Finland

7319 China - People's Republic of China
6983 Republic of lreland
7270 Philippines
7400 South Africa

Subsidiary Undertakings

AstraZeneca (Thailand) Ltd
Astralensca AB

AstraZeneca AG

AstraZeneca Alpha BV,
AstraZeneca AS

AstraZenecaBV.

AstraZeneca Canada Inc.,
AstraZeneca China UK Limited
AsiraZeneca Colombia S.A,
AstraZeneca Continent BV,
AstraZeneca Czech Republic, s.r.e.
AstraZeneca Development AB
AstraZeneca Employee Share Trust Ltd
AstraZeneca Epsilonh BV,

AstraZeneca Executive Superannuation Plan Pty Ltd

AstraZeneca Farmaceutica Chile Ltda
AstraZeneca Farmaceutica Holding Spain SA
AstraZeneca Finance Limited
AstraZeneca Finance SAS

AstraZeneca GmbH

AstraZeneca Holding AklieBolag
AstraZeneca Holding France SAS
AstraZeneca Holdings A/S

AstraZeneca Holdings B.V.

AstraZeneca Hong Kong Ltd
AstraZeneca llac Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S.
AstraZeneca lliad BV,

AstraZeneca India Private Limited
AstraZeneca [nsurance Company Limited
AstraZeneca International Holdings AB
AstraZeneca Japan Limited

AstraZeneca Jota BV,

AstraZeneca Kappa B.V.

AstraZeneca Kit

AstraZeneca KK

AstraZeneca Korea Ltd

AstraZeneca Lambda B.V.

AstraZeneca Latin America Inc
AstraZeneca Limited

AstraZeneca Luxembourg sarl
AstraZeneca Management Resources AG
AstraZeneca Monts

AstraZeneca Nominees Ltd

AstraZeneca Omega B.V.

AstraZeneca Osterreich GmbH
AstraZeneca OY.

AstraZeneca Pharmaceutical Co., Lid,
AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals (Ireland) Limited
AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals (Phils.) Inc.,
AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals (Pty) Ltd
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100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
92
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100




5563 United States of America
6227 HOLLAND

4188 Australia

1008 United Kingdom

6208 HOLLAND

7960 Argentina

6971 Greece

6119 France

7194 Uruguay

1013 United Kingdom

6210 HOLLAND

7318 Singapore

6329 Poland

6125 Italy

4181 Australia

6793 Sweden

7330 Taiwan, Republic of China
6222 HOLLAND

1019 United Kingdom

1002 United Kingdom

7120 Venezuela

6206 HOLLAND

5564 United States of America
5569 Mexico

6221 HOLLAND

5286 United States of America
5301 United States of America
5303 United States of America
3302 United Kingdom

6249 Norway

5336 British Virgin Istands
5502 United States of America
3348 United Kingdom

3350 United Kingdom

6938 Denmark

5517 United States of America
5302 United States of America
5309 United States of America
5305 United States of America
5553 United States of America
5541 United States of America
5511 United States of America
5036 United States of America
6989 Switzeriand

5530 United States of America
5903 Sweden

6922 Sweden

6996 Norway

B906 Sweden

5518 United States of America

Subsidiary Undertakings

AstraZeneca Pharmaceuticals, LP
AstraZeneca Pi B.V.

AstraZeneca PTY Lid
AstraZeneca Quest Limited
AstraZeneca Rho B.V.
AstraZeneca S.A.

AstraZeneca S.A.

AstraZengca SA

AstraZeneca SA

AstraZeneca Share Trust Lid
AstraZeneca Sigma B.V.
AstraZeneca Singapore Pte Lid
AstraZeneca Sp. z.0.0.
AstraZeneca SpA

AstraZeneca Superannuation Pina Pty Ud
AstraZeneca Sverige AB
ASTRAZENECA TAIWAN LIMITED
AstraZeneca Theta B.V.
AstraZeneca Treasury Limited
AstraZeneca UK Limited
AstraZeneca Venezuela SA

" AstraZeneca Zeta B.V.

AstraZeneca, LP

AstraZeneca, S.A. de C.V.

AstraZenenca Gamma B.V.

Atkemix Nine Inc.

Atkemix Ten Inc.

Atkemix Twelve Inc.

Avlex Limited

AZ Pharma AS

AZ Reinsurance Limited

AZ-Mont Insurance Company

Care Laboratories Lid

Care Products Lid

Carl Schneider ApS

Carlos Dominguez, M.D., FACP, Inc,

CCC Management Company of California, Inc.
CCC Management Company of New York, Inc.
€CC Management Company, inc.

CCC of North Miami Beach Inc.

Century Dialysis Corporation

Comprehensive Cancer Centers Inc.
Comprehensive Cancer Corporation of New York Inc
Copthotne AG

Corpus Christi Holdings Inc.

Crafon Aktiebolag

Draco Lakemedel Aktiebolag

DuraiNar AS,

Durapharmm Aktiebolag

Enrique Davilla, M.D., FACP, Inc
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6920 Sweden

6894 Sweden

8035 United Kingdom

3330 United Kingdom

6904 Sweden

5550 United States of America
5542 United States of America
7137 Puerto Rico

68105 Germany

4183 Awstralia

4171 Australia

6981 France

6083 Spain

6005 Spain

6084 Spain

6004 Spain

6085 Spain

6080 Spain

6973 Spain

5554 United States of America
8062 United Kingdom

5519 United States of America
6978 Belgium

6977 Belgium

5521 United States of America
8094 United Kingdom

6332 Portugal

6127 Belgium

5544 United States of America
7336 Indonesia

4170 Australia

6108 Germany

6101 Germany

8109 Germany

6102 Germany

6104 Germany

5403 United States of America
5560 United States of America
5515 United States of America
5556 United States of America
5545 United States of America
6974 ltaly

3395 United Kingdom

5332 Canada

8915 United States of America
5315 United States of America
6078 Portugal

6218 Sweden

7421 South Africa

3303 United Kingdom

Subsidiary Undertakings

Hassle Lakemedel| Aktiebolag

Hassle Research Aktiebolag

1.C. Insurance Holdings Limited

IC Insurance Limited

Imeco Aktieholag

Infusx, Inc.

Intercenter Cancer Research Group
IPR Pharmaceduticals, Inc.

lvamad GmpH

J Glover Distributors Pty Limited

J Glover Laboratories Pty Limited
Laboratories Astra France

Laboratorio Beta, S.A.

Laboratorio Epsilon, S.A.

Labaratorio lcaro, S.A.

Laboratorio Lailan, S.A.

Laboratorio Odin, S.A.

L aboratorio Tau S.A.

Laboratorios Astra Espana, §.A.

Lagic Health Systems, Inc

Marlow Foods Ltd

Michael A. Schwartz, M.D., Inc.,

N.V. Astra Pharmaceuticals S.A.

N.V. Vitalpharma Astra S.A.

Nixan, Bilaustein, Tuchman-Ratzan & Lutzky, M.D.'s, Inc.,
MNovacote Flexpack Ltd

Novastea

NV AstraZeneca SA

OAMG, Int.

P.T. AstraZeneca Indonesia
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Company Pty Limited
Pharma-Stern GmbH

Pharma-Stern Holding GmbH

Promed Arzneimittel GmbH

Promed Arzneimittel Holding GmbH
Rhein-Pharma Arzneimittetwerk GmbH
Salick Health Care Holdings Inc.
Salick Health Care, Inc.

Salick MG, Inc.,

Salicknet Inc.

SHC Laberatories, Inc.

Simesa SpA

Stahi GB Ltd

Stauffer Chemical Co. Canada Limited
Stauffer Chemical Company Trust
Stauffer Management Company LLC
STUART - PRODUTOS FARMACEUTICOS, LDA
Stuart Pharma AB

Stuart Pharmaceuticals (South Africa) (Pty) Lid
Stuart Pharmaceuticals Ltd
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